
AGENDA
Committee POLICY REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date and Time 
of Meeting

TUESDAY, 14 MARCH 2017, 4.30 PM

Venue COMMITTEE ROOM 4 - COUNTY HALL

Membership Councillor Howells (Chair)
Councillors Goddard, Hunt, Murphy, Sanders, Thomas and Walker

Time 
approx.

1  Apologies for Absence  

To receive apologies for absence.

2  Declarations of Interest  

To be made at the start of the agenda item in question, in accordance 
with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

3  Minutes  (Pages 1 - 6)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on
17 January 2017.

4  Customer Relationship Management and SAP Systems: Progress 
update  (Pages 7 - 12)

a) Councillor Graham Hinchey, Cabinet Member Corporate Services and 
Performance, has been invited to attend for this item and may wish to 
make a statement; 

b) Paul Orders, Chief Executive; Christine Salter, Corporate Director 
Resources; and Sarah McGill, Director Communities, Housing and 
Customer Services will be in attendance for this item;

c) Questions by members of the Committee

4.35 pm



5  Performance Quarter 3 2016-17  (Pages 13 - 50)

a) Councillor Graham Hinchey, Cabinet Member Corporate Services and 
Performance, has been invited to attend for this item and may wish to 
make a statement;

b) Christine Salter, Corporate Director Resources; Jackie Turner, 
Assistant Director Education & Lifelong Learning;   and Leon 
Goddard, Operational Manager Performance and Improvement will be 
in attendance for this item;

c) Questions by members of the Committee.

5.20 pm

6  Procurement Strategy 2017-2020  (Pages 51 - 62)

a) Councillor Graham Hinchey, Cabinet Member Corporate Services and 
Performance, has been invited to attend for this item and may wish to 
make a statement;

b) Christine Salter, Corporate Director Resources, and Steve Robinson, 
Operational Manager Commissioning and Procurement will be in 
attendance for this item;

c) Questions by members of the Committee.

6.05 pm

7  Committee's Annual Report 2016/17  (Pages 63 - 102) 6.35 pm

8  Way Forward  

(a) CRM – SAP  Progress update

(b) Performance Quarter 3 2016-17 

(c) Procurement Strategy 2017-2020

6.40 pm

9  Any Other Business  

This concludes the business of the Policy Review & Performance 
Scrutiny Committee for the 2012-2017 administration.

7.00 pm

Davina Fiore
Director Governance & Legal Services
Date:  Wednesday, 8 March 2017
Contact:  Kate Rees, 029 2087 2427, kate.rees@cardiff.gov.uk

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg





This page is intentionally left blank



POLICY REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

17 JANUARY 2017

Present: County Councillor Howells(Chairperson)
County Councillors Hunt, Murphy, Sanders, Thomas and Walker

49 :   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Goddard.

50 :   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No Declarations of Interest were received.

51 :   MINUTES 

The minutes of the meetings held on 15 November 2016 and 6 December 2016 were 
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairperson.

52 :   CARDIFF PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD: WELL-BEING ASSESSMENT 

The Chairperson welcomed Councillor Phil Bale, PSB Chair & Leader of Cardiff 
Council; Maria Battle, PSB Vice Chair & Chair of Cardiff and Vale UHB, Paul Orders, 
Chair Executive PSB & Chief Executive of Cardiff Council; Sheila Hendrickson-
Brown, Vice Chair Executive PSB & Chief Executive Officer of Cardiff Third Sector 
Council, Joseph Reay, Head of Performance & Partnerships and Gareth Newell, 
Operational Manager Partnerships & Community Engagement to the meeting.

The Chairperson invited the Leader to make a statement in which he said that 
Members would recall that in 2014 officers had been tasked with the first liveable city 
report, this was originally seen as an opportunity to highlight challenges faced by the 
Council and the City as a whole; the report now reflects new legislative framework 
and is subject to formal consultation before approval in March.

He added that it shows Cardiff as an improving City, managing growth pressures, 
developing individuals through that growth but that not all citizens are benefitting from 
that growth.  He stated that it was important to be mindful of this and to focus on this.  
There were additional issues of inequalities across the City.

The Chairperson invited Maria Battle, PSB Vice Chair & Chair of Cardiff and Vale 
UHB, to make a statement in which she  thanked the authors for a clear and 
accessible report; she added that there were some very positive messages within it 
but also some stark messages of inequality. Ms Battle stated that the report accords 
with the Health Boards strategy for future wellbeing,  both show differences in life 
expectancy and health depending on which part of the City you live in; to address this 
is an issue reflected across all partners.  Members were advised that population 
growth was unique to Cardiff in the under 6years and over 80’s years, which provided 
a challenge for now and in the future.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Members were provided with a presentation on the Wellbeing Assessment and 
Liveable City Report 2017 after which the Chair invited questions and comments from 
Members;

 Members commended Officers for the huge amount of work that had gone into 
producing the report.

 Members made reference to Needs Assessment work and noted that work 
had been done on this in 2015, then again in May 2016 in preparation for this 
report and asked how needs have changed.  Officers advised that the needs 
assessment done in 2015 has been updated and is present on the web tool. 
Questions of a qualitative nature on this were asked in the Ask Cardiff Survey; 
on a City level things have changed slowly but there have been changes in 
Educational performance, skills, youth unemployment and NEETS.  The 
Leader added that it was important to note that parts of the city were changing 
very quickly; communities change and needs change as a result of this; the 
challenge was to understand the changes and learn from other projects that 
have taken place.  He added that there was an opportunity through joint 
working to pool resources and address longstanding issues in areas such as 
Housing and Education, and these were things that the PSB could explore 
going forward.

 With reference to consultation, Members asked how the public would know 
about it, what it is for and how it could be accessed.  Officers explained that 
the assessment sits on the Council website, the Liveable City report is what 
people will see and comment on.

 Members asked how the life expectancy and health figures compared to the 
rest of Wales; whether there was a correlation between deprivation and mental 
health and whether there is anything that can be done to address the issue.  
The Chief Executive stated that the figures in respect of Cardiff reflect trends 
in other UK Core Cities where there are huge macro-economic trends.  To 
address the issues there was a need to integrate public services and bring 
together resources.  Ms Battle added that the health service has been listening 
to what people want, which is health care in their communities where they can 
access it, in suitable localities and to include services for health and wellbeing 
such as cookery, gym, library as well as medical treatments.  Officers added 
that there was a correlation between mental health issues and deprivation and 
this tended to be age related.

 Members referred to the 46 indicators and the stark contrast between some of 
the figures; Members asked how the data was used and how key priorities 
would be identified from the 46 indicators.  The Leader stated when the PSB 
launched they identified a small number of things to focus on, he added that it 
was important to note that some things don’t come through in one year and 
took some time to address.  The Chief Executive added that in his experience 
of this kind of exercise it was important to manage a number of priorities and 
resource them effectively to have the right impact.  With regards to the Health 
perspective, Ms Battle stated that they have over 60 indicators from the 
Government, and they can’t all be delivered on so they chose 5, and agreed 
that as part of the PSB they will chose priorities based on consultation.  

Page 2



The Leader added that they would be engaging a challenge advisor to identify 
the key priorities in the City, using the Board model to identify new partners 
and ways of working to address issues such as Education and include the 
business community.  It was important to put in place robust arrangements 
and focus on a small number of priorities.

In respect of the data, there were some restrictions such as census data but 
data was as up to date as it can be.  The Leader added that there were other 
linkages between data sets such as the living wage, and encouraging 
opportunities through e.g. traineeships with partners, can build momentum and 
have a significant impact on things like NEET and deprivation.

 With reference to NEETS Members could not see a huge improvement from 
2012-17, whereas good examples of reducing NEETS had been seen in 
Rhondda Cynon Taf.  The Leader stated that there are representatives from 
the Welsh Government on the PSB, changes in National Legislation will help 
with making an impact and the Board is able to influence the government.  
From the Third Party perspective Ms Hendrickson Brown stated that with 
regards to Communities First the impact had been on the most marginalised 
and deprived communities, it takes time to build that trust in the communities 
and continuity of investment was important.

 Members sought assurance that people in the most hard to reach and 
deprived areas of the City had been reached to ensure that the Improvement 
plan reflects a true picture.  Officers explained that they have engaged hard to 
reach people after looking at the analysis of Ask Cardiff they had put in place 
information on social media, using universities and working with the Third 
Sector; they went into workplaces where there had previously been a low BME 
response rate and supported this with focus groups, worked with the Refugee 
Council and worked more in the community.

RESOLVED: At the conclusion of the meeting the Committee discussed the evidence 
presented, following which they tasked the Chairperson of the Policy Review and 
Performance Scrutiny Committee to write to the witnesses to thank them for 
attending the meeting and set out the comments made by Members.

53 :   CITY OF CARDIFF CORPORATE PLAN 2017-19 

The Chairperson welcomed Councillor Phil Bale, Leader, Paul Orders, Chief 
Executive; Joseph Reay, Head of Performance and Partnerships and Dylan Owen, 
Head of the Cabinet Office to the meeting.

The Chairperson invited the Leader to make a statement in which he said that this 
had been a journey over a number of years, especially with regards to the 
discussions with the Wales Audit Office. There had been improvements to the layout 
of the Plan including moving away from portfolios and focussing on key priorities; 
including growth budget process and reflecting future generation commitments.  
Targets would be added in due course.

Members received a Presentation on the Corporate Plan which included information 
on:

Page 3



 Hierarchy of Plans
 Shaping the Corporate Plan
 Emerging Requirements of the Corporate Plan
 5 Ways of Working
 Self Assessment
 Priorities: What we need to achieve
 Target Setting
 Engagement & Communication
 Next Steps

The Chairperson thanked officers for the presentation and invited questions and 
comments from Members:

 Members noted that the priorities in the Corporate Plan were different to 
priorities in the Liveable City plan and asked what the correlation was between 
plans.  Officers explained that the various Plans had different timescales and 
this was not ideal; a self-assessment process was needed to give Directorates 
the opportunity to feed in to make the correlation between Plans seamless.

 Members asked whether there was any kind of post mortem undertaken on 
previous years’ Plans in order to learn from achievements made.  Officers 
advised that they fully appraise the Plan against previous commitments and 
future challenges.  The Improvement Plan in October would look at what has 
been done, however this was constrained by Welsh Government and advice 
from Wales Audit Office.  The Chief Executive added that they make the most 
of the Improvement Plan and establish principles to take into the Corporate 
Plan the following year.

 Members were concerned about the information in the Plan in relation to 
Vulnerable and Homeless people.  The Chief Executive stated that Officers in 
the service area are aware that the figures have increased significantly in the 
past 18 months and there was work going on to understand the reasons for it.

 Members commended the work on Homelessness undertaken by Officers, 
Members noted the increase in Homelessness and that there is usually a 
reduction in April/May time but this was not the case in the past year.

 Members asked about the implications of the Future Generations Act, officers 
advised that there were similarities between the current Wellbeing objectives 
and some continuity of work and previous planning; lots if internal testing had 
been done with the commissioner and officers were fully mindful of legislation. 
The PSB would embark on a planning journey and any changes would be 
known in twelve months time; when delivery plans are in place officers will 
ensure that they are planning/acting/complaint with the Future Generations 
Act.

 Members asked how the political mandate could be aligned with the PSB 
strategy.  The Chief Executive stated that partners understand the significance 
of political priorities and this is reflected in the planning therefore the plans are 
aligned.

Page 4



RESOLVED: At the conclusion of the meeting the Committee discussed the evidence 
presented, following which they tasked the Chairperson of the Policy Review and 
Performance Scrutiny Committee to write to the witnesses to thank them for 
attending the meeting and set out the comments made by Members.

54 :   ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME - PROGRESS 
REPORT. 

The Chairperson welcomed Councillor Graham Hinchey, Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Services and Performance, Paul Orders, Chief Executive; Joseph Reay, 
Head of Performance & Partnerships; and Dean Thomas Operational Manager to the 
meeting. 

The Chairperson invited the Cabinet Member to make a statement in which he 
explained that the Organisational Development Plan was a moving feast that came 
out of the WAO report, it was a vehicle for change.  There were two key principles; 
Commissioning and Reshaping Services, People and Places which drive the 
organisation.  The report would provide an update on the progress made in the last 
twelve months and would be the last report of the administration.

Members were provided with a presentation which included information on: 
• Background of the Organisational Development Programme (ODP)
• Update on progress
• Links with budget savings
• Key next steps

The Chairperson invited questions and comments from Members:

• Members asked for an update on the CRM.  The Chief Executive stated that 
discussions had been held with the support team, technical issues had been 
worked through including software, coding etc. and that work was completed 
just after Christmas, results of this work had been tested since then and an 
update report was due to be presented imminently. In practical terms, many 
databases needed to be joined up.

• Members made reference to the MASH and asked how well it was working to 
date.  The Chief Executive stated that it has brought all key protection 
agencies together and to the front door; feedback and the Chief Executive’s 
impression was very good. MASH is all about early intervention, working with 
South Wales Police on issues such as Child Protection, this has brought about 
an initial spike in numbers, as cases were now easier to report; however, the 
ability to respond has also speeded up.  This was one of a number of 
measures to improve safety and was working effectively to date.

• Members noted that the RAG rating for office rationalisation was RED/AMBER 
and asked why this was if the project was making the expected savings.  It 
was explained that it was a complex project, which was often deadline critical, 
for this reason it was never going to be GREEN as there were a range of 
issues involved in each move.

• Members asked if there was the leadership and management capacity to 
make the ambitions work.  Members were advised that the Organisational 

Page 5



Development Plan had highlighted a need to develop staff in some areas; 
there was a need for some fresh thinking, on the job training in conjunction 
with Cardiff and Vale College and recruiting some new people.  Meanwhile 
step changes have been made, sickness absence was down and the quality 
and number of PPDR’s was up; it was noted that changes take time to embed.  
With regard to staff in social services, the Chief Executive noted that extra was 
being asked of people and there had been a need to increase capacity, MASH 
would not have been able to happen if capacity had not been increased.

• Members asked for clarification on the criteria required for bringing service 
areas into the Organisational Development programme and for service areas 
leaving the programme to go back to business as usual.  Officers advised that 
there would be a significant change requirement or it could be for corporate 
visibility such as budget savings.  It was added that there was room for further 
streamlining and that some service areas could be moved  out of the 
programme. Before a project is closed the OD team work with the service 
area; a project report is produced and signed off.

• Members noted that the Corporate Plan should drive the projects too and 
asked if it then becomes less of a performance improvement vehicle and more 
a reshaping services as core business vehicle.  Officers agreed that it would, it 
was a mechanism for bringing together project management and services and 
skills.

RESOLVED: At the conclusion of the meeting the Committee discussed the evidence 
presented, following which they tasked the Chairperson of the Policy Review and 
Performance Scrutiny Committee to write to the witnesses to thank them for 
attending the meeting and set out the comments made by Members.

55 :   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting of the Policy Review and Performance Scrutiny Committee is 
scheduled for 15 February 2017, County Hall.

The meeting terminated at Time Not Specified

Page 6



CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF             
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

POLICY REVIEW & PERFORMANCE 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                                            14 March 2017

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP MANAGEMENT AND SAP SYSTEMS: PROGRESS 
UPDATE

Reason for this Report

1. To provide the Committee with an update in respect of progress in applying 

enabling technology to improve efficiencies in delivering customer services. 

Background

2. The Committee has responsibility within its terms of reference for scrutiny of the 

Council’s management of its performance and improvement, and specific 

responsibility for scrutiny of e-government and ICT, contact centre services and 

service access.

3. In January 2017, the Committee received a progress report on the Organisational 

Development Programme. The Committee commended the Council on the 

generally strong progress it was making in responding to the Wales Audit Office 

Corporate Follow-On Report.  However, Members’ attention was drawn to 

ongoing performance issues with the Council’s Customer Relationship 

Management (CRM) system, affecting both the roll out of Phase 1 and the 

development of future phases. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



4. The Committee therefore, in its letter to the Cabinet, requested an update on 

progress made to resolve the technological issues that would enable 

improvement in customer focussed online services.

Issues

5. Central to the Council’s improvement is the Organisational Development 

Programme (ODP). The ODP is comprised of two portfolios (the Reshaping 

Services Portfolio and the Enabling and Commissioning Portfolio). Each portfolio 

contains multiple projects that address a range of issues identified in the Council’s 

Follow-on Statement of Action, developed in response to the WAO Corporate 

Assessment.

 

6. The Reshaping Services Portfolio exists to explore enabling technologies, and 

develop working practices to facilitate the reshaping of key services across the 

Council. The aim is to better understand and manage customer demand, re-align 

services and functions currently delivered across a number of service silos, and 

deliver services at a reduced cost so that they are sustainable within the tough 

financial climate. 

7. A strand of the Reshaping Services Portfolio is the Customer Focus & Enabling 

Technology programme. Enabling Technology is defined as ‘establishing and 

exploiting standardised technology across the Council to improve efficiencies and 

maximise the capture and use of customer data’. The aim is to drive down the 

cost of delivering services, improve the quality and consistency of customer 

service, and eliminate unnecessary duplication of effort through a rigorous 

integration of “back office” processes.

8. A key project of the Customer Focus and Enabling Technology Programme is the 

Online Services (CRM & Web) Project, on which the Committee has requested a 

progress update.

Page 8



Previous scrutiny

9. In November 2016, following scrutiny of the WAO Statement of Action, the 

Committee noted that the Council could not deliver a customer portal until the 

digitalisation issues currently experienced by C2C operators were resolved,  

indicating an intention to keep a close eye on developments.  Members had also 

indicated to the Leader their frustration that the Council was not further ahead in 

resolving the technological integration of the Council’s SAP system with the 

customer facing system, CRM.  

10.Following scrutiny of the Customer Services Strategy in December 2016, the 

Committee noted that the Council could not deliver a customer portal until the 

digitalisation issues currently experienced by C2C operators were resolved. 

Members heard that complex digital stories are developing, and that resolving the 

link between SAP and CRM will create the potential to link cameras, in-car 

technology and C2C. Members therefore re-iterated that the Council should have 

a date in mind as to when the problem would be resolved, and requested an 

update on CRM/SAP when there was something significant to report back. 

11.Following its scrutiny of the ODP progress in January the Committee expressed 

concern that the CRM technological difficulties the Council had faced for some 

time remained unresolved. Members were seeking tangible progress in resolving 

the technological issues that would enable improvement in customer-focussed 

online services. 

12.Having been advised on three occasions that the Council’s technology partner 

has put in place its global escalation team to resolve matters, the Committee 

noted that the findings of the team’s investigations and analysis were to be 

reported upon shortly, and stressed that the matter required resolution.  To that 

end, the Chair would request an update on CRM at Committee’s 14 March 2017 

meeting. 

Page 9



Way Forward

13.  Councillor Graham Hinchey (Cabinet Member for Performance & Resources) has 

been invited to attend for this item.  

14.Paul Orders (Chief Executive), Christine Salter (Corporate Director Resources) 

and Sarah McGill (Director of Communities, Housing & Customer Services) will be 

in attendance to update the Committee.

Legal Implications

15.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters, there are no direct legal implications. 

However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations 

for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising 

from those recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council 

must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural 

requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person 

exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with 

the procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure 

Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken 

having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be 

reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

Financial Implications

16.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters, there are no direct financial 

implications at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However, 

Page 10



financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations 

for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications 

arising from those recommendations.

RECOMMENDATION

17. The Committee is recommended to note the report and the information provided 

at the meeting, consider whether it wishes to refer any comments or concerns to 

the Cabinet, and whether it wishes to commend further scrutiny to its successors 

in the forthcoming administration.

DAVINA FIORE
Director of Governance & Legal Services 
8 March 2017

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 19

CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF 
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

POLICY REVIEW & PERFORMANCE
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE          14 March 2017

PERFORMANCE REPORT QUARTER 3 2016– 17

Reason for this Report

1. To present the City of Cardiff Council’s Performance Report for Quarter 3 

(October to December) of the 2016-17 financial year, providing the Policy 

Review and Performance Scrutiny Committee with an opportunity to monitor 

performance. The Performance Report for Quarter 3 2016-17 is attached at 

Appendix 1.

Background

2. The Council’s performance management framework includes the production 

of quarterly performance reports designed to provide an overview of 

Directorate performance. Effective scrutiny of performance is an important 

component of the framework as it creates the opportunity to challenge 

performance levels, and helps the Council reprioritise efforts to secure the 

delivery of its priorities and targets.  

3. Each quarter the Policy Review & Performance Scrutiny Committee receives 

the overall performance report for the Council, while the four other Scrutiny 

Committees receive the reports of those Directorates that fall within their 

terms of reference. The Policy Review & Performance Scrutiny Committee 

perform two roles:

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



Page 2 of 19

 It considers the overall performance of the organisation and the actions 

taken to ensure that agreed targets and commitments are delivered.

 It scrutinises the performance of the services that fall under the terms of 

reference of the Committee. This includes the performance of four 

Directorates: Corporate Resources; Governance & Legal Services; 

property elements of Economic Development; and customer elements of 

Communities, Housing & Customer Services. 

Performance Overview

4. As in Quarters 1 and 2, the Performance Support Group (PSG) identified 

performance issues of strategic importance for discussion at the relevant 

Senior Management Team meeting. These conversations have informed the 

content of this report.

Quarter 3 Performance Report Structure

5. The Council’s framework for performance management reporting has been 

under review as part of a project within the Organisational Development 

Programme. The structure of the quarterly report represents a continuing 

evolution of the Council’s performance management framework, and is the 

result of continuing stakeholder engagement, including engagement with this 

Committee. The full Quarter 3 report considered by the Cabinet at its meeting 

on 16 February 2017 remains available should Members wish to look behind 

the high level picture, and can be accessed here1: 

1 http://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s14569/CAB%2016%20Feb%202017%20-

%20Q3%20Performance%20-%20Appendix%20A%20-%20Q3%202016-

17%20Performance%20Report.pdf

Page 14

http://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s14569/CAB%2016%20Feb%202017%20-%20Q3%20Performance%20-%20Appendix%20A%20-%20Q3%202016-17%20Performance%20Report.pdf
http://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s14569/CAB%2016%20Feb%202017%20-%20Q3%20Performance%20-%20Appendix%20A%20-%20Q3%202016-17%20Performance%20Report.pdf
http://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s14569/CAB%2016%20Feb%202017%20-%20Q3%20Performance%20-%20Appendix%20A%20-%20Q3%202016-17%20Performance%20Report.pdf
http://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s14569/CAB%2016%20Feb%202017%20-%20Q3%20Performance%20-%20Appendix%20A%20-%20Q3%202016-17%20Performance%20Report.pdf


Page 3 of 19

6. As in Quarter 2, a ‘Council Overview Scorecard’ accompanies the full report. 

This scorecard is designed to give an at-a-glance picture of the health and 

effectiveness of the organisation. The Scorecard covers four key areas:

 Financial 

 Customer 

 Internal Processes

 Learning & Growth.

7. The specific contents of each area of the scorecard will vary from quarter to 

quarter to highlight the most important achievements and challenges in 

relation to these four topics.

8. Members will recall that, for the first time at Quarter 2 16-17, this Committee 

received a balanced scorecard for each of the Council’s Directorates. This 

approach provides the Committee with an at-a-glance picture of each Council 

Directorate, in addition to the Corporate Scorecard. The intention is that 

strategic scrutiny and challenge of the Council’s performance is made more 

effective, as accessibility to the key messages is improved. 

9. In view of this Committee’s remit to consider the overall performance of the 

organisation, and the actions taken to ensure that agreed targets and 

commitments are delivered, the seven scorecards attached at Appendix 1 
should assist with effective scrutiny. 

10. Following Quarter 2 performance scrutiny, the Committee specifically 

requested a summary of ‘Corporate highs and lows’, to accompany the seven 

balanced scorecards. The Corporate Performance Team has responded by 

drafting ‘Achievements and Challenges Quarter 3 2016-2017’, attached at 

Appendix 1a.

11. For clarity, the suite of performance papers attached to this report that make 

up Appendix 1 are as follows:

a. Achievements and Challenges Quarter 3 2016-17

b. Council Overview Scorecard for Quarter 3 2016-17
Page 15



Page 4 of 19

c. City Operations Scorecard 2016-17

d. Communities Housing & Customer Services Scorecard 2016-17

e. Economic Development Scorecard 2016-17

f. Education & Lifelong Learning Scorecard 2016-17

g. Social Services Scorecard 2016-17

h. Resources Scorecard 2016-17.

SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES – COUNCIL OVERVIEW SCORECARD 

12. Members’ attention is drawn to the following key issues highlighted in 

Appendix 1b, the Council Overview Scorecard:

Sickness Absence  

13. The level of sickness absence in Quarter 3 was lower than in Quarter 2 for 

six of the seven Directorates. The Council–wide figure was also lower for 

Quarter 3 than for Quarter 2. However, the year-end forecast is 10.63 days 

lost per full time equivalent (FTE) employee. This is worse than last year’s 

performance and the Council is not expecting to achieve the year-end target 

of 8.5 days lost.

14. Senior management and human resources colleagues have been working 

with staff across the Council to reinforce the procedural and cultural 

messages in relation to staff sickness absence, and to ensure that managers 

have the skills and knowledge to implement the policy appropriately.

15. Actions arising from the Quarter 2 STAR Chamber include a review of

previously agreed actions regarding sickness absence, particularly in relation 

to Social Services and City Operations. A review of sickness absence will be 

conducted in Culture and Arts venues ahead of the Alternative Delivery 

Model (ADM) decision. An update will also be sought in relation to Social 

Services Domiciliary Care policy, to include clarification of 48-72 hour refrain 

Page 16



Page 5 of 19

from contact with clients, in relation to diarrhoea and vomiting advice from 

Public Health.

Budgets

16. Directorate Budgets are projected to be overspent by £7.032 million, which 

primarily relates to Social Services (£5.981 million) and City Operations 

(£955,000). It is anticipated that continued management actions will result in 

reductions to the over-spend by the year-end.

17. Collective Directorate performance in achieving savings proposed for 2016-

17 is currently projected at 76%, with Communities, Housing and Customer 

Services at 68% and Resources at 92%. In addition, the report has a 

representation which breaks down the spend for each Directorate across 

staff costs, overtime and agency.  This shows that spend is broadly in line 

with the budget assumptions for the year to date.

Information Requests 

18. The proportion of Freedom of Information requests responded to within the 

required timescales was 92.17% in Quarter 3, compared with 92.32% in 

Quarter 2 and 88% in Quarter 1.

Customer Insight 

19. Customer satisfaction with Library and Hub services remains high at 99%. 

Customer satisfaction regarding calls to C2C also remains high with 96% 

satisfaction for calls handled in English and 97% satisfaction for calls handled 

in Welsh. Performance in respect of Calls to the Repair Reporting Line has 

fluctuated from 91% in Quarter 1 to 86% in Quarter 2, and was 89% in 

Quarter 3.

Page 17



Page 6 of 19

20. The proportion of parking permit applications submitted online increased to 

77.5%, and the proportion of requests for caddies and extra bags made 

online was 74.3% in Quarter 3, compared with 75.9% in Quarter 2.

21. The number of complaints has increased in Quarter 3 to 527, from 374 in 

Quarter 2 and 425 in Quarter 1. 94% of complaints were responded to within 

20 days, the same as in Quarter 2.

SUMMARY OF KEY ISSUES – DIRECTORATES

City Operations – Appendix 1c

22. Planning Applications – Following improved performance in Quarter 1 and 2, 

performance in Quarter 3 continues to be above target and well above 2015-

16 performance. In Quarter 3, 33.3% of major applications were determined 

within 13 weeks, and 95.1% of householder applications were determined 

within 8 weeks. The Quarter 3 Performance of both indicators is above 

target. 

23. Cleanliness - Streets – Performance in Quarter 3 dipped, with 84.2% of the 

highways and land inspected being of a high or acceptable standard of 

cleanliness, compared to 98.1% in Quarter 2. This was due to the need to 

move resources away from street cleaning and towards leaf collection during 

autumn, to prevent issues arising from uncollected leaves. 

24. Fly tipping – Performance remains very high, with 98.5% of reported fly-

tipping incidents cleared within five working days. This compares well to the 

Quarter 2 figure of 98.1% and an annual target of 90%.

25. Budget – There remains a projected overspend associated largely with the 

Leisure ADM savings shortfall and, as before, removing this from the position 

results in an overall underspend for the Directorate. There are additional 

savings shortfalls relating to planned restructures and digitisation, mitigated 

by overachievements against certain savings proposals as well as income 

Page 18



Page 7 of 19

from charges, concessionary fares travel reimbursement and Bereavement 

Services. 

Communities, Housing and Customer Services – Appendix 1d

26. Supporting people to be job ready – In Quarter 3 30,845 people were 

assisted through the Into Work Service, which is well above target and more 

than the 21,000 people assisted in Quarter 2. The percentage of people 

feeling ‘job ready’ after completing the course remains high and stable at 

99%.

27. Housing - Homelessness – During Quarter 3 the Outreach Service made an 

intervention within 3 days on every single occasion they were made aware of 

a rough sleeper, so performance is at 100%. A review of the management of 

accommodation used by rough sleepers is expected to be completed by the 

target date of March 2017.

28. Use of Lettable accommodation – The number of days taken to let this type 

of accommodation continues to improve and in Quarter 3 was 78.35, 

compared to a Quarter 2 result of 82. However, performance is worse than 

the target of 65 for Quarter 3.

29. Delayed transfers of care (DToC) – Housing continue to develop their joint 

working arrangements with Social Services and Hospitals and their efforts to 

reduce the number of Cardiff residents who experience a DToC,are 

progressing well.

30. Budget – Despite savings shortfalls relating to the implementation of the 

Alarm Receiving Centre and roll-out of the Libraries and Hubs strategy, the 

Directorate has a projected underspend of £119,000 at year-end. 

Contributing to this is additional income from renovation grants and 

administration fees, as well as underspends on supplies and service budgets.

Page 19



Page 8 of 19

Economic Development – Appendix 1e

31. Employment – The number of jobs created or safeguarded through Council 

support has increased in Quarter 3 to 586, compared to 499 in Quarter 2 and 

an annual target of 500. A site north of Wood Street has been selected by 

Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs for a relocation and expansion that 

could deliver up to 3500 jobs. Headquarters for a major international 

development charity will be established in Cardiff creating 50 new skilled 

jobs.

32. Land development and regeneration – The quantity of Grade A office space 

committed for development continues to increase and in Quarter 3 was 

285,700 sq. ft., compared to 180,000 in Quarter 2 and a year-end target of 

150,000. Work to deliver 300,000 sq. ft. of office space in Cardiff Enterprise 

Zone by March 2018 is on target. Work to develop the International Sports 

Village, including a review of the plan for the waterfront site by March 2017, 

is on target.

33. Waste – 3,195 tonnes of green bag recycling was collected from households 

over the Christmas period, an increase of 5% from last year and an increase 

of 25% from 2015-16. Construction of the new Lamby Way Household 

Recycling Centre is due to be completed by February 2017.

34. Budget – The Directorate has experienced shortfalls against savings targets, 

largely associated with Office Rationalisation and City Centre Management. 

Overspends have been offset in part by additional income from advertising 

and City Hall functions and also reduced spending on Cardiff Branding and 

Workshop NDR costs. St. David’s Hall and the New Theatre also continue to 

project a balanced position; however, this will be closely monitored as the 

Arts and Cultural Venues ADM progresses this year.

35. The recently formed Commercial Services has a projected underspend that 

will deliver an overall underspend for the Directorate at year-end. This is 

despite savings shortfalls in areas including digitisation, depot security and 

vehicle rationalisation. Additional pressures have been experienced through 

increased operating costs in Recycling Waste Services but there has been 
Page 20



Page 9 of 19

mitigation from additional income, operational savings and savings on unfilled 

posts, as well as a projected surplus within Facilities Management. 

Education and Lifelong Learning – Appendix 1f

36. Most of the results available in Quarter 2 were provisional. In most cases 

these results are now final and where this is the case, this will be highlighted.

Attainment at Key Stage 4

37. Level 2+ Threshold – The result for the percentage of pupils achieving this 

threshold (5 GCSEs at A*–C grade including A*–C in English or Welsh and 

Mathematics) is now final at 62.5%. This is higher than the provisional figure 

(62%) and higher than the result for the 2014-15 academic year (59.3%), but 

lower than the target for the 2015-16 academic year (65%). The result is also 

above the Wales average of 60%.

38. Level 2+ Threshold (Free school meals) – The result for the percentage of 

FSM pupils achieving Level 2+ Threshold (definition same as in point 37) is 

now final at 39.3%. This is higher than the provisional figure (35.4%) and 

higher than the result for the 2014-15 academic year (32.23%), but lower 

than the target for the 2015-16 academic year (45.45%).

39. Level 2 Threshold – The result for the percentage of pupils achieving this 

threshold (5 GCSEs at A*–C grade) is now final at 84.3%. This is higher than 

the provisional figure (84%) and higher than the result for the 2014-15 

academic year (81.06%), but lower than the target for the 2015-16 academic 

year (87.08%). The result is in line with the Wales average of 84%.

40. Level 1 Threshold – The result for the percentage of pupils achieving this 

threshold (5 GCSEs at A–G grade) is now final at 94.4%. This is higher than 

the provisional figure (94%) and higher than the result for the 2014-15 

academic year (92.15%), but lower than the target for the 2015-16 academic 

year (97.81%). The result is below the Wales average.

Page 21



Page 10 of 19

Attainment at Key Stage 3

41. Core Subject Indicator – The result for this measure was final in Quarter 2 

and is 86.6%. This is higher than the result for the 2014-15 academic year 

(83.4%) and higher than the target for the 2015-16 academic year (85%). 

Attainment at Foundation

42. Outcome 5 in the Foundation Phase Outcome Indicator – The result for this 

measure was final in Quarter 2 and is 88.9%. This is higher than the result for 

the 2014-15 academic year (86.73%) and higher than the target for the 2015-

16 academic year (86%). The rate of improvement in Cardiff is greater than 

that across Wales. 

43. Attendance (These real time figures may change once they are finalised) – 

The Primary School real time result for Quarter 3 was 95.4%, which is 

identical to the target for this academic year. The Secondary School real time 

result for Quarter 3 was 94.3%, which is just below the target for this 

academic year of 95%.

44. The Band A investment programme in relation to School Organisation, 

Access and Planning is progressing well. Construction of Eastern High is 

progressing well and the new schools being completed as part of Band A will 

increase primary places in English medium schools by 60 and in Welsh 

medium schools by 90.

45. Out of County placements are currently showing a projected overspend of 

£612,000 and the savings target is £900,000. A joint project group has been 

established between Education and Children’s Services, and risk cases are 

identified early and discussed regularly at Risk Management meetings. 

Page 22



Page 11 of 19

Governance and Legal Services – (No Balanced Scorecard)

46. The Welsh Language Commissioner to date has received 14 complaints in 

relation to alleged breaches of the Welsh Language Standards. The Bilingual 

Working Group continues to review the investigations on a quarterly basis 

and Cabinet are notified of issues of concern.

Resources – Appendix 1g

47. Revenue collection – The percentage of Council Tax due that was received 

by the authority at the end of Quarter 3, was 81.59%. This result tends to 

increase throughout the year, and is forecast to achieve the year-end target 

of 97%. The current result is slightly lower than for the same period last year 

(81.66%) and the difference in performance equates to approximately 

£108,000.

48. Non-Domestic Rates – The percentage of NNDR collected (net of refunds) at 

the end of Quarter 3 was 82.03%. This measure is forecast to achieve the 

year-end target of 96.50%. The current result is slightly lower than for the 

same period last year (81.80%).

49. Work is being undertaken to automate additional online transactions to 

improve the customer experience.

Social Services – Appendix 1h

50. Staff vacancies – At the end of Quarter 3, 23.3% of posts within social work 

teams were vacant. This has improved on the Quarter 2 position of 24.8%, 

but is worse than the year-end target of 18% and performance for Quarter 3 

last year of 21.6%. 

51. Looked After Children – At the end of Quarter 3, 9.9% of the children taken 

into care during the year had returned home. This equates to 88 of the 893 

children taken into care. The Quarter 2 figure was 6.2% but there is no target 

or 2015-16 data, so no further comparison is possible.
Page 23



Page 12 of 19

52. Children supported to remain living within their family – Of the 1,588 children 

with a Care and Support Plan at 31 December 2016, 898 were living at home 

(56.5%). This is slightly down on Quarter 2 performance (57.3%) but there is 

no target or 2015-16 data, so no further comparison is possible.

53. Adult protection enquiries – At the end of Quarter 3, there had been 271 

enquiries and 266 of these were completed within 7 working days (98.2%). 

The Quarter 2 figure was 97.6% but there is no target or 2015-16 data, so no 

further comparison is possible.

54. Delayed Transfers of Care – The Quarter 3 figure of 4.16 (people delayed for 

social care reasons per 100,000 of population aged over 75) is a significant 

improvement on the figure at this time last year (7.95) and is close to the 

Quarter 2 figure (3.10) despite the challenges in the health and social care 

system. 

55. Direct Payments – The number of adults in need of care and support who 

received a direct payment at the end of Quarter 3 was 707. This is higher 

than in Quarter 2 (679) but there is no target or 2015-16 data, so no further 

comparison is possible. There are currently 45 people in the process of 

obtaining a direct payment. 

56. Paid Carers – There continues to be capacity issues across Cardiff and the 

UK within the domiciliary and nursing care home market, largely due to a 

shortage of paid carers. A number of engagement sessions have taken place 

both within and outside Cardiff with Care Providers to encourage growth in 

this area. 

57. Budget – Social Services has a projected overspend, resulting mainly from 

savings shortfalls in both Adults’ and Children’s Services. Significant 

additional pressures in Adults’ Services include increased costs of and 

demands for domiciliary care, while there have been underspends in relation 

to residential care and staff budgets. In addition to savings shortfalls, the 

overspend in Children’s Services has been impacted further by agency and 

Page 24



Page 13 of 19

external fostering costs, with some mitigation delivered by savings on 

guardianship orders and internal fostering and adoption budgets.

 Overview of Previous Performance Scrutiny 

58. The Committee agreed during its Work Programming for 2016-17 that the full 

Committee would monitor performance quarterly. Two Members agreed to 

represent the Committee in performance management reporting matters, and 

as such have been interviewed by the Wales Audit Office 

59. The Committee has acknowledged that the Council continues the process of 

refreshing its performance management reporting arrangements. Members of 

the Committee continue to enjoy improved lines of communication on 

performance matters and increasing support for the internal challenge of 

Council performance. Meaningful engagement with the Committee’s 

performance representatives is benefitting the continued development of the 

Council’s approach to Performance Management

60. Monitoring Corporate Performance, and the emerging new approaches to 

performance management, has been a significant part of the Committees 

work programme in 2016-17. Members may wish to reflect on some concerns 

highlighted, and how the Council has addressed them.

61. At Quarter 4 2015-16 the Committee:

 Was concerned at gaps in the Performance Indicator (PI) data provided 

for their consideration; 

 Considered the downward trend in sickness absence was very 

encouraging and commended the Cabinet for its achievements, 

particularly in Directorates such as City Operations. Members felt it 

would be useful to identify to what extent this improvement was a result 

of management action, and were concerned that the Employee 

Counselling Service was oversubscribed;

Page 25



Page 14 of 19

 Was concerned that at the end of the 2015-16 monitoring year, there 

were performance indicators still RAG rated amber, and looked forward 

to a more consistent approach to RAG rating across the organisation as 

the new performance monitoring arrangements come to fruition;

 Highlighted that the compliance level of PPDR completion meant 1,000 

staff were still not receiving a PPDR, and this needed to be addressed;

 Acknowledged the complexity of the Council’s quarterly performance 

report, in attempting to simultaneously present the high level 

overarching corporate performance picture alongside the performance 

of individual services; and

 Flagged up that ward Councillors would find geographic performance 

analysis useful.

62. In response, Cabinet recognised that there was more work to do to meet the 

challenging stretch targets set by the organisation. They recognised the 

value of analysing the causes of improved sickness absence rates; and 

indicated a consistent approach to RAG ratings was being developed as part 

of the refresh of the Council’s Performance Management Strategy. Cabinet 

also agreed work would continue to improve performance in the PPDR 

process; recognised the usefulness of geographically-based performance 

analysis for ward Councillors; and indicated the Corporate Performance 

Team would work with service-based Performance Leads to explore the 

possibility of analysing and presenting relevant performance information on 

this basis.

63. At Quarter 1 2016-17 the Committee’s overarching comment to Cabinet was 

that the Quarter 1 refreshed quarterly report remained complex and heavy 

going, and looked forward to the Quarter 2 report addressing the need for 

greater simplification. The corporate overview pages of the report had been 

summarised into a two-page Balanced Scorecard presentation. Members felt 

this was commendable, however there was a need for an ‘in-between’ report, 

more detailed than the Balanced Scorecard summary but less weighty than 

Page 26



Page 15 of 19

the current full report. The Committee therefore suggested a one-page 

summary for each Directorate would usefully sit behind the Balanced 

Scorecard. The Committee added it felt;

 robust work was required throughout the organisation on target setting, 

comparing quarterly results, and not just annual results.

 there was a need for consistency in finance and performance reporting 

in respect of target setting;

 the report needed to enable Members to perform their ward Councillor 

role, and enable them to hold the Cabinet to account.  Members 

suggested that an option of online ‘drilling down’ would be useful both 

for Members and for the public;

 the need to re-iterate that other scrutiny committees’ needs in executing 

their role of monitoring frontline services should be taken into account;

 quarter 1 sickness figures were concerning, particularly that the Council 

was unable to influence schools in tackling sickness absence.

 the Council should remind governing bodies that they offer a service 

whereby governors can gain access to sickness information should they 

require it; and

 progress had been made in the level of PPDRs, but it remained 

concerned as to how the organisation would tackle the remaining 10% 

of staff still not receiving PPDRs.

64. In response the Cabinet indicated that the Performance Reporting Project 

team had been tasked with developing a reporting format specifically for the 

Committee, consistent with the Council’s overall reporting framework. They  

accepted that an option of ‘drilling down’ into performance would be useful for 

Members, and for the public, and that work was underway to develop ways in 

which the Council reports its performance to other audiences, focussing on 
Page 27



Page 16 of 19

accessible reporting formats such as infographics. The ambition of this work 

would be to create an online portal with a ‘top layer’ of easily accessible 

narrative, and infographic-driven performance information, underpinned by a 

second layer of more detailed performance information. 

65. At Quarter 2 2016-17 the Committee acknowledged that the Council was still 

in the process of refreshing its performance management reporting 

arrangements. Members were generally very happy with the extension of the 

balanced scorecard approach to each Directorate. However, Members 

remained unclear which Performance Indicators were proving challenging 

and which were improving performance. The Committee therefore:  

 requested, as part of the quarterly performance report, a corporate 

summary of highs and lows during the quarter, highlighting clearly where 

current performance concerns are for the Council;

 expressed concern about the Quarter 2 sickness absence projections 

given that in every Directorate projections outstrip targets;  

 accepted the offer of greater detail in respect of the Education-non-

school service sickness absence rates;

 considered the title ‘Council Overview Scorecard’ was misleading. 

Members noted that the KPIs used in the performance report measured 

performance against the Council’s Improvement Objectives alone, and 

not improvement in Council services in general. Therefore, whilst the 

Scorecard provides a strategic overview it is not an all-encompassing 

view and this should be made clearer;

 re-iterated it’s view that the public should have access to a level of 

performance data that facilitates an assessment of Council 

performance; and

Page 28



Page 17 of 19

 re-iterated that some scrutiny committees focus on day-to-day 

performance and are keen to have a bespoke report that enables very 

focussed monitoring of frontline services.

66. In a very committed response the Cabinet indicated that the Corporate 

Performance Team would be developing a summary of the ‘Corporate Highs 

and Lows’ and invited Members of the Committee to engage with the 

Performance Team in developing the summary. They indicated Education 

and Lifelong Learning would provide the Corporate Performance Team with a 

detailed account of non-schools sickness absence for consideration with the 

Quarter 3 performance report.  In conjunction with the Communications team, 

the Corporate Performance Team would develop a public facing performance 

report, summarising the Council’s Annual Improvement report, National 

Strategic Indicators and Performance Assessment Measurements for 2015-

16. The Cabinet also committed to developing reports better suited to the 

specific requirements of individual scrutiny committees, in line with the 

ongoing review of scrutiny.

67. Having been offered a more detailed account of non-schools sickness 

absence, at the meeting Members will have a case-study opportunity to focus 

on the Directorate’s sickness performance. 

Way Forward

68. Councillor Graham Hinchey (Cabinet Member for Performance & Resources) 

has been invited to attend for this item. Christine Salter (Corporate Director 

Resources) will also be in attendance. OM for Corporate Performance and 

Improvement Leon Goddard has been invited to present the report.  Jackie 

Turner (Assistant Director Education and Lifelong Learning) will attend to 

support the case study on non-schools sickness absence performance and 

answer Members’ questions.

Page 29



Page 18 of 19

Legal Implications

69. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters, there are no direct legal 

implications. However, legal implications may arise when the matters under 

review are implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with 

recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any 

legal implications arising from those recommendations. All decisions taken by 

or on behalf of the Council must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; 

(b) comply with any procedural requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the 

powers of the body or person exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) 

be undertaken in accordance with the procedural requirements imposed by 

the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; 

(f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the Council's fiduciary 

duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the 

circumstances.

Financial Implications

70. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters, there are no direct financial 

implications at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However, 

financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with 

recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any 

financial implications arising from those recommendations.

Page 30



Page 19 of 19

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee is recommended to:

 Note the contents of the report attached at Appendix 1;

 Consider whether the Achievements and Challenges Report and 

Corporate and Directorate Scorecard approach provides the Committee 

with the tools to fulfil its overview responsibilities;

 Consider whether it wishes to refer any comments or concerns to the 

Cabinet Member with responsibility for Council Performance.

DAVINA FIORE
Director of Governance & Legal Services

8 March 2017

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1a – Achievements and Challenges Quarter 3 2016-17

City Operations – Achievements 

1. Through the support of the Energy and Sustainability Team, the Council has 

retained the Green Dragon Level 3 Environmental Standard status in relation to 

energy saving and CO2 reduction 

2. Planning Applications – The improvements made in Quarter 1 and 2 have 

continued. In Quarter 3, 33.3% of major applications were determined within 13 

weeks and 95.1% of householder applications were determined within 8 weeks.  

City Operations – Challenges 

3. Street Cleanliness – Performance in Quarter 3 dipped. Of the highways and 

land inspected in Quarter 3, 84.2% was of a high or acceptable standard of 

cleanliness, compared to 98.1% in Quarter 2. 

Communities, Housing & Customer Services – Achievements 

4. For the third year in a row, C2C has been nominated for a Contact Centre 

Award, after winning the award for People Engagement last year.  

5. Housing - Homelessness – During Quarter 3 the Outreach Service made an 

intervention within 3 days on every single occasion they were made aware of a 

rough sleeper, so performance is at 100%. A review of the management of 

accommodation used by rough sleepers is expected to be completed by the 

target date of March 2017.

6. Budget – Despite savings shortfalls relating to the implementation of the Alarm 

Receiving Centre and roll-out of the Libraries and Hubs strategy, the 

Directorate has a projected underspend of £119,000 at year-end. Contributing 

to this is additional income from renovation grants and administration fees, as 

well as underspends on supplies and service budgets.

Page 33



Communities, Housing & Customer Services – Challenges 

7. Use of Lettable accommodation – The number of days it takes to let this type of 

accommodation was 78.35 in Quarter 3, which did meet the target of 65 days. 

However, this was an improvement on Quarter 2 performance of 82 days.

Economic Development – Achievements 

8. The Commercial and Collaboration service have secured their first integrated 

contract for Waste, Pest Control and Depot Facilities.  

9. Construction of the new Lamby Way Household Recycling Centre is due to be 

completed by February 2017.

Economic Development – Challenges

10. The funding models to deliver key infrastructure projects, including the bus 

station and proposed Arena, remain challenging.

11. The directorate has experienced shortfalls against savings targets, largely 

associated with Office Rationalisation and City Centre Management. 

Overspends have been offset in part by additional income from advertising and 

City Hall functions and reduced spending on Cardiff Branding and Workshop 

NDR costs

Education & Lifelong Learning – Achievements 

12. The School Holiday Enhancement Programme was accessed by an average 

238 children each day during the 2015-16 summer holidays and provided good 

quality meals, sport and nutrition skills, education and activities to children in 

areas of deprivation in Cardiff.  In partnership with the WLGA, four other 

authorities were supported to run their own pilots. 

Page 34



13. Level 2+ Threshold – 62.5% of pupils achieved this threshold (5 GCSEs at A*–

C grade including A*–C in English or Welsh and Mathematics). This is higher 

than the provisional figure (62%) and higher than the result for the 2014-15 

academic year (59.3%), but lower than the target for the 2015-16 academic 

year (65%). The result is also above the Wales average of 60%.

Education & Lifelong Learning – Challenges 

14. The directorate is projecting an over-spend in relation to children who require 

education services out of county. A joint project group with Children’s Services 

has been established to review the situation.

15. There continue to be issues with school buildings and maintenance.

Governance & Legal Services – Achievements  

16. The directorate continues to support the roll out of web-casting which included 

Scrutiny meetings in December 2016.

Governance & Legal Services – Challenges 

17. More investigations than anticipated have been undertaken by the Welsh 

Language Commissioner. Under the new Standards all complaints received 

result in an investigation which is resource intensive as it is a legal process that 

is required to be followed.

Resources – Achievements

18. Revenue collection - Council Tax – By the end of Quarter 3, the Council had 

received 81.59% of the Council Tax that was due. This is very similar to the 

figure at this time last year and year-end performance is expected to be 97%. 

Page 35



Resources – Challenges 

19. Work continues to automate online transactions to improve the customer 

experience.

Social Services – Achievements

20. Approximately 550 Social Service Staff have been ‘mobilised’ through the Agile 

Mobile Working project, leading to positive responses from staff involved.

21. Children - Looked after children (LAC) – At the end of Quarter 3, 9.9% of the 

children taken into care during the year had returned home. This equates to 88 

of the 893 children taken into care. The Quarter 2 figure was 6.2% but there is 

no target or 2015-16 data, so no further comparison is possible.

22. Adults - Delayed transfers of care (DToC) – There was a significant reduction in 

the number of people waiting in hospital (as a result of delays for social care 

reasons) this year, compared with the same period last year. 

Social Services – Challenges 

23. The increasing complexity of cases managed by Children’s Services is 

recognised by the judiciary and is reflected in the high number of case in care 

proceedings before senior judges.

24. Staff vacancies – At the end of Quarter 3, 23.3% of posts within social work 

teams were vacant. This has improved on the Quarter 2 position of 24.8%, but 

is worse than the year-end target of 18% and performance for Quarter 3 last 

year of 21.6%. 

Page 36



 

 

 Council Overview Scorecard Quarter 3 2016-17 

Financial - tracking financial success and value Customer - clarifying and adding value to the customer 

 

 

 Social Media  

Twi%er  

68,055 followers @cardiffcouncil 

2,178 followers @cyngorcaerdydd 

8,269 Facebook Likes  

Customer Sa.sfac.on Levels Q2  

Visitors to Hubs : 99%   

Callers to C2C : English - 96% Welsh - 97%  

Repair Repor.ng Line : 89% 

Complaints 

527 complaints were received during 

Quarter 3. This is a 23% increase in 

complaints from Quarter 2, with 94% 

being responded to within 20 days 

During the 1st half of the 

year there were 1,839,464 

visits to Library & Hubs 

across the City. 

This is up from 1,101,367

(40%) for the same period 

last year. 

Informa.on Requests 

Compliance with Freedom of Informa.on 

Requests was 92.17%. Compliance with 

mul.-func.on requests increased from 

81% in quarter 1 to 97% in quarter 3. 

The table above represents the percentage spend for Quarter 3 

77.5% of Parking permit applica.ons now made online  

74.3% of requests for caddies / extra bags made online  

Over 60% of visits to the website made through Mobile / 

Tablet Devices 

Customer Languages 

Welsh calls to C2C account for 0.68% of 

the total calls. 

Chinese, Polish, Hungarian and Portu-

guese are the most popular languages in 

which to view the Council’s website  

Other than English, Arabic (5.2%) and then 

Portuguese (1.1%) are the most popular 

language requirements for clients to the 

City Centre Advice Hub. 

Of the 93,660 accounts set up with Rent 

Smart 2% have been in Welsh 

0.00% 10.00% 20.00% 30.00% 40.00% 50.00% 60.00% 70.00% 80.00% 90.00%

Social Services [900 FTE)

Resources [571 FTE]

G & L Servs [85 FTE]

Education [590 FTE]

Econ Dev [200 FTE]

Econ Dev (Com Services) [725 FTE]

Coms, H & CS [1,080 FTE]

City Ops [992 FTE]

Staff Budgets, Overtime & Agency

Staff Overtime Agency

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

A
p

r
-
1

6

M
a

y
-
1

6

J
u

n
-
1

6

J
u

l-
1

6

A
u

g
-
1

6

S
e
p

-1
6

O
c
t
-
1

6

N
o

v
-
1

6

D
e

c
-
1

6

Calls to Connect to Cardiff

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

SS

Resources

G & L Servs

Education

Econ Dev (Com Servs)

Econ Dev

Council Total

Corporate Mgt

Coms, H & CS

City Ops

Percentage of Projected Savings 2016-17

Projected % of Savings  2016-17 %  of Projected Savin gs Shortfall 2016-17

0 20,000 40,000 60,000 80,000 100,000 120,000 140,000 160,000 180,000

SS

Resources

G & L Servs

Education

Econ Dev (Com Servs)

Econ Dev

Corporate Mgt

Coms, H & CS

City Ops

Projected Budget Outturn 2016-17

Projection £000s Budget £000s

P
age 37



 

 

 Internal Processes - transforming the way that we do things  Learning & Growth - inspired, competent, engaged & aligned workforce 

   

Reshaping Services 

Reshaping Services will exploit enabling technologies and develop working prac.ces to  

facilitate the reshaping of key services across the Council. 

Its aim is to be�er understand and manage customer demand, re-align services and func�ons that are cur-

rently delivered across a number of service silos, and deliver services at a reduced cost in order that they are 

sustainable within the tough financial climate. 

↑ 15 Green ↓ 7 Amber/Green ↑ 4 Red/Amber → 0 Red 

Enabling & Commissioning Services 

This porHolio will establish Council-wide measures to support effec.ve delivery and cost 

reduc.on across all directorates. 

↑ 14 Green ↓ 6 Amber/Green → 7 Red/Amber →  0 Red 

 Council Overview Scorecard Quarter 3 2016-17 

92% of Return to Work Interviews have been completed across the organisa.on 

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18

SS - [900 FTE]

Resources [571 FTE]

G & L Servs [85 FTE]

Education - Non Schools [590 FTE]

Education - Schools [5,300 FTE]

Econ Dev [925 FTE]

Coms, H & CS [1080 FTE]

City Ops [992 FTE]

Corporate [10,447 FTE]

Sickness Absence - FTE Days Lost Per Person

Target Q3 Forecast

92%

96%

93%

87%

91%

94%

92% 92%

80%

82%

84%

86%

88%

90%

92%

94%

96%

98%

100%

City Ops [992 FTE] Coms, H & CS

[1080 FTE]

Econ Dev [925

FTE]

Education [590

FTE]

G & L Servs [85

FTE]

Resources [571

FTE]

SS - [900 FTE] Corporate Total

PPDR - Half Year Review Compliance

Corporate Total

468,192 

5,841,281 

3,059,174 

2,831,110 

325,651 

4,500,000 

1,600,000 

7,300,000 

 -  1,000,000  2,000,000  3,000,000  4,000,000  5,000,000  6,000,000  7,000,000  8,000,000

Reduction in Gross Internal Area (Sqft)

Reduction in Maintenance  Backlog (£)

Reduction in Total Running Cost (£)

Capital Receipts (£)

Corporate Asset Management 2016-17

Target 16-17 Q3 16-17 (Cumalative)

P
age 38



 �ŝƚǇ�KƉĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ�^ĐŽƌĞĐĂƌĚ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϮϬϭϳ 

KƵƌ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ �ĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ� 
                  

 
� 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

�ĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ�;ĐŽŶƚ͘Ϳ   
   � 

�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ Yϭ YϮ Yϯ Yϰ 
^ƵƉƉŽƌƚ�tĞůƐŚ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŬĞǇ�ƐƚĂŬĞŚŽůĚĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƌŵƵůĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�ƚŽ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƌĚŝī��ŝƚǇ�ZĞŐŝŽŶ�DĞƚƌŽ͘�  �ͬ' �ͬ' Zͬ�  
�ƉƉƌŽǀĞ�Ă�ŶĞǁ��ĂƌĚŝī��ŝƚǇ�dƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƚĂŬĞŚŽůĚĞƌ� ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ďǇ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ �ͬ' ' '  
�ĞůŝǀĞƌ�ĮƌƐƚ�ƉŚĂƐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ĐƟŽŶ�WůĂŶ�ĨŽƌ��ĂƌĚŝī��ĂǇ�ďǇ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ  ' �ͬ' '  
tŽƌŬ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŶĞŝŐŚďŽƵƌŝŶŐ�>ŽĐĂů��ƵƚŚŽƌŝƟĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƌĞůĞǀĂŶƚ�ƐƚĂŬĞŚŽůĚĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞ�Ă�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ� �ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ�;^�WͿ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƌĚŝī��ĂƉŝƚĂů�ZĞŐŝŽŶ�ďǇ�ϮϬϮϭ 

�ͬ' 
  �ͬ' '  

�ƐƚĂďůŝƐŚ�Ă�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ĨŽƌ�ĂƐƐĞƚ�ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞŶĞǁĂů�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ��ŝƚǇ�KƉĞƌĂƟŽŶƐ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ�ďǇ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ �ͬ' Zͬ� �ͬ'  
�ĞǀĞůŽƉ�Ă��ĂƌĚŝī��ǇĐůĞ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ͕�ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬĞĚ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ��ƵƌŽƉĞĂŶ�ďĞƐƚ�ƉƌĂĐƟĐĞ͕�ďǇ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ͘ ' �ͬ' '  

WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌ��;dŽƚĂů�ϭϳͿ ZĞƐƵůƚ�ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ Yϭ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ YϮ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ Yϯ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ Yϰ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ dĂƌŐĞƚ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ 
zĞĂƌ��ŶĚ ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ Z�' 

W>�ͬϬϬϰ�;ĂͿ�-�dŚĞ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ŵĂũŽƌ� ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ϭϯ�ǁĞĞŬƐ ϭϮй ϯϳ͘ϱй  ϱϯ͘ϴй  ϯϯ͘ϯй�   Ϯϱй   ' 
W>�ͬϬϬϰ�;ĐͿ�-�dŚĞ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚĞƌ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ϴ�ǁĞĞŬƐ ϳϭ͘ϰй ϴϬ͘ϴй ϴϬ͘ϯй   ϵϱ͘ϭй�   ϴϬй   ' 
d,^ϬϬϳ�-�dŚĞ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ĂĚƵůƚƐ�ĂŐĞĚ�ϲϬн�ǁŚŽ�ŚŽůĚ�Ă�ĐŽŶĐĞƐƐŝŽŶĂƌǇ�ďƵƐ�ƉĂƐƐ ϵϲ͘ϱй ϵϮ͘ϭй ϵϳй  ϵϴй�    ϵϰй   ' 
WWEͬϬϬϵ�-�dŚĞ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ĨŽŽĚ� ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂƌĞ�͚ďƌŽĂĚůǇ�ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶƚ͛�ǁŝƚŚ�ĨŽŽĚ�ŚǇŐŝĞŶĞ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚƐ ϵϯй ϵϯ͘ϱй  ϵϯй  ϵϮ͘ϳй�   ϵϰй   � 

^d^ͬϬϬϲ—dŚĞ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ŇǇ�ƟƉƉŝŶŐ�ŝŶĐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ĐůĞĂƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ϱ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĚĂǇƐ ϵϳ͘ϵϭй ϵϳ͘ϵϭй ϵϴ͘ϭй ϵϴ͘ϱй�  ϵϬй  ' 

�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ Yϭ YϮ Yϯ Yϰ 
/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐĞ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ŵŽĚĞů�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƉůĂǇ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ďǇ��Ɖƌŝů�ϮϬϭϳ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƟŽŶ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ� ŽƉĞƌĂďůĞ�ƵŶƟů�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ŐƌĂŶƚ�ĐŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶŝŶŐ�ŵŽĚĞů�ŝƐ�ŝŶ�ƉůĂĐĞ� '  �ͬ' �ͬ'  
�ƐƚĂďůŝƐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ůĞŝƐƵƌĞ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ŵŽĚĞůƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ� ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďůĞ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ŽĨ�ůĞŝƐƵƌĞ�ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ďǇ�:ƵŶĞ�ϮϬϭϲ  �ͬ' ' '  

WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ϯ͘��ƌĞĂƟŶŐ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ďĞƩĞƌ�ƉĂŝĚ�ũŽďƐ 
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ ^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ� 

ϯ͘Ϯ͘���ĂƌĚŝī�ŚĂƐ�Ă�ŚŝŐŚ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ĐŝƚǇ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ ĂƩƌĂĐƟǀĞ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ƐƉĂĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŐŽŽĚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ 

WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ͗ 
· DĂũŽƌ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ƐƉĂĐĞƐ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ŵŽǀŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŶĞǁ��ĞŶƚƌĂů�^ƋƵĂƌĞͬ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ŝŶƚĞƌĐŚĂŶŐĞ 
· ^ĐŚĞŵĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ��ϰϲϵͬ�ϰϳϬ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƌĞƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϮϬϭϳ · dŚĞ��ĂƌĚŝī��ĂƉŝƚĂů�ZĞŐŝŽŶ�dƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ��ƵƚŚŽƌŝƚǇ�;��Zd�Ϳ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƐŚĂĚŽǁ�ĨŽƌŵ�ƚŽ�ĐŽ-ŽƌĚŝŶĂƚĞ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĨŽƌŵĂůůǇ�ŵĞƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƌƐƚ�ƟŵĞ�ŝŶ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ƚŽ�ŽƵƚůŝŶĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐƟŽŶƐ�ŶĞĞĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ��ĞĂů͘ �/ƚ�ŝƐ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ�ŽŶ�Ă�ďŝ-ŵŽŶƚŚůǇ�ďĂƐŝƐ͘ 
· dƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ǁĂƐ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ďǇ��ĂďŝŶĞƚ�ŝŶ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƋƵĞƐƟŽŶŶĂŝƌĞ�ǁĂƐ�ƉƵďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ŝŶ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ĨĞĞĚďĂĐŬ�ƐŽƵŐŚƚ�ďǇ�&ĞďƌƵĂƌǇ�ϮϬϭϳ͘��ĂďŝŶĞƚ�ŚĂƐ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƵŶĐŚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ϭϮ-ǁĞĞŬ� ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶƚĞŐƌĂƚĞĚ�EĞƚǁŽƌŬ�DĂƉ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƐĞƚƐ�ŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ĐǇĐůĞ�ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬ�ƉůĂŶ · dŚĞ��ĂƌĚŝī��ĂǇ�WƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞͬ�ĐƟŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ�ǁĂƐ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĞĚ�ďǇ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌ�ƐƚĞĞƌŝŶŐ�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐƐ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ͖�ƐĞǀĞƌĂů�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĐŽŵŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�sŽůǀŽ͕�DĞƌŵĂŝĚ�YƵĂǇ�ĂŶĚ��ƌŝƚĂŶŶŝĂ�WĂƌŬ�� 
· DĞĞƟŶŐƐ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ĂůŽŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�^ŽƵƚŚ��ĂƐƚ�tĂůĞƐ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌƐ�ŽĨ��ŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ�Θ�ZĞŐĞŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ�;^�t��ZͿ�ĂŶĚ�^ŽƵƚŚ��ĂƐƚ�tĂůĞƐ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�'ƌŽƵƉ�;^�t^W'Ϳ�ŝŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĂĐŚ�Ă�ƉŽƐŝƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŶƐĞŶƐƵƐ�ŽŶ�ŚŽǁ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ďĞƐƚ�ŵŽǀĞ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ŝŶ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌŝŶŐ�Ă�ZĞŐŝŽŶĂů�WůĂŶ 
· DĂũŽƌ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ŚŝŐŚǁĂǇ�ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞĚ  /ƐƐƵĞƐ͗ tĞ�ĂƌĞ�ǁĂŝƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ůĞĂƌŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƌŵ�ŽĨ�DĞƚƌŽ͘  DŝƟŐĂƟŶŐ�ĂĐƟŽŶƐ͗ ��ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ƉƌĞƐƐƵƌĞ�ďŝĚ�ŚĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ďĞĞŶ�ĞŶƚĞƌĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ϮϬϭϳ-ϭϴ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ĞƋƵŝǀĂůĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ǇĞĂƌ�ϭ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ� ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ͘  EĞǆƚ�ŬĞǇ�ƐƚĞƉƐ͗ �ŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌ�ŵŝůĞƐƚŽŶĞƐ�ĂƐƐŽĐŝĂƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŬĞǇ�ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĞ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�KďũĞĐƟǀĞ͘�  

WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ϰ͘�tŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ƚŽŐĞƚŚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƚƌĂŶƐĨŽƌŵ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ 
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ ^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ 

ϰ͘ϭ͘�� �ŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂĐƟǀĞůǇ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ͕�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ŚŝŐŚůǇ-ǀĂůƵĞĚ� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ 

WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ͗� 
· EĞǁ�WůĂǇ��ĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�DŽĚĞů�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĨƵůůǇ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�>ůĂŶĞĚĞǇƌŶ�;ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�ĐůŽƐĞ�ƚŽ�ŐŽŝŶŐ�ůŝǀĞ�ŝŶ�'ƌĂŶŐĞƚŽǁŶ�ĂŶĚ��ůǇͿ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂƐ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶĐĞĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ŶĞŝŐŚďŽƵƌŚŽŽĚƐ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝī͕�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĐůŽƐĞůǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽĐĂů� ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ͘�^ĐŚŽŽů�,ŽůŝĚĂǇ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞ�–�ĂĐƟǀŝƟĞƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ůŽĐĂů�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ƐĞƫŶŐƐ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ��ĂƌĚŝī 
· &ŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĂů�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƟŽŶ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ĨŽƌ�ůĞŝƐƵƌĞ͕�ŶĞǁ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƌ�ͬ�ŽƉĞƌĂƚŽƌ�ƚŽ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌŝŶŐ� ĂƌƌĂŶŐĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ƐƚĂƌƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƉƵƚ�ŝŶ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ 
· EĞŝŐŚďŽƵƌŚŽŽĚ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�;E^Ϳ�ŝƐ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ�ǁĞůů�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂƐ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌĞĚ�͚ďůŝƚǌ͛�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ϰ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ͘�EĞŝŐŚďŽƵƌŚŽŽĚ� ^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ��ŶĨŽƌĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŝƐ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶĐĞ�ŝŶ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϮϬϭϳ�ƚŽ�ĞŶĨŽƌĐĞ�,ŝŐŚǁĂǇƐ�>ŝĐĞŶƐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŬŝƉƐ�;ŶŽǁ� ĞŶĨŽƌĐŝŶŐͿ͕�ƚĂďůĞƐ�Θ�ĐŚĂŝƌƐ�;DĂƌĐŚ�ϭϳͿ͕��-ĨƌĂŵĞƐ�;DĂƌĐŚ�ϭϳͿ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŚŝŐŚǁĂǇ�;�ƉƌŝůͬDĂǇ�ϭϳͿ͘� �ŝŐŝƚĂůŝƐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ůŝĐĞŶƐŝŶŐ�ǁŝůů�ĨŽůůŽǁ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĨŽƌĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ĞĂĐŚ�ĞůĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞ�ĂŶĚ� ĞĸĐŝĞŶƚ�–�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ϯ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ�ĂŌĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĨŽƌĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĚĂƚĞ͘�WĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�<ĞĞƉ�tĂůĞƐ�dŝĚǇ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĞ�͚>ŽǀĞ�tŚĞƌĞ�zŽƵ�>ŝǀĞ͛�ŝŶŝƟĂƟǀĞ͘�WŝůŽƚ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ��ƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�ĨŽƌ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ůĞǀĞů�ĐůĞĂŶƐŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ��ĞŶƚƌĞ /ƐƐƵĞƐ͗��>ŽŶŐ-ƚĞƌŵ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĐƵůƚƵƌĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ŝŶ�ŬĞǇ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŝƐ�ŶĞĞĚĞĚ͘ DŝƟŐĂƟŶŐ�ĂĐƟŽŶƐ͗�ƐĞĞ�ďĞůŽǁ EĞǆƚ�ŬĞǇ�ƐƚĞƉƐ͗� �ŽŵƉůĞƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƐ�ƌĞůĂƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƉůĂǇ͘� EĞǁ�ůĞŝƐƵƌĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĨƵůůǇ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ͘ �ĞǀĞůŽƉ�ĚŝŐŝƚĂů�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�EĞŝŐŚďŽƵƌŚŽŽĚ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͛�ĨƌŽŶƚůŝŶĞ�ƚĞĂŵƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ��ŚŝƉƐŝĚĞ͘�tŽƌŬ�ǁŝƚŚ� KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶĂů��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�/�d�ŽŶ�͚ZĞƉŽƌƚ�/ƚ͛��ƉƉ͘�tŽƌŬ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ��ƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�ŽŶ�ŝŶĐŽŵĞ� ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ͬ�ĐŝƚǇ�ĐĞŶƚƌĞ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ŽŶ�EĞŝŐŚďŽƵƌŚŽŽĚ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĞŶĨŽƌĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ƚŽ�ĚĞŵŽŶƐƚƌĂƚĞ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘� �ŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂĐƟŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚĞĂŵƐ͘� 

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 �ŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ�,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ�Θ��ƵƐƚŽŵĞƌ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�^ĐŽƌĞĐĂƌĚ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϮϬϭϳ 
KƵƌ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ �ĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ� 

                                

 
� 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

�ĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ�;ĐŽŶƚ͘Ϳ   
 

 �  

�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ Yϭ YϮ Yϯ Yϰ 
/ŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĐŽƵƌƐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ůĞĂƌŶĞƌƐ�ŝŶ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ�&ŝƌƐƚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ�ĞŶƐƵƌŝŶŐ�ĂŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ĞŶƌŽůŵĞŶƚ͕�ƌĞƚĞŶƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƩĂŝŶŵĞŶƚ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ůĞĂĚƐ�ƚŽ�ĂŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĨŽƌ�ůĞĂƌŶĞƌƐ  �ͬ' '   
�Ǉ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ͕�ƚŚĞ�/ŶƚŽ�tŽƌŬ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ǁŝůů͗ 
· KīĞƌ�ƚĂƐƚĞƌ�ƐĞƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ĚŝīĞƌĞŶƚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ƐĞĐƚŽƌƐ · ,ŽůĚ�Ϯ�ŵĂũŽƌ�:ŽďƐ�ĨĂŝƌƐ�ŝŶ�ĐŽůůĂďŽƌĂƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌ�ĂŐĞŶĐŝĞƐ 
· ,ŽůĚ�ŐƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌǀŝĞǁ�ĞǀĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŝƚǇ 
· WƵƚ�ƚŽŐĞƚŚĞƌ�ĂŶ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ŽīĞƌ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ƐŽƵƌĐŝŶŐ͕�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ͕�ƐŚŽƌƚůŝƐƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ�ŝŶ�ŝŶƚĞƌǀŝĞǁ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͘ 

' '   

WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌ�;dŽƚĂů�ϱϲͿ ZĞƐƵůƚ�ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ Yϭ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ YϮ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ Yϯ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ Yϰ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ dĂƌŐĞƚ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ 
zĞĂƌ��ŶĚ ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ 

Z�' 
EƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�>ĂŶĚůŽƌĚƐ�ŝŶ�tĂůĞƐ� ƌĞŐŝƐƚĞƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ZĞŶƚ�^ŵĂƌƚ�tĂůĞƐ EĞǁ ϭϯ͕ϳϱϵ  Ϯϲ͕ϰϱϬ  ϲϴ͕ϱϲϯ�   Ϯϲ͕ϬϬϬ   ' 
WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ��ŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂů�>ĂŶĚůŽƌĚ��ŐĞŶƚƐ�ůŝĐĞŶƐĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ZĞŶƚ�^ŵĂƌƚ�tĂůĞƐ EĞǁ ϱ͘ϲϯй ϯϭ͘ϳϱй  ϭϬϴ͘ϭϯй   ϯϬй   ' 
dŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ǀŝƐŝƚŽƌƐ�ƚŽ�>ŝďƌĂƌŝĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�,ƵďƐ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ ϯ͕Ϭϲϴ͕ϮϮϴ ϲϭϴ͕ϳϯϱ  ϭ͘Ϯϱŵ ϭ͘ϴϰŵ    ϯ͕ϬϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ   ' 
WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�dĞůĞĐĂƌĞ�ĐĂůůƐ�ƌĞƐƵůƟŶŐ�ŝŶ�ĂŶ�ĂŵďƵůĂŶĐĞ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĐĂůůĞĚ�ŽƵƚ ϳй ϲй ϳй   ϱй   ϭϬй   ' 
WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ĐĂƐĞƐ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ� ƐŽůƵƟŽŶƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĨŽƵŶĚ�ďǇ�ĂŶ�/ŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ� >ŝǀŝŶŐ�sŝƐŝƟŶŐ�KĸĐĞƌ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĚŝĚ�ŶŽƚ�ƌĞƐƵůƚ�ŝŶ�Ă�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂů�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŽ�^ŽĐŝĂů��ĂƌĞ 

EĞǁ ϵϬй  ϴϴй  ϵϰй   ϰϱй   ' 

WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ŶĞǁ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�/ŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ�>ŝǀŝŶŐ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂƐ�ŽƉƉŽƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�^ŽĐŝĂů��ĂƌĞ EĞǁ ϰϯй ϱϯй   ϱϳй�   ϱϬй   ' 
WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ŝŶƚĞƌǀĞŶƟŽŶƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƵƚƌĞĂĐŚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ϯ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĚĂǇƐ�ŽĨ�Ă�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƌŽƵŐŚ�ƐůĞĞƉŝŶŐ EĞǁ ϭϬϬй ϵϵй   ϭϬϬй�   ϭϬϬй   ' 
WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�͞KǀĞƌĂůů�ƚŚĞ�,Ƶď�ŵĞƚ�ŵǇ� ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐͬ/�ŐŽƚ�ǁŚĂƚ�/�ŶĞĞĚĞĚ͟ ϵϵ͘ϴй ϭϬϬй  ϵϵй ϵϵй�    ϵϬй   ' 
�ĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ǁĞĞŬůǇ�ďĞŶĞĮƚ�ĂǁĂƌĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐůŝĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƚǇ��ĞŶƚƌĞ��ĚǀŝĐĞ�dĞĂŵ άϵ͘ϴŵ άϯ͘ϱŵ  άϲ͘Ϯŵ άϴ͘ϳŵ    άϭϬŵ   ' 
EƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƐ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƐƐŝƐƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĐůĂŝŵƐ�ĨŽƌ�hŶŝǀĞƌƐĂů��ƌĞĚŝƚ EĞǁ ϮϮϬ  ϯϵϴ ϱϰϭ   ϰϬϬ   ' 
dŚĞ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĐĂůĞŶĚĂƌ�ĚĂǇƐ�ƚĂŬĞŶ�ƚŽ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌ�Ă��ŝƐĂďůĞĚ�&ĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ�'ƌĂŶƚ�;ĨƌŽŵ�ĮƌƐƚ�ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚ�ƚŽ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚ�ĚĂƚĞͿ Ϯϰϳ Ϯϭϱ ϭϴϴ  Ϯϭϯ   ϮϮϬ   ' 

WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ϭ͘��ĞƩĞƌ��ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�^ŬŝůůƐ�ĨŽƌ��ůů 
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ 

^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ� 

ϭ͘ϯ͗��ĚƵůƚ� >ĞĂƌŶĞƌƐ��ĐŚŝĞǀĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�WŽƚĞŶƟĂů 

��ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ϵϰй�ĨŽƌ�ůĞĂƌŶĞƌ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞƐ�ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞĚ͕���>�ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀŝŶŐ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƐƚ�ĨĞǁ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ĨĂŶƚĂƐƟĐ�ƌĞƐƵůƚ�ŝƐ�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ĞǀŝĚĞŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ƚŚĂƚ͛Ɛ�ďĞĞŶ�ŵĂĚĞ͘�&Žƌ�dĞƌŵ�ϭ�;ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳͿ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ůĞĂƌŶĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĞŶƌŽůůĞĚ�ŽŶ��ĚƵůƚ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�>ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ŐƌĂŶƚ-ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞƐ�ǁĂƐ�ϵϳϳ͕�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�ĂŶ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ĞŶƌŽůŵĞŶƚ�ĮŐƵƌĞ�ĨŽƌ�Ăůů�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞƐ�ŽĨ�Ϯ͕ϳϭϱ͕�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ůĂƐƚ�ǇĞĂƌ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ůĞĂƌŶĞƌ�ĞŶƌŽůŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽƚĂůůĞĚ�ϭϬϭϳ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĞŶƌŽůŵĞŶƚƐ�Ăƚ�ϮϳϬϴ͘��ůƚŚŽƵŐŚ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ůĞĂƌŶĞƌ�ĞŶƌŽůŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƐůŝŐŚƚůǇ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐƚĂŐĞ͕�ŝƚ�ŝƐ� ĂŶƟĐŝƉĂƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŝůů�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚĞƌŵƐ�Ϯ�ĂŶĚ�ϯ͘�&Žƌ�ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ůĞĂƌŶĞƌ�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞĚ�Ă�ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ϳϲй͕�ĂŶ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϲϱй�ŝŶ�ϮϬϭϰ-ϭϱ�ĂŶĚ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ϰϮй�ĨŽƌ�ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ͘� dŚĞ�/ŶƚŽ�tŽƌŬ��ĚǀŝĐĞ�dĞĂŵ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂďůĞ�ƚŽ�ĐƌĞĂƚĞ�ƐŽŵĞ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ŽīĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƐƚ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ� ŝŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ĐĂůůĞĚ�/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ƚŽ��ŚŝůĚĐĂƌĞ͕�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĐŽŶũƵŶĐƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�&ůǇŝŶŐ�^ƚĂƌƚ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�Ă�ĮǀĞ-ĚĂǇ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ĂŶ�ŝŶƐŝŐŚƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝīĞƌĞŶƚ�ƌŽůĞƐ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌĞƐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĮŶĚŝŶŐ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŚŝůĚĐĂƌĞ�ƐĞĐƚŽƌ͘�dŚĞ�ƚĞĂŵ�ĂůƐŽ�ĂƐƐŝƐƚĞĚ��ŝĐŬĞŶƐ�ŽĨ��ŚĂƌůĞƐ�^ƚƌĞĞƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƌĞĐƌƵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ŶĞĞĚƐ͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞŵ�ǁŝƚŚ�ǁŽƌŬ-ƌĞĂĚǇ�ũŽďƐĞĞŬĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĞůƉŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ũŽď�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƟŽŶ͘ dŚĞ�:ŽďƐ�&Ăŝƌ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŽŽŬ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ŝŶ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ�ǁĂƐ�ĂƩĞŶĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŚĂŶ�ϮϬϬϬ�ũŽďƐĞĞŬĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ϯϱ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ă�ǀĂƌŝĞƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƐĞĐƚŽƌƐ�ŽīĞƌŝŶŐ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƚŚĂŶ�ϭϬ͕ϬϬϬ�ũŽď�ǀĂĐĂŶĐŝĞƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂǇ͘��ƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ϭϬ�ũŽďƐĞĞŬĞƌƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŽīĞƌĞĚ�ƉŽƐŝƟŽŶƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂǇ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ŽƚŚĞƌƐ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŐĂŝŶĞĚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ůŝŶŬƐ�ŵĂĚĞ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǀĞŶƚ͘� 

WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ϰ͗�tŽƌŬŝŶŐ�dŽŐĞƚŚĞƌ�ƚŽ�dƌĂŶƐĨŽƌŵ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ 
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ� KďũĞĐƟǀĞ 

^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ 

ϰ͘ϭ͘�� 
�ŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂĐƟǀĞůǇ� 
ŝŶǀŽůǀĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ͕�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ĂŶĚ� 
ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ� 
ŚŝŐŚůǇ-ǀĂůƵĞĚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ 

>ůĂŶĚĂī�EŽƌƚŚ�,Ƶď�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�ŽƉĞŶŝŶŐ�Ăƚ�ϭϬĂŵ�ŽŶ�dŚƵƌƐĚĂǇ�ϭϮƚŚ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ͘�>ůĂŶĞĚĞǇƌŶ�,Ƶď�ΛdŚĞ�WŽǁĞƌŚŽƵƐĞ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĚĞůĂǇĞĚ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ͘�tŽƌŬ�ƐƚĂƌƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ�ŝŶ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ƌĞǀŝƐĞĚ� ĐŽŵƉůĞƟŽŶ�ĚĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�DĂǇ�ϮϬϭϳ͘  dŚĞ��ZD�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶƐ�ŝŶ�'ůŽďĂů��ƐĐĂůĂƟŽŶ�^ƚĂƚƵƐ�;'�^Ϳ͘�^�W�ŝŶǀĞƐƟŐĂƟŽŶƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ůĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚ�ĐŽĚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŵĂĚĞ͘��ŽĚĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ŵĂĚĞ�ŝŶ�ďŽƚŚ�ƚĞƐƚ�ƚĞŶĂŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƌĞ�ĂǁĂŝƟŶŐ�ůŝǀĞ� ƌĞůĞĂƐĞ͘�;�ƵĞ�ŽŶ�ϭϬƚŚ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϮϬϭϳͿ͘�WƌŽŵŽƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĐŽĚĞ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĚĞůĂǇĞĚ�ĂƐ�Ă�ƌĞƐƵůƚ�ŽĨ�ƌĞŐƵůĂƌ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌůǇ�ƵƉŐƌĂĚĞ�ǁŽƌŬƐ�ŝŶ�EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ͘� 
�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ Yϭ YϮ Yϯ Yϰ 
WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�,ƵďƐ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ďǇ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŶĞǁ�,ƵďƐ�ŝŶ͗ 
· &ĂŝƌǁĂƚĞƌ�ďǇ�:ƵŶĞ�ϮϬϭϲ͖�� · ^ƉůŽƩ�ďǇ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ͖�� 
· >ůĂŶĞĚĞǇƌŶ�ďǇ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ͖�� 
· >ůĂŶĚĂī�EŽƌƚŚ�ďǇ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϮϬϭϳ�ĂŶĚ� · �ŐƌĞĞŝŶŐ�ƉůĂŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�>ůĂŶŝƐŚĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�^ƚ�DĞůůŽŶƐ�WŚĂƐĞ�Ϯ�,ƵďƐ�ďǇ�:ƵůǇ�ϮϬϭϲ 

 ' �ͬ'   

/ŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�ƉŚĂƐĞƐ�Ϯ�ĂŶĚ�ϯ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ƵƐƚŽŵĞƌ�ZĞůĂƟŽŶƐŚŝƉ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�;�ZDͿ�ŵŽĚĞů�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϴ  Zͬ� Zͬ�   

P
age 41



 �ŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ�,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ�Θ��ƵƐƚŽŵĞƌ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�^ĐŽƌĞĐĂƌĚ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϮϬϭϳ 
�ĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ�;ĐŽŶƚ͘Ϳ 
  

�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ Yϭ YϮ Yϯ Yϰ 
/ŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�Ă�ĨƵůůǇ�ƌĞ-ĐŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶĞĚ�ĚŽŵĞƐƟĐ�ǀŝŽůĞŶĐĞ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĞƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ŶĞǁ�ůĞŐŝƐůĂƟŽŶ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞƐ�ŵŽƌĞ�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂƚĞĚ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ   ' '   
�ĞůŝǀĞƌ�ĐŝƌĐĂ�ϭϱϬϬ�ŶĞǁ�ŚŽŵĞƐ�ĨŽƌ��ĂƌĚŝī�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ�WĂƌƚŶĞƌŝŶŐ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ͕�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ƉŚĂƐĞĚ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ�ďǇ�ϮϬϮϰ͕�ϰϬй�ŽĨ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĂīŽƌĚĂďůĞ�ŚŽƵƐŝŶŐ  ' '   
�ĞǀĞůŽƉ�Ă�ƌŽďƵƐƚ�ϱ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƉůĂŶ�ƚŽ�ŵĂǆŝŵŝƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ŽĨ�ŶĞǁ�ĂīŽƌĚĂďůĞ�ŚŽƵƐŝŶŐ�ƵŶŝƚƐ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ��ĂƌĚŝī�ƚŽ�ŚĞůƉ�ƚĂĐŬůĞ�ŚŽƵƐŝŶŐ�ŶĞĞĚ�ŽĨ�Ăůů�ƚǇƉĞƐ�ǁŚŝůƐƚ�ĞŶƐƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞĞĚ�ŝƐ�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�Ăůů�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ŵĞƚŚŽĚƐ͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�^ĞĐƟŽŶ�ϭϬϲ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞƌ� ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶƐ͕�ǁŝŶĚĨĂůů�ƐŝƚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ZĞŐŝƐƚĞƌĞĚ�^ŽĐŝĂů�>ĂŶĚůŽƌĚ�Θ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚŽƵƐĞ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞƐ   ' '   
�ŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ŵŝƟŐĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǁĞůĨĂƌĞ�ƌĞĨŽƌŵ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ĂīĞĐƚĞĚ�ƐƟůů�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ŐŽŽĚ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ŚŽƵƐŝŶŐ   ' �ͬ'   
WƌŽŵŽƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ZĞŶƚ�^ŵĂƌƚ�tĂůĞƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ůĂŶĚůŽƌĚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŐĞŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĂƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĨŽƌĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ�ŝŶ� EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ   ' '   
dŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ͕�ĞŶŐĂŐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ZŽƵŐŚ�^ůĞĞƉĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĞŵ�ŝŶ�ĮŶĚŝŶŐ� ƐƵŝƚĂďůĞ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ   ' '   
ZĞǀŝĞǁ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ�ƵƐĞĚ�ďǇ�,ŽŵĞůĞƐƐŶĞƐƐ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ   ' '   
WƌŽŵŽƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĂĚƵůƚƐ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ͕��ĚǀŝĐĞ�ĂŶĚ��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŝŐŶƉŽƐƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĞŶĂďůĞ�ƚŚĞŵ�ƚŽ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶ�ŝŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ĂĐƚ�ĂƐ�Ă�ŐĂƚĞǁĂǇ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐŝŶŐ�ĂĚǀŝĐĞ�ĂŶĚ� �ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ  ' '   
tŽƌŬ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƵƌ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ��ĂƌĚŝī�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�Ă�ĚĞůĂǇĞĚ�ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĐĂƌĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ŚŽƐƉŝƚĂů�ďǇ�ϮϬϭϳ  ' '   

WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�Ϯ͘�^ƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�sƵůŶĞƌĂďůĞ�WĞŽƉůĞ 
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ 

^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ 

Ϯ͘ϭ͗�WĞŽƉůĞ�Ăƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝī�ĂƌĞ� ^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚĞĚ  Ϯ͘Ϯ͗�WĞŽƉůĞ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝī�ŚĂǀĞ��ĐĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�'ŽŽĚ�YƵĂůŝƚǇ�,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ  Ϯ͘ϯ͗�WĞŽƉůĞ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝī�ĂƌĞ� ^ƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�>ŝǀĞ� /ŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚůǇ 

Ϯ͘ϭ͗�dŚĞ��ŽŵĞƐƟĐ�ǀŝŽůĞŶĐĞ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ŐŝǀĞŶ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵƉůĞǆŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞ-ĐŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶŝŶŐ͘�tŽƌŬ�ŝƐ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚƌĂŌ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĨƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ͘  Ϯ͘Ϯ͗�dŚĞ�ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ϭϬϲ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ŚĂƐ�ŶŽǁ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ��ƌĂƵŶƚŽŶ�Θ��ůĞǀĞĚŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ƐƚĂƌƚ�ĚĂƚĞ�ƐĞƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĞĂƌůǇ�DĂƌĐŚ͘�dŚĞ�,WW�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ŚĂƐ�ŶŽǁ�ďĞĞŶ�ƌĞ-ďƌĂŶĚĞĚ�ĂƐ��ĂƌĚŝī�>ŝǀŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ǁĞďƐŝƚĞ�ƐĞƚ�ƵƉ�ĂŶĚ�Ăůů�ƉĂŐĞƐͬƚĞǆƚ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ͘�  dŚĞ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌǁĂǇ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĞŶĚĞƌ-ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐ�ŐĂƚĞǁĂǇ͘���ĚƌĂŌ�ZŽƵŐŚ�^ůĞĞƉŝŶŐ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ϮϬϭϳ-ϮϬ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ĮŶĂů�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ��ĂďŝŶĞƚ�DĞŵďĞƌ�ĨŽƌ�,ĞĂůƚŚ͕�,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ�Θ�tĞůůďĞŝŶŐ͕�ŝŶ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĂƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ǁŝĚĞƌ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŶ��ĂďŝŶĞƚ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĂů�ŝŶ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ͘  dŚĞ�ZĞŶƚ�^ŵĂƌƚ�tĂůĞƐ�DĞŵŽƌĂŶĚƵŵ�ŽĨ�hŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶĞĚ�ďǇ�Ăůů�>ŽĐĂů��ƵƚŚŽƌŝƟĞƐ͘�>ŽĐĂů��ƵƚŚŽƌŝƚǇ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƉĂĐŬ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌĞĚ�Ăƚ�EŽƌƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�^ŽƵƚŚ�tĂůĞƐ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĞǀĞŶƚƐ͘��ŶĨŽƌĐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŵŽĚƵůĞ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ZĞŶƚ�^ŵĂƌƚ�tĂůĞƐ�ĚĂƚĂďĂƐĞ͘  Ϯ͘ϯ͗���ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚ�ŝƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ĚĞƚĂŝůŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐĞƐ͕�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ͕�ƌŝƐŬƐ͕�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŶĞǆƚ�ƐƚĞƉƐ�ĨŽƌ��ĞǁŝƐ͕�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�Ă�ĨĞǁ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�ǁŝůů�ŝŶĨŽƌŵ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚĂŬŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ͘  ��ĚŝƌĞĐƚ�ůŝŶŬ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�,ŽƐƉŝƚĂů�KĐĐƵƉĂƟŽŶĂů�dŚĞƌĂƉǇ�;KdͿ�ĂŶĚ�,ŽƵƐŝŶŐ�Kd�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ũŽŝŶƚ�ǀŝƐŝƚƐ�ĨŽƌ��ĞůĂǇĞĚ�dƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƐ�ŽĨ��ĂƌĞ�;�dŽ�ƐͿ͖�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĞǀŽůǀĞĚ�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝīĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ŚŽƐƉŝƚĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ĨŽƌ�ƌŽƚĂƟŽŶĂů�ƐĞĐŽŶĚŵĞŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŚŽƐƉŝƚĂů�KdƐ͕�ůŽŽŬŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƉĂƟĞŶƚ�ŇŽǁ͘� dŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ��dŽ�Ɛ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĐĂƌĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐ�ŚĂƐ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ϵϴ�ĚĞůĂǇĞĚ�;�Ɖƌŝů�–�EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲͿ͕�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ϭϳϮ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ŝŶ�ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ� 

P
age 42



 �ĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�^ĐŽƌĞĐĂƌĚ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϮϬϭϳ 

KƵƌ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ �ĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ�;ĐŽŶƚ͘Ϳ 
                    
  

 
 

  �ĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ  

    

WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌ�;dŽƚĂů�ϮϲͿ ZĞƐƵůƚ�ϭϱ-ϭϲ Yϭ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ YϮ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ Yϯ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ Yϰ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ dĂƌŐĞƚ� ϭϲ-ϭϳ zĞĂƌ��ŶĚ ϭϲ-ϭϳ 
Z�' 

EƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�WĂŝĚ��ƩĞŶĚĂŶĐĞƐ�Ăƚ�^ƚ��ĂǀŝĚ͛Ɛ�,Ăůů�ĂŶĚ�EĞǁ�dŚĞĂƚƌĞ ϰϰϰ͕ϳϱϲ ϵϱ͕ϲϭϮ ϱϭ͕ϰϯϲ  ϭϮϱ͕ϱϯϬ    ϯϵϴ͕ϬϬϬ   ' 
ZĞƚĂŝŶĞĚ�/ŶĐŽŵĞ�&Žƌ�^ƚ��ĂǀŝĚ͛Ɛ�,Ăůů�ĂŶĚ�EĞǁ�dŚĞĂƚƌĞ� άϮ͘Ϭϰϲŵ άϯϭϬŬ� άϮϳϭŬ άϱϱϰŬ  άϭ͘ϯŵ�  ' 
'ƌĂĚĞ��͛�ŽĸĐĞ�ƐƉĂĐĞ�ĐŽŵŵŝƩĞĚ�ĨŽƌ� ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝī� ϯϭϲ͕Ϯϭϭ�� ƐƋ�Ō� ϭϱϲ͕ϲϬϬ��ƐƋ�Ō� Ϯϯϭ͕ϬϬϬ ƐƋ�Ō Ϯϴϱ͕ϬϳϬ ƐƋ�Ō  ϭϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ� ƐƋ�Ō�  ' 
EĞǁ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚĞĚ�ũŽďƐ�ŝŶ�ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐĞƐ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͕�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂůůǇ�Žƌ� ŽƚŚĞƌǁŝƐĞ� ϰ͕ϯϬϰ� Ϯϭϰ ϰϵϵ ϱϴϲ  ϱϬϬ  ' 
ZĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ŝŶ�'ƌŽƐƐ�/ŶƚĞƌŶĂů��ƌĞĂ�;'/�Ϳ�ŽĨ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ�ŝŶ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�ƵƐĞ� ϯ͘ϱϬй Ϭ͘ϵϬй Ϭ͘ϵϬй ϰ͘ϮϬй  ϰ͘ϰй�  '� 
�ŝƚǇ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�&ŽŽƞĂůů� ϰϬŵ ϭϬ͘ϴŵ ϭϮ͘ϭŵ  ϭϭ͘ϴŵ�  ϰϬŵ  ' 
�ĂƌĚŝī��ĂƐƚůĞ�dŽƚĂů�/ŶĐŽŵĞ� άϯ͘ϰŵ άϵϮϱŬ άϭ͘Ϯŵ άϳϮϱŬ  άϯ͘ϭŵ  ' 

�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ Yϭ YϮ Yϯ Yϰ 
tŽƌŬ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ŝŶƚĞƌĐŚĂŶŐĞ�-�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ďƵƐ�ƐƚĂƟŽŶ�-�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ŚŝŐŚ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ŐĂƚĞǁĂǇ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŝƚǇ�ďǇ��ĞĐ�ϭϳ� �ͬ' ' '  

WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ϯ͘��ƌĞĂƟŶŐ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ďĞƩĞƌ�ƉĂŝĚ�ũŽďƐ 
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ ^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ� 

ϯ͘ϭ��ĂƌĚŝī�ŚĂƐ�ŵŽƌĞ� ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ǀĂůͲƵĞ�ũŽďƐ 

WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ͗ �ĞŶƚƌĂů�^ƋƵĂƌĞ�ƌĞŐĞŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚ͗ �ŐƌĞĞĚ�Ă�ŵĂƐƚĞƌ�ƉůĂŶ�ĨŽƌ�ůĂŶĚ�ŶŽƌƚŚ�ŽĨ�tŽŽĚ�^ƚƌĞĞƚ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�WƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�hŶŝƚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ϯϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ�ƐƋ�Ō�ƉůƵƐ�ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ƐƉĂĐĞ�ŽĨ�ϭϱϬ͕ϬϬϬ�ƐƋ�Ō͘ dŽ�ĚĂƚĞ͕�ϱϴϲ�ũŽďƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ĐƌĞĂƚĞĚ�ͬƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚĞĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ͘���ƐŝƚĞ�ŶŽƌƚŚ�ŽĨ�tŽŽĚ�^ƚƌĞĞƚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�,DZ��ĨŽƌ�Ă�ŵĂũŽƌ�ƌĞůŽĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆƉĂŶƐŝŽŶ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĐŽƵůĚ�ďƌŝŶŐ�ƵƉ�ƚŽ�ϯ͕ϱϬϬ�ũŽďƐ͖�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŝůů�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĨƵŶĐƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ũŽďƐ�ƐƵĐŚ�ĂƐ��ŝŐ��ĂƚĂ��ŶĂůǇƟĐƐ͘ ,ĞĂĚƋƵĂƌƚĞƌƐ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ŵĂũŽƌ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂƟŽŶĂů�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĐŚĂƌŝƚǇ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝī�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƌĞĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ϱϬ�ŶĞǁ�ƐŬŝůůĞĚ�ũŽďƐ �ƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�;�/�Ϳ�ďŽĂƌĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�ƚĞĂŵ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ͘�DĞĞƟŶŐƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƐĞƚ�ƵƉ�ǁŝƚŚ��/��ďŽĂƌĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�ƚĞĂŵ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŝŶ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ͘  �ŝƚǇ��ĞĂů͗�>ĂƵŶĐŚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƌĚŝī��ĂƉŝƚĂů�ZĞŐŝŽŶ�'ƌŽǁƚŚ�ĂŶĚ��ŽŵƉĞƟƟǀĞŶĞƐƐ��ŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ƉƵďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ŝŶ� �ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ͘�'ŽǀĞƌŶĂŶĐĞ�ƉƌŝŶĐŝƉůĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�'ƌŽǁƚŚ�WĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ͘����ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ� ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ďǇ��ĂďŝŶĞƚ�ŝŶ�ϮϬϭϳ͘� 
�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ Yϭ YϮ Yϯ Yϰ 
&ĂĐŝůŝƚĂƚĞ�ŐƌŽǁƚŚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�&ŝŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ĂŶĚ�WƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂů�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƐĞĐƚŽƌ�ďǇ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌ�ϯϬϬ͕ϬϬϬ�ƐƋƵĂƌĞ�ĨĞĞƚ�ŽĨ�'ƌĂĚĞ���ŽĸĐĞ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƌĚŝī��ĞŶƚƌĂů��ŶƚĞƌƉƌŝƐĞ��ŽŶĞ�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϴ ' ' '  
�ĞůŝǀĞƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�Ă�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂů�ƚŽ��ĞŶƚƌĂů�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌ�Ă��ŝƚǇ��ĞĂů�ĨŽƌ��ĂƌĚŝī�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ͕�ĂůŽŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ƐƵďƐĞƋƵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ ' ' '  
/ŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�Ă�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞŐĞŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŝƚǇ�ĐĞŶƚƌĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ�Ă�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�DƵůƟ-WƵƌƉŽƐĞ��ƌĞŶĂ�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ ' ' �ͬ'  
tŽƌŬ�ǁŝƚŚ��ĂƌĚŝī�hŶŝǀĞƌƐŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂƐƚĞƌƉůĂŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ��ŝǀŝĐ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ŚĞƌŝƚĂŐĞ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�Ă�ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ĂƉƉƌĂŝƐĂů�ĨŽƌ��ŝƚǇ�,Ăůů�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ ' ' '  
�ĞǀĞůŽƉ��ĂƌĚŝī��ĂǇ�ĂƐ�Ă�ĐƌĞĂƟǀĞ�ŝŶĚƵƐƚƌŝĞƐ�ĐůƵƐƚĞƌ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�Ă�ƉůĂŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŐĞŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�DŽƵŶƚ�^ƚƵĂƌƚ�^ƋƵĂƌĞ�ŚĞƌŝƚĂŐĞ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƌĚŝī��ĂǇ�ǁĂƚĞƌĨƌŽŶƚ�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ ' ' '  
�ŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶƚĞƌŶĂƟŽŶĂů�^ƉŽƌƚƐ�sŝůůĂŐĞ�ĂƐ�Ă�ŵĂũŽƌ�ůĞŝƐƵƌĞ�ĚĞƐƟŶĂƟŽŶ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�Ă�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ǁĂƚĞƌĨƌŽŶƚ�ƐŝƚĞ�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ ' ' '  

WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ϯ͘��ƌĞĂƟŶŐ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ďĞƩĞƌ�ƉĂŝĚ�ũŽďƐ 
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ ^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ� 
ϯ͘Ϯ��ĂƌĚŝī�ŚĂƐ�Ă�ŚŝŐŚ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ĐŝƚǇ�ĞŶǀŝƌŽŶŵĞŶƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ĂƩƌĂĐƟǀĞ�ƉƵďůŝĐ�ƐƉĂĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŐŽŽĚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ 

WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ͗����ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞƌĐŚĂŶŐĞ�ǁĂƐ�ƐƵďŵŝƩĞĚ�ŝŶ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϯ͘��tŽƌŬ�ŝƐ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞƌ�ƚŽ�ĮŶĂůŝƐĞ�Ă�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ƉĂĐŬĂŐĞ͘�  /ƐƐƵĞƐ͗�&ŝŶĂůŝƐĞ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ƉĂĐŬĂŐĞ͘  DŝƟŐĂƟŶŐ�ĂĐƟŽŶƐ͗��WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ�ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ�ďƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�ĐĂƐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ƐĐĞŶĂƌŝŽ͘  

P
age 43



 �ĐŽŶŽŵŝĐ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�^ĐŽƌĞĐĂƌĚ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϮϬϭϳ 

�ĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ 
 

� 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ϰ͘�tŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ƚŽŐĞƚŚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƚƌĂŶƐĨŽƌŵ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ 
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ ^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ 
ϰ͘ϭ��ŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ĂŶĚ� ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂĐƟǀĞůǇ� ŝŶǀŽůǀĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ͕�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ŚŝŐŚůǇ�ǀĂůƵĞĚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ 

WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ͗��dŚĞ��ŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂů�Θ��ŽůůĂďŽƌĂƟŽŶ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ǁĂƐ�ƐĞƚ�ƵƉ�ŝŶ�ƐƵŵŵĞƌ�ϮϬϭϳ͘�ZĞŐƵůĂƌ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ��ŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂů�dĞĂŵ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂůŝƐĂƟŽŶ�Θ��ŽůůĂďŽƌĂƟŽŶ�WƌŽũĞĐƚ��ŽĂƌĚ�ĂŶĚ��ĂďŝŶĞƚ�DĞŵďĞƌ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ��ƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ��ĂƐĞ�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌĞĚ͘� /Ŷ�ůŝŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂůŝƐĂƟŽŶ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂů�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶƐ͘�&ŽƌƚŶŝŐŚƚůǇ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĞĐƟŽŶ�ůĞĂĚƐ�ŝŶ��ůĞĂŶŝŶŐ͕�^ĞĐƵƌŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�WĞƐƚ��ŽŶƚƌŽů�ƚŽ�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐ�Ă� ƉŝƉĞůŝŶĞ�ŽĨ�ǁŽƌŬ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŚŽƌƚ͕�ŵĞĚŝƵŵ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽŶŐ�ƚĞƌŵ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ͘�^ŽŵĞ�ƌĞĐĞŶƚ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƌĞĐǇĐůŝŶŐ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�WƌŝŶĐŝƉĂůŝƚǇ�^ƚĂĚŝƵŵ�ĂŶĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�,ĞĂůƚŚ��ŽĂƌĚ͕�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƵŶĐŚ�ŽĨ�DKdƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƚĂī�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞ�ďƵŝůƚ�ǁŽƌŬƐŚŽƉ�Ăƚ��ŽůĞƌŝĚŐĞ�ZŽĂĚ͘���ĐŽƐƚ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ƉƌŝĐŝŶŐ�ŵŽĚĞů�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ĨŽƌ��ĞŶƚƌĂů�dƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�;�d^Ϳ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƌŽůůĞĚ�ŽƵƚ�ƚŽ�Ăůů�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ͘�dŽƚĂů�&ĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƉĂĐŬĂŐĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐŽůĚ�ƚŽ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŝŶ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ�ƚĂůŬƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ�ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ǁŚŽ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐůǇ�ŽƉƚĞĚ�ŽƵƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƵƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͘��dŚĞƌĞ�ŚĂƐ�ĂůƌĞĂĚǇ�ďĞĞŶ�Ă�ŶŽƚĂďůĞ�ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƌŐĞƐƚ�ŚŝŐŚ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝī͕�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽǁ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�ƐĞǀĞƌĂů�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͘�tĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ƐĞĐƵƌĞĚ�Ă�ůĂƌŐĞ�ŇĞĞƚ�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ůŽĐĂů�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�Įƌŵ͘  /ŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�&ĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�;&DͿ͛Ɛ�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ͬ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐŽŌǁĂƌĞ�;Z�D/^Ϳ�ŝƐ�ŽŶ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�ƚŽ�͚ŐŽ�ůŝǀĞ͛�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ǇĞĂƌ͘���ĚĂƚĂ�ĐůĞĂŶƐŝŶŐ�ĞǆĞƌĐŝƐĞ�ŝƐ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ƵŶĚĞƌǁĂǇ͘  ZĞŐƵůĂƌ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐƚĂī�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂĚĞ�ƵŶŝŽŶƐ�ŚĂƐ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƐƚĂŬĞŚŽůĚĞƌ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵŽĚŝĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ŝŶ��ŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂů�ĂŶĚ��ŽůůĂďŽƌĂƟŽŶ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͘  'ƌĞĞŶ�ďĂŐ�ƌĞĐǇĐůŝŶŐ�ĐŽůůĞĐƟŽŶ�ƚŽŶŶĂŐĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ŚŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚƐ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝī�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ϱй�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ��ŚƌŝƐƚŵĂƐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐ�ǇĞĂƌ͖�ϯ͕ϭϵϱ�ƚŽŶŶĞƐ�ŽĨ�ŐƌĞĞŶ�ďĂŐƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĐŽůůĞĐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ϮϬϭϲ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ϯ͕Ϭϯϰ�ƚŽŶŶĞƐ�ŝŶ�ϮϬϭϱ�ĂŶĚ�Ϯ͕ϱϲϰ�ƚŽŶŶĞƐ�ŝŶ�ϮϬϭϰ͘�dŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�>ĂŵďǇ�tĂǇ�,ŽƵƐĞŚŽůĚ�tĂƐƚĞ�ZĞĐǇĐůŝŶŐ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�ŝƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ďƵŝůƚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŽůĚ�>ĂŵďǇ�tĂǇ�^ŝƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝůů�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚĂƚĞ�Ă�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ�ǀŽůƵŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƚƌĂĸĐ�ŽŶ�ƐŝƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŵŽƌĞ�ƐŬŝƉƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĐǇĐůĞ�Ă�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ�ǀĂƌŝĞƚǇ�ŽĨ�ŵĂƚĞƌŝĂůƐ͘�� �ŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ďǇ�&ĞďƌƵĂƌǇ�ϮϬϭϳ͘���ƉƵďůŝĐ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞĚŝĂ�ƉůĂŶ�ŝƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ͘  /ƐƐƵĞƐ͗ �ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�DĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�&ƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬƐ�–��ĞǀĞůŽƉ�Įƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƉƵƌƉŽƐĞ�^ĞĐŽŶĚ�'ĞŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ��ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�DĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�&ƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬƐ�ďǇ�ƐƵŵŵĞƌ�ϮϬϭϳ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƉůĂĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ĞǆƚĞƌŶĂů�ĐŽŶƚƌĂĐƚƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĂƌĞ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƌĞŶĞǁĞĚ͘ ZĞĐǇĐůŝŶŐ�tĂƐƚĞ�–�/ŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ŽĨ�ŚŝŐŚ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ƌĞĐǇĐůĞĚ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ƚŽ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ�ƌĞĐǇĐůŝŶŐ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚƐ͘  DŝƟŐĂƟŶŐ�ĂĐƟŽŶƐ͗ �ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�DĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�&ƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬƐ�–�;ϭŝͿ�hŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ�ƐƵƌǀĞǇƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ƐƚĂƚĞƐ�ďƵŝůĚŝŶŐƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƟƐĞ�ŵĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ďƵŝůƚ�ŝŶƚŽ�^ĞĐŽŶĚ�'ĞŶĞƌĂƟŽŶ��ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�DĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�&ƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬƐ͘��dŚŝƐ�ǁŝůů�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ŐƌĞĂƚĞƌ�ĂƐƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ŽďůŝŐĂƟŽŶ�ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ƚŽ�ĐůŝĞŶƚƐ͘ ZĞĐǇĐůŝŶŐ�tĂƐƚĞ�–�;ϮŝͿ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŝŶŐ�ZĞ-ƵƐĞ��ĞŶƚƌĞ͘�;ϮŝŝͿ�>ĂƵŶĐŚĞĚ�ŶĞǁ�ƌĞĐǇĐůŝŶŐ�ĐŽůůĞĐƟŽŶƐ͘�;ϮŝŝŝͿ��ŽŵŵĞŶĐĞĚ�ĐŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽŽĚ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ƚƌĞĂƚŵĞŶƚ�ĨĂĐŝůŝƚǇ�ŝŶ�dƌĞŵŽƌĨĂ͘  EĞǆƚ�ŬĞǇ�ƐƚĞƉƐ͗ �ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�DĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�&ƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬƐ�–�;ϭŝͿ�/ŶƐƉĞĐƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƟƐĞĚ͘�;ϭŝŝͿ�/ŶƚĞƌŝŵ��ƵŝůĚŝŶŐ�DĂŝŶƚĞŶĂŶĐĞ�&ƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ͘ ZĞĐǇĐůŝŶŐ�tĂƐƚĞ�–�;ϮŝͿ�WƌŽĐƵƌĞ�ĂƵƚŽ�ƐŽƌƚĞƌ͘�;ϮŝŝͿ�WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ZĞ-ƵƐĞ��ĞŶƚƌĞ�–�^ĞĐƵƌĞ�ƉƌŽƉĞƌƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚŝƌĚ�ƐĞĐƚŽƌ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌ͘�;ϮŝŝŝͿ�ZĞǀŝĞǁ�ůĞǀĞů�ŽĨ�ĐƌŽƐƐ�ĐŽŶƚĂŵŝŶĂƟŽŶ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽŽĚ�ǁĂƐƚĞ�ƐƚƌĞĂŵ͘� 
�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ Yϭ YϮ Yϯ Yϰ 
�ŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ŽĨ�ŝŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�tĂƐƚĞ͕��ůĞĂŶƐŝŶŐ͕�WĂƌŬƐ͕�,ŝŐŚǁĂǇƐ͕��ĞƐŝŐŶ͕�&ůĞĞƚ�ĂŶĚ�&ĂĐŝůŝƟĞƐ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͕�ŝƐ�ŽƉĞƌĂƟŽŶĂů�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ '  ' '  
/ŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ��ĂƌĚŝī�ƚŽ�ĞŶĂďůĞ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ƚŽ�ĞǆĐĞĞĚ�ŝƚƐ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ƌĞĐǇĐůŝŶŐ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�;ϱϴйͿ�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ �ͬ' �ͬ' �ͬ'  
/Ŷ�ůŝŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ĐŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂůŝƐĂƟŽŶ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ͕�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�Ă�ĐŽŶƟŶƵŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐ�ĐŽŵŵĞƌĐŝĂů�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶĐĞ�ďǇ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ� �ͬ' ' '  

P
age 44



�ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�Θ�>ŝĨĞůŽŶŐ�>ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�^ĐŽƌĞĐĂƌĚ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϮϬϭϳ 

KƵƌ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ �ĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ�;ĐŽŶƚ͘Ϳ 

 

 
� 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌƐ�;ƐĞůĞĐƟŽŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�WůĂŶ�ĂŶĚ��ĂƌĚŝī�ϮϬϮϬͿ�;dŽƚĂů�с�ϭϬ�Ϳ 
WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌ     

�W�с��ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�WůĂŶ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌ ϮϬϮϬ�с��ĂƌĚŝī�ϮϬϮϬ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌ �^�с��ƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ƐĞĐƵƌĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĮŐƵƌĞƐ�;ŝŶ�ǇĞĂƌͿ W�с�WƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶĂů�ƌĞƐƵůƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĂĐĂĚĞŵŝĐ�ǇĞĂƌ &с�&ŝŶĂů�ZĞƐƵůƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĂĐĂĚĞŵŝĐ�ǇĞĂƌ Z�с�ZĞĂů�ƟŵĞ�ĮŐƵƌĞƐ 

ZĞƐƵůƚ�ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ 
dĂƌŐĞƚ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ Yϭ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ YϮ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ 

Yϯ WŽƐŝͲƟŽŶ 
  dĂƌŐĞƚ�ϮϬϭϳ-ϭϴ 

Yϰ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ 
Z�' 

�ĐĂĚĞŵŝĐ�zĞĂƌ ϮϬϭϰ-ϭϱ 
�ĐĂĚĞŵŝĐ�zĞĂƌ ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ 

�ĐĂĚĞŵŝĐ�zĞĂƌ ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ ;:ƵŶĞ�ϮϬϭϲͿ 

�ĐĂĚĞŵŝĐ�zĞĂƌ ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ ;^ĞƉƚ�ϮϬϭϲͿ 

�ĐĂĚĞŵŝĐ�zĞĂƌ ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ ;�ĞĐ�ϮϬϭϲͿ 

�ĐĂĚĞŵŝĐ�zĞĂƌ ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ   
�ĐĂĚĞŵŝĐ�zĞĂƌ ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ ;DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳͿ 

  

WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ��>ĞǀĞů�Ϯн�ƚŚƌĞƐŚŽůĚ�;ϱ�'�^�Ɛ�Ăƚ��Ύ-��͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�Ă�'�^��ŐƌĂĚĞ��Ύ-��ŝŶ��ŶŐůŝƐŚ�Žƌ�tĞůƐŚ�ĮƌƐƚ�ůĂŶŐƵĂŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�DĂƚŚĞŵĂƟĐƐͿ�Ăƚ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϰ�;�W�Θ�ϮϬϮϬͿ 
ϱϵ͘ϯϬй ϲϱ͘ϬϬй ϲϭ͘ϰϬй�^ ϲϮй� W ϲϮ͘ϱй&� ϲϳ͘ϴϴй �^  � 

WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�&^D�ƉƵƉŝůƐ��ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯн�ƚŚƌĞƐŚŽůĚ�Ăƚ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϰ�;�W�Θ�ϮϬϮϬͿ ϯϮ͘Ϯϯй ϰϱ͘ϰϱй ϯϱ͘ϵϱй�^ ϯϱ͘ϰй W ϯϵ͘ϯй&� ϱϬй �^ Z 
WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯ�ƚŚƌĞƐŚŽůĚ�;ϱ�
'�^�Ɛ�Ăƚ��Ύ-��Ϳ�Ăƚ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϰ��;�WͿ ϴϭ͘Ϭϲй ϴϳ͘Ϭϴй ϴϯ͘ϳϵй�^ ϴϰй W ϴϰ͘ϯй&� ĚĞůĞƚĞĚ �^  � 
WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�>ĞǀĞů�ϭ�ƚŚƌĞƐŚŽůĚ�;ϱ�
'�^�Ɛ�Ăƚ�'ƌĂĚĞ��-�'Ϳ�Ăƚ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϰ�;�WͿ ϵϮ͘ϭϱй ϵϳ͘ϴϭй ϵϱ͘ϭϬй�^ ϵϰй W ϵϰ͘ϰй&� ĚĞůĞƚĞĚ �^  � 
WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƌĞ�^ƵďũĞĐƚ�/ŶĚŝĐĂͲƚŽƌ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϯ�;�WͿ ϴϯ͘ϰϬй ϴϱ͘ϬϬй ϴϲ͘ϲϬйW ϴϲ͘ϲй & ϴϲ͘ϲй&� ϴϴй �^  ' 
WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞ�ϱ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�&ŽƵŶͲĚĂƟŽŶ�WŚĂƐĞ�KƵƚĐŽŵĞ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌ�;ϮϬϮϬͿ ϴϲ͘ϳϯй ϴϲ͘ϬϬй ϴϴ͘ϱϴйW ϴϵ͘ϵй & ϴϴ͘ϵй&� ϴϴ͘ϲϯй �^  ' 
WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƌĞ�^ƵďũĞĐƚ�/ŶĚŝĐĂͲƚŽƌ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ�;�W�Θ�ϮϬϮϬͿ ϴϳ͘ϳϲй ϴϵ͘ϲϮй ϴϵ͘ϱϯйW ϴϵ͘ϱй & ϴϵ͘ϱй& ϵϯ͘Ϭϵй �^ � 
WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�&^D�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƌĞ�^ƵďũĞĐƚ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�Ϯ� ;�W�Θ�ϮϬϮϬͿ ϳϲ͘ϳϰй ϴϭ͘ϭϰй ϳϵ͘ϭϲйW ϴϲ͘ϵй W ϳϴ͘ϴй& ϴϱй �^ � 
WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ĂƩĞŶĚĂŶĐĞ�Ăƚ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌǇ�ƐĐŚŽŽů� 
;�W�Θ�ϮϬϮϬͿ ϵϱ͘ϭй ϵϱ͘ϰй   ϵϱ͘ϬϴйW ϵϱй� W 

ϵϱ͘ϰйZ ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ ϵϱ͘ϱй Z � 
WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ĂƩĞŶĚĂŶĐĞ�Ăƚ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�ƐĐŚŽŽů� 
;�W�ΘϮϬϮϬͿ ϵϯ͘ϴϲй ϵϱй ϵϰ͘ϭϴйW ϵϰ͘ϱй & 

ϵϰ͘ϯйZ ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ ϵϱ͘ϱй Z � 

�ĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ   
  

 

WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�Ϯ͘�^ƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ǀƵůŶĞƌĂďůĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ 
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ ^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ 

Ϯ͘ϭ͘��WĞŽƉůĞ�Ăƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝī�ĂƌĞ�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚĞĚ 
��ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ǁĂƐ�ĐŽŶǀĞŶĞĚ�ŝŶ�EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�Ă��ŚŝůĚ�&ƌŝĞŶĚůǇ�sŝƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ƚŚĞ�hE/��&�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶ�ĨƌŽŵ��ĂƌĚŝī͘��ŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞĚ͘� dŚĞ�ĨŽƵƌ�ŬĞǇ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ��ĂƌĚŝī�ŝƐ�ĂŝŵŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ĂƌĞ͗� �ƌĞĂƟŶŐ�>ŝǀĞĂďůĞ͕��ŚŝůĚ�&ƌŝĞŶĚůǇ�^ƚƌĞĞƚƐ �Z���ƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ�ƚŽ��ŽŵŵŝƐƐŝŽŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�WƌŽĐƵƌŝŶŐ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ ^ŽĐŝĂů�/ŶĨƌĂƐƚƌƵĐƚƵƌĞ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ KƵƚĐŽŵĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�>ŽŽŬĞĚ��ŌĞƌ��ŚŝůĚƌĞŶ dŚĞ�hE/��&��ŚŝůĚ�ZŝŐŚƚƐ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶ�ǁĂƐ�ƐƵďŵŝƩĞĚ�ŝŶ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ͘�  /ƐƐƵĞƐͬDŝƟŐĂƟŶŐ��ĐƟŽŶƐͬEĞǆƚ�^ƚĞƉƐ ��ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�hE/��&�ŝƐ�ĞǆƉĞĐƚĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ͘� 

�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ Yϭ YϮ Yϯ Yϰ 
tŽƌŬ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ��ĂƌĚŝī�ďĞĐŽŵŝŶŐ�Ă��ŚŝůĚ�&ƌŝĞŶĚůǇ��ŝƚǇ�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ� Zͬ� �ͬ' �ͬ'  

WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ϯ͘��ƌĞĂƟŶŐ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ďĞƩĞƌ�ƉĂŝĚ�ũŽďƐ 
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�KďũĞĐͲƟǀĞƐ ^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ 

ϯ͘ϯ͘���ůů�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ŵĂŬĞ�Ă�ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐĨƵů�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƟŽŶ�ŝŶƚŽ� ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ͕�ĞĚƵĐĂͲƟŽŶ�Žƌ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ 

�Ŷ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ĐŽ-ŽƌĚŝŶĂƚĞĚ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ�ƚŽ�ƚĂƌŐĞƟŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�Ăƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�zĞĂƌ�ϭϭ�ůĞĂǀĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ŝŶƚŽ�ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ͕�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�Žƌ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƉŽƐƚ�ϭϲ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ͘�dŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�ůĞĂĚ�ǁŽƌŬĞƌ�ŵŽĚĞů�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐƚƌĞŶŐƚŚĞŶĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆƚĞŶĚĞĚ͘��ĂƌĚŝī�ŶŽǁ�ŚĂƐ�Ϯϯ�ǇŽƵƚŚ�ŵĞŶƚŽƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ϲ�ƐĞŶŝŽƌ�ǇŽƵƚŚ�ŽĸĐĞƌƐ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŝƚǇ͘� ϳϱϬ�zĞĂƌ�ϭϭ�ůĞĂǀĞƌƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƐƚ�ĂĐĂĚĞŵŝĐ�ǇĞĂƌ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ŚŽŵĞ�ǀŝƐŝƚ͕�ƉŚŽŶĞ�ĐĂůů�ĂŶĚ�ůĞƩĞƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĨŽůůŽǁ�ƵƉ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ͘�dŚŝƐ�ĐŽŚŽƌƚ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞĚ�ŽĨ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�s�W�;sƵůŶĞƌĂďŝůŝƚǇ� �ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�WƌŽĮůĞͿ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ďǇ�^ĐŚŽŽůƐ͕��ĂƌĞĞƌƐ�tĂůĞƐ�Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�>��ĂƐ�Ăƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ŽĨ�ďĞĐŽŵŝŶŐ�E��d͘��ĂƌůǇ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƟǀĞ�ĮŐƵƌĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�zĞĂƌ�ϭϭ�ůĞĂǀĞƌƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ�ĂĐĂĚĞŵŝĐ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƐŚŽǁ�Ă�ƉŽƐŝƟǀĞ�ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�E��d͘��ĐƚƵĂů�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ŝŶ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϰ͘ WŽƐŝƟǀĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŵĂĚĞ�ŝŶ�ƐĞĐƵƌŝŶŐ�ŵƵůƟ-ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ͛Ɛ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐŝŽŶ͕�ǀŝĂ�͚dŚĞ��ĂƌĚŝī��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ͛͘��ƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƐƚ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ͕�ǁĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ŽƵƌ�ĂŵďŝƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ƚŽ�ŝŶŶŽǀĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ͕�ǀŝĂ�ŝŶƉƵƚ�Ăƚ��ĂƌĚŝī��ƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ�tĞĞŬ�ŝŶ�EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�Ă��ŽƵŶĐŝů-ůĞĚ�ǁŽƌŬƐŚŽƉ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŵĂũŽƌ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌƐ�ŝŶ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ͘�� tŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͕�ǁŽƌŬ�ŝƐ�ƵŶĚĞƌǁĂǇ�ƚŽ�ĞǆƉůŽƌĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ĞǆƚĞŶĚ�Ă�ďƌŽĂĚĞƌ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ƚŽ�ǇŽƵŶŐ� ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƚŽ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ƐŬŝůůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞĐƵƌĞ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ǀŝĂ�ƚƌĂŝŶĞĞƐŚŝƉƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƉƉƌĞŶƟĐĞƐŚŝƉƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ��ŽƵŶĐŝů� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͘  /ƐƐƵĞƐͬDŝƟŐĂƟŶŐ��ĐƟŽŶƐͬEĞǆƚ�^ƚĞƉƐ dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ƐƚĂŐĞ͘  dŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�Ă�ĐůĞĂƌ�ĂƉƉĞƟƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŝůůŝŶŐŶĞƐƐ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�Ăůů�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ�ƚŽŐĞƚŚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌ�͚dŚĞ��ĂƌĚŝī� �ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ͛͘�  �ƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ͕�ǁĞ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƐŽůŝĚĂƟŶŐ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ĚĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞƫŶŐ�ŽƵƚ�Ă�ĐůĞĂƌ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ŵŽĚĞů�ƚŽ�ĚƌŝǀĞ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƟĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĂĐƟŽŶ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƐĞƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ǁŝƚŚ� ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ͘  &ŝŶĂů�E��d�ĮŐƵƌĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ŝŶ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϰ�–�Ăƚ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ƉŽŝŶƚ�Ă�ŵŽƌĞ�ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ�ŽǀĞƌǀŝĞǁ�ŽĨ� ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ͘� 
�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ Yϭ YϮ Yϯ Yϰ 
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ŵƵůƟ�ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ĂƌƌĂŶŐĞŵĞŶƚƐ͗ 
· dŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĞĂƌůǇ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�Ăƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ŽĨ�ŶŽƚ��ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ�ƚŽ� ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ͕�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�Žƌ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ĂŌĞƌ�ůĞĂǀŝŶŐ�ƐĐŚŽŽů͕�ĂŶĚ · dŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�ĞĂƌůǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ� 

�ͬ' Zͬ� '  

^ƚƌĞŶŐƚŚĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĞǆƚĞŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆŝƐƟŶŐ�͚ůĞĂĚ�ǁŽƌŬĞƌ͛�ŵŽĚĞů�ƚŽ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚůǇ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ǇŽƵŶŐ� ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŝŶƚŽ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ͕�ƵƟůŝƐŝŶŐ��ƵƌŽƉĞĂŶ�^ŽĐŝĂů�&ƵŶĚ�ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ĞǆƚĞŶĚ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ϯ�ǇĞĂƌƐ  �ͬ' ' '  
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ƐŚĂƌŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂĐŬŝŶŐ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵƐ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ĨŽƌ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƉƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƉŽƐƚ�ϭϲ�ďǇ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ Zͬ� ' �ͬ'  
/ŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŚĞ�tĞůƐŚ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�zŽƵƚŚ�'ƵĂƌĂŶƚĞĞ�ĂŶĚ��ĂƌĚŝī��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ��ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐŝŽŶ�ƌŽƵƚĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�Ăůů�ůĞĂƌŶĞƌƐ�ďǇ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ �ͬ' Zͬ� Zͬ�  
�ŶŚĂŶĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ƚŽ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƐŬŝůůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞĐƵƌĞ� ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝī� �ͬ' Zͬ� Zͬ�  

P
age 45



�ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�Θ�>ŝĨĞůŽŶŐ�>ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�^ĐŽƌĞĐĂƌĚ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϮϬϭϳ 
  

 

�ĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ��;ĐŽŶƚ͘Ϳ 
WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ϭ͘��ĞƩĞƌ��ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�^ŬŝůůƐ�ĨŽƌ�Ăůů 
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ ^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ� 

ϭ͘ϭ͘���ǀĞƌǇ��ĂƌĚŝī�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŝƐ�Ă�ŐŽŽĚ�ƐĐŚŽŽů 

^ĐŚŽŽů�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�–�^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ 
· &ŝŶĂů�ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ďƵŝůĚ�ŽŶ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ϮϬϭϰ-ϭϱ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŝƚǇ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵŝŶŐ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĂƟŽŶĂů�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�Ă�ǁŝĚĞ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŝŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�&ŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶ�WŚĂƐĞ�ƚŽ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϰ͘� 
· dŚĞ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�&ƌĞĞ�^ĐŚŽŽů�DĞĂůƐ�;Ğ&^DͿ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ŚĂƐ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĂƉ�ŝŶ�ĂƩĂŝŶŵĞŶƚ�ŝƐ�ƐŵĂůůĞƌ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝī�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�Ăůů�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŬĞǇ�ƐƚĂŐĞƐ�ǁŚĞŶ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�tĂůĞƐ͘�� · �ƚ�<ĞǇ�^ƚĂŐĞ�ϰ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯн�ƚŚƌĞƐŚŽůĚ�;ϱ�'�^�Ɛ��Ύ-��ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ��ŶŐůŝƐŚͬtĞůƐŚ�ĂŶĚ�DĂƚŚƐͿ͕�ĮŶĂů�ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ƐŚŽǁ�ƚŚĂƚ�Ğ&^D�ƉƵƉŝůƐ͛�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ďǇ�ϳ͘ϭƉƉƚ͕�ƌĞĚƵĐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŐĂƉ�ŝŶ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŶŽŶ-&^D�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞůŽǁ�ϯϬƉƉƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƌƐƚ�ƟŵĞ͘� · ^ĐŚŽŽů�ůĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ��ĂƌĚŝī�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ŝƐ�ƐƚƌŽŶŐĞƌ͕�ĂƐ�ĞǀŝĚĞŶĐĞĚ�ďǇ�ƉƵƉŝů�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ͕�EĂƟŽŶĂů��ĂƚĞŐŽƌŝƐĂƟŽŶ�;&ŝŶĂů��ĂƚĞŐŽƌŝƐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĨŽƌ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇͿ�ĂŶĚ��ƐƚǇŶ�ŝŶƐƉĞĐƟŽŶ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞƐ͘�� 
· dŚĞ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�ĂƩĞŶĚĂŶĐĞ�ĮŐƵƌĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ�ĂĐĂĚĞŵŝĐ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƐŽ�ĨĂƌ�ŝƐ�ϵϰ͘ϯй͘�&Žƌ�ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ͕�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ�ĞŶĚ�ƌĞƐƵůƚ�ǁĂƐ�ϵϰ͘ϱй�ĂŶĚ��ĂƌĚŝī�ǁĂƐ�ƉůĂĐĞĚ�ϵƚŚ�ŽƵƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ϮϮ�ůŽĐĂů�ĂƵƚŚŽƌŝƟĞƐ�ŝŶ�tĂůĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĞĚ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĂƟŽŶĂů�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ͘�ZĞĂů�dŝŵĞ�&ŝŐƵƌĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ůŝŬĞůǇ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ŝŶ�ďŽƚŚ�ƐĞĐƚŽƌƐ�ĂƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĂƚĂ�ŝƐ�ĂŶĂůǇƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�tĞůĨĂƌĞ�ƚĞĂŵ͘ · dŚĞ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌǇ�ĂƩĞŶĚĂŶĐĞ�ĮŐƵƌĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĂĐĂĚĞŵŝĐ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƐŽ�ĨĂƌ�ŝƐ�ϵϱ͘ϰй�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝƐ�ĂŶ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ�ĮŐƵƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĂƟŽŶĂů�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ůĂƐƚ�ǇĞĂƌ͘� 
· dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ϱϮ�ůĞĂƌŶĞƌƐ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�:ƵŶŝŽƌ��ƉƉƌĞŶƟĐĞƐŚŝƉƐ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂůƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ŝŶƚĂŬĞ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƐĐƌĞĞŶĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ͘� 
· ��ƐĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�,ĞĂĚƐ�ŽĨ�DĂƚŚĞŵĂƟĐƐ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ďǇ�ŽŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌŝĐƵůƵŵ�ŚƵďƐ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ŝŶ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞƐ�ĨŽĐƵƐŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�ƚĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ�ŝŶ��ŶŐůŝƐŚ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂƚŚĞŵĂƟĐƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŝŐŚƚ�ĐƵƌƌŝĐƵůƵŵ�ŚƵď�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƐƵďũĞĐƚƐ͘�tŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĐŽŶƐŽƌƟĂ͕�Ă�ŶĂƟŽŶĂů�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ŽĨ�ƌĞĐƌƵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ŝƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ͘�dŚĞ��ĞŶƚƌĂů�^ŽƵƚŚ��ŽŶƐŽƌƟƵŵ�ŚĂƐ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĐƌƵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ϱϬ�ŐƌĂĚƵĂƚĞƐ�ŽǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ƚǁŽ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�dĞĂĐŚ�&ŝƌƐƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĚĞƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ͘� ^ĐŚŽŽů�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�–�/ƐƐƵĞƐͬDŝƟŐĂƟŶŐ��ĐƟŽŶƐͬEĞǆƚ�^ƚĞƉƐ 
· dŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ƐƟůů�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ŶĞĞĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�>ĞǀĞů�Ϯ͕�>ĞǀĞů�ϭ�ĂŶĚ�ĐĂƉƉĞĚ�ƉŽŝŶƚƐ�ƐĐŽƌĞ͘��dŚĞ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂƌĞ�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŶŶƵĂů�ZĞƉŽƌƚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ��ĂƌĚŝī�^ĐŚŽŽůƐ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŐŽĞƐ�ƚŽ��ĂďŝŶĞƚ�ŝŶ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ͘� · dĞĂŵƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂǁĂƌĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĨŽĐƵƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�Ğ&^D�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĂƌĞĂ�ŽĨ�ǁŽƌŬ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƌĞ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚŝŶŐůǇ͘�WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�>ŽŽŬĞĚ��ŌĞƌ��ŚŝůĚƌĞŶ͛Ɛ��ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�;>���Ϳ�ƚĞĂŵ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ĐůŽƐĞ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ͘�hŶĚĞƌĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�ŵŝŶŽƌŝƚǇ�ĞƚŚŶŝĐ�ŐƌŽƵƉƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ĨŽĐƵƐĞĚ�ŝŶƉƵƚ�ǀŝĂ�Ă�ǀŝƌƚƵĂů�ƚƌĂĐŬĞƌ͘�WƵƉŝůƐ�ŝŶ�ŶĞĞĚ�ŽĨ�ŝŶƚĞƌǀĞŶƟŽŶ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŵĂĚĞ͘� 
· dŚĞ�ůŽǁĞƐƚ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵŝŶŐ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽǁ�ŝŶ�͚^ƉĞĐŝĂů�DĞĂƐƵƌĞƐ͛�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƐƉĞĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�DŝĐŚĂĞůƐƚŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�'ůǇŶ��Ğƌǁ�ŝŶ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ͘��dŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ŝŶ�Ă�ĨŽƌŵĂů��ƐƚǇŶ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌŝŶŐ�ĐĂƚĞŐŽƌǇ�ŚĂǀĞ�ůŽĐĂů�ĂƵƚŚŽƌŝƚǇ�ƐƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ĂĐƟŽŶ�ǁŚŝĐŚ� ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚĞŶƐŝǀĞ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ŝƐ�ŝŶ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�>��ĂŶĚ��ŽŶƐŽƌƟƵŵ͘� 
· dŚĞ�>��ŝƐ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĐůŽƐĞůǇ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ĐůĞĂƌ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂů�ĐƌŝƚĞƌŝĂ�ƚŽ�ŵĂǆŝŵŝƐĞ�ƵƉƚĂŬĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƚĞŶƟŽŶ͘� 
· dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ƌĞĐƌƵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ĚŝĸĐƵůƟĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƚĞƌŵƐ�ŽĨ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƋƵĂŶƟƚǇ�ŽĨ�ŵĂƚŚĞŵĂƟĐƐ�ƚĞĂĐŚĞƌƐ�Ăƚ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�ůĞǀĞů͘� 
 ^ĐŚŽŽů�KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶ͕��ĐĐĞƐƐ�ĂŶĚ�WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�–�^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ 
· dŚĞ��ĂŶĚ���ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ŝƐ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ�ǁĞůů͘�dŚĞ�ĐŽŶƐƚƌƵĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ��ĂƐƚĞƌŶ�,ŝŐŚ�ŝƐ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐŝŶŐ�ǁĞůů�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ŶĞǁ�WƌŝŵĂƌǇ�^ĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĂŶĚ�'ĂďĂůĨĂͬ'ůĂŶ��ĞƵďĂů�ĂƌĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐƵďŵŝƩĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĂů͘ 
· dŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ��ĂŶĚ���ǁŝůů�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ƉƌŝŵĂƌǇ�ƉůĂĐĞƐ�ŝŶ��ŶŐůŝƐŚ�ŵĞĚŝƵŵ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ďǇ�ϲϬ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶ�tĞůƐŚ�ŵĞĚŝƵŵ�ďǇ�ϵϬ͘� · ��ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ��Ž-ŽƌĚŝŶĂƚĞĚ�ĂĚŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�&ĂŝƚŚͬ�&ŽƵŶĚĂƟŽŶ�^ĞĐƚŽƌ�ĨŽƌ�ϮϬϭϴ-ϭϵ��ĚŵŝƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�,ŝŐŚ�^ĐŚŽŽůƐ͘ ^ĐŚŽŽů�KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶ͕��ĐĐĞƐƐ�ĂŶĚ�WůĂŶŶŝŶŐ�–�/ƐƐƵĞƐͬDŝƟŐĂƟŶŐ��ĐƟŽŶƐͬEĞǆƚ�^ƚĞƉƐ dŚĞ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ϭϮ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ�ŝƐ�ƚŽ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞ�ĚĞƚĂŝůĞĚ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ĂŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�ƐƵĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶĚŝƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�ĞƐƚĂƚĞ�ŝŶ�ŽƌĚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƟĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŶǇ��ĂŶĚ���ƐƵďŵŝƐƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ϮϭƐƚ��ĞŶƚƵƌǇ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ͘���ƐƚĂŬĞŚŽůĚĞƌ�ƌĞĨĞƌĞŶĐĞ�ŐƌŽƵƉ�ŝƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ� ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚŝƐ�ǁŽƌŬ͘ 
 WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ͕�ZĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�–�^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ /ŵƉƌŽǀŝŶŐ�ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�Ă�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ͘���ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ŽĨ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŚĂƐ�ƚĂŬĞŶ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ďǇ��ĂƐƚĞƌ�ϮϬϭϳ�ĂŶ�ŽŶůŝŶĞ�ƉŽƌƚĂů�ĨŽƌ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ŝƚ�ŽīĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŝŶ�ƉůĂĐĞ͕�ĞŶĂďůŝŶŐ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ŽŶůŝŶĞ͘�dŚĞ�KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶĂů��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�dĞĂŵ�ŚĂƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�Ă�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�^ĐŚŽŽů��ĂƚĞƌŝŶŐ�KƉĞƌĂƟŽŶ͘ WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ͕�ZĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�–�/ƐƐƵĞƐͬDŝƟŐĂƟŶŐ��ĐƟŽŶƐͬEĞǆƚ�^ƚĞƉƐ dŚĞ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ�ŝƐ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĂŶŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞĸĐŝĞŶĐǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞŶĞƐƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ŝƚ�ŽīĞƌƐ͘�&ƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ǁŽƌŬ�ŝƐ�ƉůĂŶŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŽīĞƌ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ǀĂůƵĞ�ĨŽƌ�ŵŽŶĞǇ�ƚŽ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ͘� 
 /ŶĐůƵƐŝŽŶ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝī�–�^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ dŚĞ��ĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�>ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�EĞĞĚƐ�;�>EͿ�ĂŶĚ��ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�dƌŝďƵŶĂů��ŝůů�ǁĂƐ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ƐƐĞŵďůǇ�ŝŶ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�>��ŝƐ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌŝŶŐ�Ă�ƌĞƐƉŽŶƐĞ͘�dŚĞ�>�Ɛ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ĞŶƚƌĂů�^ŽƵƚŚ��ŽŶƐŽƌƟƵŵ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŵĂĚĞ�Ă�ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐĨƵů�ďŝĚ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ��>E�/ŶŶŽǀĂƟŽŶ�'ƌĂŶƚ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϴ�ƚŽ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞ�ĨŽƌ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŝŶ�ĐŽůůĂďŽƌĂƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ͕�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ͘ /ŶĐůƵƐŝŽŶ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝī�–�/ƐƐƵĞƐͬDŝƟŐĂƟŶŐ��ĐƟŽŶƐͬEĞǆƚ�^ƚĞƉƐ dŚĞ��>E�/ŶŶŽǀĂƟŽŶ�'ƌĂŶƚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƵƌ�ĐŽůůĂďŽƌĂƟǀĞ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ͗� tŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�^ƉĞĐŝĂů��ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶĂů�EĞĞĚƐ�;^�EͿͬ�>E��Ž-ŽƌĚŝŶĂƚŽƌƐ�ƚŽ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ƉůĂŶŶŝŶŐ ZĞǀŝĞǁŝŶŐ�ŵƵůƟ-ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƟŽŶ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ϭϰ-Ϯϱ �ĞǀĞůŽƉŝŶŐ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂů�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ŽƵƚƌĞĂĐŚ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂůŝƐƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ WƌŽĐĞƐƐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĚŝƐĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞƐŽůƵƟŽŶͬĂǀŽŝĚŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶŇŝĐƚ� 

�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ Yϭ YϮ Yϯ Yϰ 
�ĞůŝǀĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�^ĐŚŽŽůƐ�KƌŐĂŶŝƐĂƟŽŶ�WƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƟŽŶ�ŽĨ��ĂŶĚ���ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽũĞĐƚƐ�ďǇ�ϯϭƐƚ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϵ  ' ' '  
�ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�͚�ĞŶƚƌĂů�^ŽƵƚŚ�tĂůĞƐ�ŶĞƚǁŽƌŬĞĚ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĐŽŵŵƵŶŝƚǇ͕͛�ƌƵŶ�ďǇ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ďǇ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϳ͕�ĨŽĐƵƐƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ůĞĂĚĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ĂŶĚ�ƚĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ͘  ' ' '  
/ŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ĐƵƌƌŝĐƵůƵŵ�ĨŽƌ�tĂůĞƐ�-�͚^ƵĐĐĞƐƐĨƵů�&ƵƚƵƌĞƐ͛�-�ďǇ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϮϭĐŽŵŵĞŶĐŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŶƚƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŝŐŝƚĂů��ŽŵƉĞƚĞŶĐĞ�&ƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ�ŝŶ�Ăůů��ĂƌĚŝī�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ďǇ�^ĞƉƚĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ �ͬ' ' �ͬ'  
/ŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ĨƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ŝŶ�ĂĐĐŽƌĚĂŶĐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞŐŝƐůĂƟǀĞ�ĨƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ�ďǇ�ϮϬϮϭ ' ' '  
dƵƌŶ�ĂƌŽƵŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŝŶŽƌŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�^ĞĐŽŶĚĂƌǇ�^ĐŚŽŽůƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ĐĂƵƐŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶ�ďǇ�:ƵůǇ�ϮϬϭϴ Zͬ� Zͬ� Zͬ�  
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƉĞƌƟƐĞ�ŽĨ��ĂƌĚŝī�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ŝŶ�DĂƚŚĞŵĂƟĐƐ�ĂŶĚ��ŶŐůŝƐŚ͕�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐŝŶŐ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ŝŶ�ƚĞĂĐŚŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�Ăƚ�Ăůů�ůĞǀĞůƐ Zͬ� Zͬ� Zͬ�  
�ĚĚƌĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ƉŽǀĞƌƚǇ�ŽŶ�ĂƩĂŝŶŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂƌŬĞĚ�ǀĂƌŝĂƟŽŶƐ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĂƩĂŝŶŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�&^D�ƉƵƉŝůƐ �ͬ' Zͬ� Zͬ�  

P
age 46



^ŽĐŝĂů�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�^ĐŽƌĞĐĂƌĚ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϮϬϭϳ 
KƵƌ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ �ĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ�;ĐŽŶƚ͘Ϳ 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   
�ĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ  

�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ Yϭ YϮ Yϯ Yϰ 
�ŵďĞĚ�ŬĞǇ�ĞůĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�WĂƌĞŶƟŶŐ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ŝŶ�ĐŽůůĂďŽƌĂƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ  ' ' '  

WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌ ZĞƐƵůƚ�ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ 
Yϭ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ YϮ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ Yϯ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ Yϰ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ dĂƌŐĞƚ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ dŚƌĞƐŚŽůĚ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ 

zĞĂƌ��ŶĚ ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ Z�' 

WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ǁŽƌŬ�ǀĂĐĂŶĐŝĞƐ�ŝŶ�Ăůů�ƚĞĂŵƐ ϮϮ͘Ϯй ϮϮ͘ϵй  Ϯϰ͘ϴй Ϯϯ͘ϯй�    ϭϴй Ϯϰй   Z 
WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶ�ůŝǀŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĨĂŵŝůǇ EĞǁ ϱϵ͘Ϭй ϱϳ͘ϯй   ϱϲ͘ϱй�   Eͬ� Eͬ�   Eͬ� 
WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ůŽŽŬĞĚ�ĂŌĞƌ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ƌĞƚƵƌŶĞĚ�ŚŽŵĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĐĂƌĞ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ EĞǁ ϯ͘Ϯй ϲ͘Ϯй�  ϵ͘ϵй�   Eͬ� Eͬ�   Eͬ� 
dŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĂĚƵůƚƐ�ŝŶ�ŶĞĞĚ�ŽĨ�ĐĂƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƵƐŝŶŐ��ŝƌĞĐƚ� WĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ EĞǁ ϲϯϯ ϲϳϵ  ϳϬϳ   ϳϱϬ     � 
WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ĂĚƵůƚƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ĐĂƌŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ĂĚƵůƚƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŽīĞƌĞĚ�Ă��ĂƌĞƌƐ��ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ��ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ ϳϲ͘ϴ ϯϬ͘ϭй  ϰϳ͘ϯϳй  ϲϭ͘ϳϬй   ϵϬй     � 
WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ĂĚƵůƚ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƟŽŶ� ĞŶƋƵŝƌŝĞƐ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ϳ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ĚĂǇƐ E�t ϵϳ͘ϭй ϵϳ͘ϲй   ϵϴ͘Ϯй�   Eͬ�     Eͬ� 
dŚĞ�ƌĂƚĞ�ŽĨ�ĚĞůĂǇĞĚ�ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƐ�ŽĨ�ĐĂƌĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĐĂƌĞ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐ�ƉĞƌ�ϭ͕ϬϬϬ� ƉŽƉƵůĂƟŽŶ�ĂŐĞĚ�ϳϱ�Žƌ�ŽǀĞƌ ϭϭ͘ϭϴ ϭ͘Ϯϳ ϯ͘ϭϬ� ϰ͘ϭϲ� 

;KĐƚ�Θ�EŽǀ�ŽŶůǇͿ  
  ϭϬ͘ϳϵ     ' 

WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ϭ͘��ĞƩĞƌ�ĞĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŬŝůůƐ�ĨŽƌ�Ăůů 
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ ^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�;ĞŶĐĂƉƐƵůĂƟŶŐ�ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞƐͿ 

ϭ͘Ϯ͘�>ŽŽŬĞĚ�ĂŌĞƌ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝī�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů 

WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ͗��'ŽŽĚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ŵĂĚĞ�ŝŶ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ�ƉƌŝŽƌŝƟĞƐ�ĂƌŽƵŶĚ�ƉƌĞǀĞŶƟŽŶ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚŝƐ�ŚĂƐ�ŵŝƟŐĂƚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽƚĞŶͲƟĂů�ƌŝƐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽŽŬĞĚ�ĂŌĞƌ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ƉŽƉƵůĂƟŽŶ͘ �ĞƚǁĞĞŶ�DĂƌĐŚ�ĂŶĚ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ͕�ϰϳ�ĨĂŵŝůŝĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĨĂŵŝůǇ�ďƌĞĂŬĚŽǁŶ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƉƌĞǀĞŶƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ϵϯ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�^ĂĨĞ�&ĂŵŝůŝĞƐ�ĨŽƌ��ŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ŝŶŝƟĂƟǀĞ͖�ũƵƐƚ�ŽŶĞ�ĐŚŝůĚ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƚĞĚ͘��dŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ƉƌĞǀĞŶƟŽŶ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁŽƌŬƐ�ǁŝƚŚ��ŚŝůĚƌĞŶ͛Ɛ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ůŝŶŬ�ĨĂŵŝůŝĞƐ�ŝŶ�ŶĞĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ůŽĐĂů�ǀŽůƵŶƚĞĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĐĂŶ�ŽīĞƌ�ƚŚĞŵ�ŚĞůƉ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�Ă�ĐƌŝƐŝƐ͘ �ĞƚǁĞĞŶ��Ɖƌŝů�ĂŶĚ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ͕�ϱϳ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ϯϲ�ĨĂŵŝůŝĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌĞǀĞŶƚĂƟǀĞ�&ĂŵŝůǇ�'ƌŽƵƉ��ŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞƐ�ŝŶŝƟĂƟǀĞ͘���ĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ�ĂƐ�Ă�ƌĞƐƵůƚ�ŽĨ�ĨĂŵŝůǇ�ďƌĞĂŬĚŽǁŶ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĂǀŽŝĚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ŶŝŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂŶ�ĞƐƟŵĂƚĞĚ�ĐŽƐƚ�ƐĂǀŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�άϳϮŬ͘�&ĂŵŝůǇ�'ƌŽƵƉ��ŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐŝŶŐ�ƵƟůŝƐĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƌĞŶŐƚŚƐ�ŽĨ�ĨĂŵŝůǇ�ͬ�ĨƌŝĞŶĚƐ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŽǁŶ�ƉůĂŶ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ͘��dŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�>ŽŽŬĞĚ��ŌĞƌ��ŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ƚƌĂŝŶĞĞƐŚŝƉ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ŝƐ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ĮǀĞ�;ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ƚǁŽ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƵƚŽƌͿ͕�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ƐĞǀĞŶ�ĂƉƉƌĞŶƟĐĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͘ �ƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ͕�ƚǁŽ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ĂƩĞŶĚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�WĂƌĞŶƟŶŐ��ĚǀŝƐŽƌǇ��ŽŵŵŝƩĞĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƌƐƚ�ƟŵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂĚĞ�Ă�ƉŽƐŝƟǀĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ͘�&ƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĂƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ŐŝǀĞŶ�ƚŽ�ŚŽǁ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŵŵŝƩĞĞ�ĐĂŶ�ĨŽƌŵĂůůǇ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ŽŶ�ĂŶ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ďĂƐŝƐ͘ dǁŽ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ǁŽƌŬĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽǁ�ŝŶ�ƉŽƐƚ�ŽŶ�Ă�ƚĞŵƉŽƌĂƌǇ�ďĂƐŝƐ�ƚŽ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞ��ŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ�WĞƌƐŽŶƐ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚƐ͘�dŚĞƐĞ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚƐ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌ�ǁŚĞƚŚĞƌ�Ă�ĐŚŝůĚ�ĐĂŶ�ďĞ�ƉůĂĐĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĨĂŵŝůǇ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�Žƌ�ŶŽƚ͘ dŚĞ�ĂŶŶƵĂů��ƌŝŐŚƚ�^ƉĂƌŬƐ��ǁĂƌĚƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŚĞůĚ͕�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ĐĂƌĞ�ůĞĂǀĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽŽŬĞĚ�ĂŌĞƌ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĐĞůĞďƌĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ� ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŵĂĚĞ�ŝŶ�ϮϬϭϲ͘��zŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĐĂƌĞ�ůĞĂǀĞƌƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƐĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌĂŝƐĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞŝƌ� ĂĐĐŽŵƉůŝƐŚŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŐŝǀĞŶ�Ă�ĐĞƌƟĮĐĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĞĚĂů�ŝŶ�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘ /ƐƐƵĞƐ͗��dŝŵĞůǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂůƐ�ƚŽ�^ĂĨĞ�&ĂŵŝůŝĞƐ�ĨŽƌ��ŚŝůĚƌĞŶ͖��ƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƟŵĞůǇ�ƵƐĞ�ŽĨ�&ĂŵŝůǇ�'ƌŽƵƉ� �ŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞƐ͖�dĞŵƉŽƌĂƌǇ�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ��ŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ�WĞƌƐŽŶƐ�ƉŽƐƚƐ͘ DŝƟŐĂƟŶŐ�ĂĐƟŽŶƐ͗���ůŽƐĞ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂůƐ�ƚŽ�^ĂĨĞ�&ĂŵŝůŝĞƐ�ĨŽƌ��ŚŝůĚƌĞŶ͖�&ĂŵŝůǇ�'ƌŽƵƉ��ŽŶĨĞƌĞŶĐĞƐ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ-ƐŚĂƌŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂǁĂƌĞŶĞƐƐ-ƌĂŝƐŝŶŐ�ƐĞƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ŚĂƉƉĞŶ�ĂƐ�Ă�ŵĂƩĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƌŽƵƟŶĞ͖�ZĞĐƌƵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ�ĨŽƌ��ŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ�WĞƌƐŽŶƐ͘ EĞǆƚ�ŬĞǇ�ƐƚĞƉƐ͗��WĞƌŵĂŶĞŶƚ�ƐƚĂī�ƌĞĐƌƵŝƚĞĚ�ƚŽ��ŽŶŶĞĐƚĞĚ�WĞƌƐŽŶƐ�ƉŽƐƚƐ͖�/ŵƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂů�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐĞƐ�ƚŽ�^ĂĨĞ�&ĂŵŝůŝĞƐ�ĨŽƌ��ŚŝůĚƌĞŶ͘� 
 

WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�Ϯ͘�^ƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ǀƵůŶĞƌĂďůĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ 
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ ^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ 

Ϯ͘ϭ͘� WĞŽƉůĞ�Ăƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝī�ĂƌĞ�ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚĞĚ 

WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ͗���ƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĮƌƐƚ�Ɛŝǆ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�Ă�ƚŽƚĂů�ŽĨ�ϭ͕Ϭϳϭ�ĂƩĞŶĚĞĞƐ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ��ĂƌĚŝī�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�sĂůĞ�ŚĂǀĞ� ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�^ŽĐŝĂů�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�Θ�tĞůůďĞŝŶŐ�;tĂůĞƐͿ��Đƚ�ϮϬϭϰ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�Ăƚ�ĂŶ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ�ůĞǀĞů͘���ŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƉƌĂĐƟĐĞ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵͲƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��Đƚ�ĂƌĞ�ďĞĐŽŵŝŶŐ�ĞǀŝĚĞŶƚ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚĞĂŵƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŐŝŽŶ͕�ŚŽǁĞǀĞƌ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�Ă�ůŽŶŐ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ƚŽŽ�ƐŽŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŵĞĂƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ͘��dƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĨŽůůŽǁ-ƵƉ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ŽŶ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞ-ĨŽĐƵƐĞĚ�ƉƌĂĐƟĐĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ŽīĞƌĞĚ�ƚŽ��ĚƵůƚƐ͛�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ��ŽŶƚĂĐƚ�Θ��ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ƚĞĂŵ͘ dŚƌĞƐŚŽůĚ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐƐ�ŚĞůĚ�ǁĞĞŬůǇ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�DƵůƟ��ŐĞŶĐǇ�^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�,Ƶď�;D�^,Ϳ�ƚŽ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ĂƐƐƵƌĞ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶ-ŵĂŬŝŶŐ͘��ZĞŵĞĚŝĂů�ĂĐƟŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĚĚƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞůĞǀĂŶƚ�ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ͘ dŚĞ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ǁŽƌŬĞƌ�ǀĂĐĂŶĐŝĞƐ�ŝŶ��ŚŝůĚƌĞŶ͛Ɛ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ŚĂƐ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ƐůŝŐŚƚůǇ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƋƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ƚŽ�Ϯϯ͘ϯй�;ĨƌŽŵ�Ϯϰ͘ϴй�ŝŶ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϮͿ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĐƌƵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶŝƟĂƟǀĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ͘��sĂĐĂŶĐŝĞƐ�ƌĂƚĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŶŽƚ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů� ƉƌŽŵŽƟŽŶƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƐ͘��:Žď�ĐƌĞĂƟŽŶ�ŚĂƐ�ĐŽŵŵĞŶĐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŽŽů�ŽĨ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ǁŽƌŬĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƚ�ŝƐ� ĂŶƟĐŝƉĂƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�Ɛŝǆ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ǁŽƌŬ�ƉŽƐƚƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĮůůĞĚ�ŝŶ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϭ�ϮϬϭϳ-ϭϴ͘���Ɛ�Ă�ƌĞƐƵůƚ�ŽĨ�ǁŽƌŬ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƌĞĐƌƵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƚĞŶƟŽŶ͕�Ă�ŵŽƌĞ�ƐƚĂďůĞ�ǁŽƌŬĨŽƌĐĞ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŝƐ�ĞŵĞƌŐŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ͕�ĞǆĐĞƉƚ�ǁŚĞƌĞ�ĞƐƐĞŶƟĂů�ŵĂƚĞƌŶŝƚǇ�ĐŽǀĞƌ�ŝƐ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ͕�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ŝƐ�ůĞƐƐ�ƌĞůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽŶ�ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ƐƚĂī͘��dŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƐŽŵĞ�ŐŽŽĚ�ĞǆĂŵƉůĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƐƚĂī�ĂĐŚŝĞǀŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽŵŽƟŽŶĂů�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ͕� ƚŚĞƌĞďǇ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ĐĂƌĞĞƌ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƚĂī�ƌĞƚĞŶƟŽŶ͘ dŚĞ��ŚŝůĚ�^ĞǆƵĂů��ǆƉůŽŝƚĂƟŽŶ�;�^�Ϳ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ŚĂƐ�ĞŶĂďůĞĚ�ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞĚ�ŝŶ�ĞŶƐƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƚĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ��^�͘��dŚĞ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ŚĂƐ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚĞĚ�ĂƐ�ĨŽůůŽǁƐ͗ 
· �ƌĂǁŶ�Ăůů�ŬĞǇ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ƚŽŐĞƚŚĞƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ĐŽŵŵŽŶ�ŽďũĞĐƟǀĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĂĐƟŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ · �ŶĂďůĞĚ�ĂŶ�ĂƵĚŝƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶĂůǇƐŝƐ�ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞŶĞƐƐ 
· �ƌĂǁŶ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞůǇ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŽŝĐĞƐ�ŽĨ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĨĂŵŝůŝĞƐ 
· WƌŽŵŽƚĞĚ�ĐŝƚǇ-ǁŝĚĞ�ĂǁĂƌĞŶĞƐƐ-ƌĂŝƐŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŶŝŐŚƚ�ƟŵĞ�ĞĐŽŶŽŵǇ ���ĂƌĚŝī�ĐŝƚǇ-ǁŝĚĞ�ĂĐƟŽŶ�ƉůĂŶ�ŝŶ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ��ĞŵĞŶƟĂ�&ƌŝĞŶĚůǇ�ƐƚĂƚƵƐ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŐƌĞĞĚ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂůůǇ͘��/ƚ�ŝƐ� ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚůǇ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ƐŚĂƌĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ĐŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ĞǆĞƌĐŝƐĞ͘ /ƐƐƵĞƐ͗��DŽŶŝƚŽƌŝŶŐ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽĨ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞ-ĨŽĐƵƐƐĞĚ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ͘ D�^,�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ĚĞĂů�ǁŝƚŚ�ǀŽůƵŵĞ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂůƐ�ŵĂĚĞ�ƚŽ�D�^,�ĨƌŽŵ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƉƌŽĨĞƐƐŝŽŶĂůƐ͕�Ğ͘Ő͘� �ĚƵĐĂƟŽŶ͕�,ĞĂůƚŚ͘ &ƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ƌĞĚƵĐŝŶŐ��ŚŝůĚƌĞŶ͛Ɛ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�^ŽĐŝĂů�tŽƌŬĞƌ�ǀĂĐĂŶĐŝĞƐ͘ �ŝĸĐƵůƟĞƐ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐŝŶŐ�Ă�ƐƉĞĐŝĂůŝƐƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƐƉŽŶĚ�ƵƌŐĞŶƚůǇ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ǀŝĐƟŵƐ�ŽĨ��^��ƚŽ�ďƌĞĂŬ�ĂǁĂǇ�ĨƌŽŵ��^��ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĐŽǀĞƌ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞƐ͘ �ǆŝƐƚĞŶĐĞ�ŽĨ�Ɛŝǆ�ŝŶĚŝǀŝĚƵĂů�ĚŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�ƉůĂŶƐ�ŽŶ�ĚĞŵĞŶƟĂ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞ�ŝĨ�ŵĞƌŐĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ŽŶĞ�ŽǀĞƌĂƌĐŚŝŶŐ�ƉůĂŶ�ĨŽƌ��ĂƌĚŝī�ĂƐ�Ă�ǁŚŽůĞ͘ DŝƟŐĂƟŶŐ�ĂĐƟŽŶƐ͗��KŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŽīĞƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�^ŽĐŝĂů�tŽƌŬĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞ-ďĂƐĞĚ�ƉƌĂĐͲƟĐĞ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉŝůŽƚ͘ ZĞŐƵůĂƌ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĂƟŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�Ăůů�D�^,�ĂŐĞŶĐŝĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĂŝƐĞ�ĂǁĂƌĞŶĞƐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞŶĞƐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂůƐ�ƚŽ�D�^,͘ �ŐĞŶĐǇ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ǁŽƌŬĞƌƐ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽǀĞƌ�^ŽĐŝĂů�tŽƌŬĞƌ�ǀĂĐĂŶĐŝĞƐ�ĂƐ�ĂƉƉƌŽƉƌŝĂƚĞ͘ 'ƌŽǁƚŚ�ďŝĚ�ƐƵďŵŝƩĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚ�Ă�ƉĞƌŵĂŶĞŶƚ�ƐƉĞĐŝĂůŝƐƚ�ƚĞĂŵ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��^��^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ͘ �ŽŶƐƵůƚĂƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐŝŽŶƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝƐƚƌŝĐƚƐ�ĂŶĚ��ůǌŚĞŝŵĞƌ͛Ɛ��ŝƐĞĂƐĞ�^ŽĐŝĞƚǇ�ƚŽ�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ŽŶĞ�ŽǀĞƌĂƌĐŚŝŶŐ�ƉůĂŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŚŽůĞ�ŽĨ��ĂƌĚŝī͘ EĞǆƚ�ŬĞǇ�ƐƚĞƉƐ͗���Ɛ�ĐůĂƐƐƌŽŽŵ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƉŽŽƌůǇ�ĂƩĞŶĚĞĚ͕�ŶĞǁ�^ŽĐŝĂů�tŽƌŬĞƌƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŝŶƚƌŽĚƵĐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŽŶůŝŶĞ� Ğ-ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ŵŽĚƵůĞƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�^^t���Đƚ͘ /ŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ŽƵƚĐŽŵĞ-ĨŽĐƵƐĞĚ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƉŝůŽƚ͘ �ƌŝĞĮŶŐ�ƉĂƉĞƌ�ŽŶ�ŶŽƟĐĞ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ŽĨ�^ŽĐŝĂů�tŽƌŬĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ��ƌĞĂ�:ŽŝŶƚ��ŽŵŵŝƩĞĞ�ŝŶ�Yϰ͕�ĂŝŵŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŵŽƵŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƟŵĞ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ�ƐƚĂī�ůĞĂǀŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ŶĞǁ�ƐƚĂƌƚĞƌƐ�ďĞŝŶŐ�ŝŶ�ƉŽƐƚ͘ tŽƌŬ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞŵŽĚĞůůŝŶŐ�ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�tŽƌŬĨŽƌĐĞ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ͘ /ŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ƚŽ��^��DƵůƟ��ŐĞŶĐǇ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐŝĐ�DĞĞƟŶŐƐ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ǀŽŝĐĞ�ŽĨ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĨĂŵŝůŝĞƐ�ŝƐ�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞĚ͘ 

�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ Yϭ YϮ Yϯ Yϰ 
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ĨŽƌ�ƉƌŽƚĞĐƟŶŐ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚ�ŚĂƌŵ�ďǇ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƟŶŐ�ŶĞǁ�DƵůƟ��ŐĞŶĐǇ� ^ĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚŝŶŐ�,Ƶď�;D�^,Ϳ�ĂƌƌĂŶŐĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�ŵĂŶĂŐŝŶŐ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂůƐ�ďǇ�:ƵŶĞ�ϮϬϭϲ ' ' '  
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĐƌƵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƚĞŶƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ͛Ɛ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ǁŽƌŬĞƌƐ�ĞŶƐƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŝŶͲƚĂŝŶƐ�Ă�ǀĂĐĂŶĐǇ�ƌĂƚĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ͛Ɛ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ǁŽƌŬĞƌƐ�ďĞůŽǁ�ϭϴй�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ �ͬ'� Zͬ� Zͬ�  
/ŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�ŬĞǇ�ĞůĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƌĚŝī��ŚŝůĚ�^ĞǆƵĂů��ǆƉůŽŝƚĂƟŽŶ�^ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ŝŶ�ĐŽůůĂďŽƌĂƟŽŶ�ǁŝƚŚ� ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ ' ' '  
tŽƌŬ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ��ĂƌĚŝī�Ă�ƌĞĐŽŐŶŝƐĞĚ��ĞŵĞŶƟĂ�&ƌŝĞŶĚůǇ��ŝƚǇ�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϴ ' ' '  
�ŽŵƉůĞƚĞ�ƌŽůů�ŽƵƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĞĐŽŶĚ�ƉŚĂƐĞ�ŽĨ�Ă�ƐƉĞĐŝĂůŝƐƚ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�^ŽĐŝĂů�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�tĞůů-ďĞŝŶŐ�;tĂůĞƐͿ��Đƚ�ϮϬϭϰ ' ' '  

P
age 47



�ĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ�;ĐŽŶƚ͘Ϳ  
  

�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ Yϭ YϮ Yϯ Yϰ 
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞŶĞƐƐ�ŽĨ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƟŽŶĂů�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĚŝƐĂďůĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ǀƵůŶĞƌĂďůĞ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚŝŶŐ�ĂĚƵůƚŚŽŽĚ  ' �ͬ' Zͬ�  
�ǆƉůŽƌĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�h,��ƚŚĞ�ĨĞĂƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ĂŶ�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂƚĞĚ�ŵŽĚĞů�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ŽĨ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĐĂƌĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ĂĚƵůƚ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĐĂƌĞ  ' ' '  
tŽƌŬ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽƵƌ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ��ĂƌĚŝī�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�Ă�ĚĞůĂǇĞĚ�ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĐĂƌĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ŚŽƐƉŝƚĂů�ďǇ�ϮϬϭϳ  Zͬ� ' '  
�ŽŶƟŶƵĞ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƵƉƚĂŬĞ�ŽĨ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂƐ�ĂŶ�ĂůƚĞƌŶĂƟǀĞ�ƚŽ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚ�ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ĐĂƌĞ�ĨŽƌ��ĂƌĚŝī�ĂĚƵůƚ�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĐĂƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ŝŶ�ůŝŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�^ŽĐŝĂů�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�tĞůů-ďĞŝŶŐ�;tĂůĞƐͿ��Đƚ�ďǇ�ϮϬϭϳ  Zͬ� �ͬ' �ͬ'  
KīĞƌ�Ă��ĂƌĞƌƐ��ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�Ăůů�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ĂĚƵůƚ�ĐĂƌĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ĐĂƌŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ĂĚƵůƚƐ  ' ' �ͬ'  

WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�Ϯ͘�^ƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ǀƵůŶĞƌĂďůĞ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ 
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ ^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ 
Ϯ͘ϯ͘�WĞŽƉůĞ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝī�ĂƌĞ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ůŝǀĞ�ŝŶĚĞͲƉĞŶĚĞŶƚůǇ 

WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ͗ ��ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐĨƵů�άϮ͘ϱϰ�ŵŝůůŝŽŶ�/ŶƚĞƌŵĞĚŝĂƚĞ��ĂƌĞ�&ƵŶĚ�;/�&Ϳ�ďŝĚ�ŝƐ�ŶŽǁ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�͞�ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�&ƵƚƵƌĞƐ�WƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ͟�ƚŽ�ƚƌĂŶƐĨŽƌŵ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ĚŝƐĂďůĞĚ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĚŝƐĂďůĞĚ�ĂĚƵůƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĐŽŵƉůĞǆ�ŶĞĞĚƐ͘��dŚŝƐ�ŚĂƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƌĞĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚǁŽ� ƚƌĂŶƐŝƟŽŶ�ǁŽƌŬĞƌ�ƉŽƐƚƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ĚƵůƚ�>ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ��ŝƐĂďŝůŝƟĞƐ�ƚĞĂŵ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵƉůĞǆ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ĂĚƵůƚƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ϭϲ͘ /Ŷ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂƚĞĚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ŽĨ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĐĂƌĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ĂĚƵůƚ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ĐĂƌĞ͕�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶƚĞƌŵĞĚŝĂƚĞ��ĂƌĞ�&ƵŶĚ�;/�&Ϳ�ŝƐ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂƟŽŶ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŚŽůĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ͘��dŚŝƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�ĞĂƌůǇ�ŝŶƚĞƌǀĞŶƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌĞǀĞŶƟŽŶ͕�ĂĐĐŽŵŵŽĚĂƟŽŶ�ƐŽůƵƟŽŶƐ͕�&ŝƌƐƚ�WŽŝŶƚ�ŽĨ��ŽŶƚĂĐƚ͕�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂƚĞĚ�ĚŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞ�ƚĞĂŵƐ͕�ĚŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞ�ƚŽ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐ�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƟĂů�ŵŽĚĞůƐ͕�ŝŶƚĞŐƌĂƚĞĚ�ĂƵƟƐŵ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ũŽŝŶƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ůĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƟĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŵƉůĞǆ�ŶĞĞĚƐ͘ /Ŷ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ��ĞůĂǇĞĚ�dƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƐ�ŽĨ��ĂƌĞ�;�dŽ�Ϳ͕�ƚŚĞ��ĂƌĚŝī�ĂŶĚ�sĂůĞ�tŝŶƚĞƌ�WůĂŶ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ�ǁĂƐ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ͘��^ŽĐŝĂů�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ�ǁŽƌŬĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�,ĞĂůƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�sĂůĞ�ŽĨ�'ůĂŵŽƌŐĂŶ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĐŽŵŵĞŶĚĂƟŽŶƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ŽĨ�ǁŝŶƚĞƌ�ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ͕�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĞĚ�ĂĐƟŽŶƐ�ĨŽƌ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ͘����tĂůĞƐ��ƵĚŝƚ�KĸĐĞ�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ŽĨ��dŽ��ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝī�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�sĂůĞ�ŽĨ�'ůĂŵŽƌŐĂŶ�ĐŽŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ďĞƚǁĞĞŶ��ĂƌĚŝī��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ĂŶĚ�,ĞĂůƚŚ�ŚĂĚ�ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚůǇ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞĚ͕�ƉƌŽǀŝĚŝŶŐ�Ă�ƉŽƐŝƟǀĞ�ƉůĂƞŽƌŵ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŝŶ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ��dŽ��ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ǇĞĂƌ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ͘��dŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ��dŽ�Ɛ�ĨŽƌ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ�ĂƐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�/ŶƚĞŐƌĂƚĞĚ�,ĞĂůƚŚ�Θ�^ŽĐŝĂů��ĂƌĞ�WĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ��ŽĂƌĚ�ŝƐ�ϲϭ͕� ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ϳϴ�ĨŽƌ�EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂŶ�ŽǀĞƌĂůů�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽŶƚŚ�ŽĨ�ϮϮй͘�dŚŝƐ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŝƐ�ϭϯй�ůŽǁĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƚŚĞ�ϳϬ�ĚĞůĂǇƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ůĂƐƚ�ǇĞĂƌ͘�dŚĞ�ƚŽƚĂů�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ��dŽ�Ɛ�ĂŐĞĚ�ϳϱн�ĨŽƌ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ�ŝƐ�ϰϭ͕�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ϰϵ�ĨŽƌ�EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ͖�Ă�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�Ă�ŵŽŶƚŚ�ŽĨ�ϭϲй͘�dŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ďĞĚ�ĚĂǇƐ�ůŽƐƚ�ĨŽƌ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ�ŝƐ�ϭ͕ϵϲϬ͕�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�Ϯ͕Ϭϲϯ�ĨŽƌ�EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ͕�Ă�ĚĞĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�Ă�ŵŽŶƚŚ�ŽĨ�ϱй͘��dŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ͕�ƚŚĞ�WĂƌƚŶĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ŚĂƐ�ĂĐŚŝĞǀĞĚ�ďŽƚŚ�ŝŶƚĞƌŶĂů��dŽ��ƚĂƌŐĞƚƐ�ŝŶ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ͘�dŚĞ��dŽ��WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌ�ǁĂƐ�ƌĂŐŐĞĚ�ŐƌĞĞŶ�ĨŽƌ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�Ϯ�ĂŶĚ�ĂůƐŽ�ƌĂŐŐĞĚ�ŐƌĞĞŶ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ƉĂƌƚ�ƌĞƐƵůƚ�ĨŽƌ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϯ�;�ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ƌĞƐƵůƚƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĚƵĞ�ŝŶ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇͿ͘����ƌĞĐĞŶƚ��ĚƵůƚƐ͛�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ďĞŶĐŚŵĂƌŬŝŶŐ�ƌĞƉŽƌƚ�ŚĂƐ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�Ă�Ϯϵй�ƌĞĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ŝŶ��ĞůĂǇĞĚ� dƌĂŶƐĨĞƌƐ�ŽĨ��ĂƌĞ�ĨŽƌ�^ŽĐŝĂů��ĂƌĞ�ZĞĂƐŽŶƐ�ǁŚĞŶ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌŝŶŐ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ�;ϯϱ�ĚĞůĂǇƐͿ�ƚŽ�KĐƚŽďĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ�;Ϯϱ�ĚĞůĂǇƐͿ͘ dŚĞƌĞ�ǁĞƌĞ�ϲϱϭ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƵƐĞƌƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŝƌĞĐƚ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϯ�;ϳϬϳ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƚŽ�ĚĂƚĞͿ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ϰϱ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ǁŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚƐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͘���ƵƌŝŶŐ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϯ͕�ϮϬ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƵƐĞƌƐ�ƐƚĂƌƚĞĚ��ŝƌĞĐƚ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ϯϬ�ĐĞĂƐĞĚ�;ŽĨ�ǁŚŝĐŚ͕�ƚŚĞ�ŵĂŝŶ�ƌĞĂƐŽŶƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĚĞĐĞĂƐĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĐĂƌĞ�ŚŽŵĞ�ͬ�ƌĞƐƉŝƚĞ�ĂĚŵŝƐƐŝŽŶͿ͘���WƌŽũĞĐƚ�'ƌŽƵƉ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĞƐƚĂďůŝƐŚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌ�Ăůů��ŝƌĞĐƚ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚ�ŵŽĚĞůƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌŽĐƵƌĞ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ŵŽĚĞů�ĨŽƌ�ϮϬϭϳ-ϭϴ͘��ƵƌŝŶŐ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϯ�ϲϭ͘ϳй�ŽĨ�ĐĂƌĞƌƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŽīĞƌĞĚ�ĂŶ�ĂƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�;Ϯ͕Ϭϱϰ�ŽīĞƌƐ�ĨŽƌ�ϯ͕ϯϮϵ�ĐĂƌĞƌƐͿ͕�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ϲϮ͘ϱй�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ůĂƐƚ�ǇĞĂƌ�;Ϯ͕Ϭϱϰ�ŽīĞƌƐ�ĨŽƌ�ϯ͕Ϯϴϵ�ĐĂƌĞƌƐͿ͘��dŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƚĞĚ��ĂƌĞƌƐ��ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚƐ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϯ�ŝƐ�ϭϱϰ�;ϱϭϳ�ǇĞĂƌ�ƚŽ�ĚĂƚĞͿ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ϭϯϵ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ůĂƐƚ�ǇĞĂƌ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ� ƚŚĞƌĞĨŽƌĞ�ŽŶ�ĐŽƵƌƐĞ�ƚŽ�ĞǆĐĞĞĚ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ͘�ZĞĐƌƵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƵƚƐƚĂŶĚŝŶŐ��ĂƌĞƌƐ��ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚ�tŽƌŬĞƌƐ�;��tƐͿ�ƉŽƐƚƐ�ƐƚĂƌƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�EŽǀĞŵďĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�ŽŶŐŽŝŶŐ͘ /ƐƐƵĞƐ͗ �ŝĸĐƵůƚǇ�ŝŶ�ƌĞĐƌƵŝƟŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƟŽŶ�ǁŽƌŬĞƌ�ƉŽƐƚƐ�ŝŶ��ĚƵůƚ�>ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐ��ŝƐĂďŝůŝƟĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞ�ĂĚĚŝƟŽŶĂů�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ǁŽƌŬ͘ &ƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ƉŝůŽƚ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƟŽŶ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĐĞĂƐĞƐ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŶĚ�ŽĨ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ͘ �ŽŵŝĐŝůŝĂƌǇ�ĐĂƌĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƐŝĚĞŶƟĂů�ͬ�ŶƵƌƐŝŶŐ�ŚŽŵĞ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ͘ �ĂƌĞƌ�ŽīĞƌƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŚĂƐ�ŚĂĚ�ĂŶ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĨĞƌƌĂůƐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƌĞƌƐ�dĞĂŵ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵďƐĞƋƵĞŶƚůǇ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƟŽŶ�ŽĨ��ĂƌĞƌƐ��ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚƐ͘ DŝƟŐĂƟŶŐ�ĂĐƟŽŶƐ͗ /ƚ�ŝƐ�ĂŶƟĐŝƉĂƚĞĚ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƉƉŽŝŶƚŵĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƟŽŶ�ǁŽƌŬĞƌ�ƉŽƐƚƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŵĂĚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƌĞĐĞŶƚ�ŝŶƚĞƌǀŝĞǁƐ͘ /ĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ƌĞƐŽƵƌĐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƟŽŶ�ƉŝůŽƚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�/�&͘ �ƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ��ŶĂůǇƐƚ�ŝĚĞŶƟĮĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ�ũŽŝŶƚ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƟŽŶƐ�ĚŽĐƵŵĞŶƚ�ǁŽƌŬ͘ ,ĞĂůƚŚ�ĂŶĚ�^ŽĐŝĂů�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉ�ĐĂƉĂĐŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ĐĂƌĞ�ĨŽƌ�ŽůĚĞƌ�ƉĞƌƐŽŶƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ǁŝŶƚĞƌ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ͘��dŚŝƐ�ƌĞůĂƚĞƐ�ƚŽ�ďŽƚŚ�ŝŶ-ŚŽƐƉŝƚĂů�ĐĂƉĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ƉƌĞ-�ĂŶĚ�ƉŽƐƚ-ŚŽƐƉŝƚĂů�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͘ dŚŽƐĞ�ĐĂƌĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŶŽƚ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ��ĂƌĞƌƐ��ƐƐĞƐƐŵĞŶƚƐ�ŽīĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ůĂƐƚ�ϭϮ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĐŽŶƚĂĐƚĞĚ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚůǇ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƌĞƌƐ�dĞĂŵ͘ EĞǆƚ�ŬĞǇ�ƐƚĞƉƐ͗ ^ƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŽ��ŚŝůĚ�,ĞĂůƚŚ�Θ��ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƚŽ�ŝĚĞŶƟĨǇ�ŶĞǆƚ�ƐƚĞƉƐ�ŝŶ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŝŶŐ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƟŽŶ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ͘ �ǀĂůƵĂƚĞ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƟŽŶ�ƉŝůŽƚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�/�&�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ͘ �ĚĚƌĞƐƐ�ƉŽƚĞŶƟĂů�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�ƐŚŽƌƞĂůů�ŝŶ�ƌĞůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ϮϬϭϳ-ϭϴ͘ ZĞǀŝĞǁ�ĐŽůůĂƚĞĚ�ƚƌĂŶƐŝƟŽŶ�ƉƌŽƚŽĐŽůƐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŐƌĞĞ�ǁĂǇ�ĨŽƌǁĂƌĚ͘ �ŽŵƉůĞƚĞ��ĂƌĚŝī�ĂŶĚ�sĂůĞ�ŽĨ�'ůĂŵŽƌŐĂŶ�/ŶƚĞŐƌĂƚĞĚ�DĂƌŬĞƚ�WŽƐŝƟŽŶ�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŐƌĞĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�/�&�ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ϮϬϭϳ-ϭϴ͘ �ŽŵŵĞŶĐĞ��ŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞ�^ƵƉƉŽƌƚ�dĞĂŵ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁŝůů�ŝŶĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞ�ůŽƵŶŐĞ�ĂůŽŶŐƐŝĚĞ�Ă�ƚĞĂŵ�ŽĨ�ƐƚĂī�ƚŽ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ƚŚĞ�ǁĂƌĚƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƌĂŶƐĨĞƌ�ŽĨ�ƉĂƟĞŶƚƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƚƌĂŶƐƉŽƌƚ�Žƌ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĚŝƐĐŚĂƌŐĞ�ůŽƵŶŐĞ͕�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ďĞĚ�ƐƉĂĐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǆƚ�ƉĂƟĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞŶ�ĐŽůůĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ�ƉĂƟĞŶƚ͘ dŚĞ��ŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ƐĞĞŬŝŶŐ�ĂƵƚŚŽƌŝƐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŶĞǁ��ŝƌĞĐƚ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚ�ŵŽĚĞů�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĨƌŽŵ��ĂďŝŶĞƚ�ŽŶ�ϭϵƚŚ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϮϬϭϳ͘ ZĞĐƌƵŝƚ͕�ŝŶĚƵĐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂŝŶ���tƐ�ŝŶ�ƉĞƌŵĂŶĞŶƚ�ƉŽƐƚƐ͘� 

P
age 48



ZĞƐŽƵƌĐĞƐ�^ĐŽƌĞĐĂƌĚ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϮϬϭϳ 

KƵƌ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ �ĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ�;ĐŽŶƚͿ 
                        

 
� 

�ĞůŝǀĞƌŝŶŐ�ŽƵƌ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚƐ  

   � 

�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ Yϭ YϮ Yϯ Yϰ 
/ŶƚƌŽĚƵĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽů�ĐƵƌƌŝĐƵůƵŵ�Ă�t:���ĂĐĐƌĞĚŝƚĞĚ�͞�ŚĂůůĞŶŐŝŶŐ��ǆƚƌĞŵŝƐŵ͟�ŵŽĚƵůĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĂŝƐĞ�ĂǁĂƌĞŶĞƐƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉƌĞǀĞŶƚ�ƌĂĚŝĐĂůŝƐĂƟŽŶ  ' �ͬ' �ͬ'  

WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�/ŶĚŝĐĂƚŽƌ�;dŽƚĂů�ϮϯΎͿ ZĞƐƵůƚ�ϮϬϭϱ-ϭϲ 
Yϭ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ YϮ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ Yϯ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ Yϰ WŽƐŝƟŽŶ dĂƌŐĞƚ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ zĞĂƌ��ŶĚ ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ 

Z�' 
dŚĞ�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ĐŽƵŶĐŝů�ƚĂǆ�ĚƵĞ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĮŶĂŶĐŝĂů�ǇĞĂƌ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁĂƐ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ��ƵƚŚŽƌŝƚǇ ϵϳ͘Ϯϴй Ϯϴ͘ϭϯй  ϱϰ͘ϱϮй ϴϭ͘ϱϵй�    ϵϳй   ' 

EE�Z��ŽůůĞĐƟŽŶƐ�–�ŶŽŶ-ĚŽŵĞƐƟĐ�ƌĂƚĞƐ� ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞĚ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ǇĞĂƌ͕�ŶĞƚ�ŽĨ�ƌĞĨƵŶĚƐ ϵϲ͘Ϭϴй ϯϭ͘ϰϱй  ϱϲ͘ϲϱй  ϴϮ͘Ϭϱй   ϵϲ͘ϱй   � 
ZĞůŝĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŽƉ�ϭϬ�/�d�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂƟŽŶƐ ϵϵ͘ϵϵй ϵϵ͘ϵϴй  ϵϵ͘ϵϵй     ϵϵ͘ϵϬй   ' 
/ŶƚĞƌŶĂů��ƵƐƚŽŵĞƌ�^ĂƟƐĨĂĐƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�/�d� ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ ϴϴ͘ϴϯй ϵϭ͘ϰϮй  ϴϵ͘ϳϰй  ϴϵ͘ϰϬй�   ϵϬй   � 
WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚƐ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ĚĞĂĚůŝŶĞ� ;&ƌĞĞĚŽŵ�ŽĨ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶͿ ϴϬ͘ϭϰй ϴϰ͘ϴϯй  ϵϬ͘ϭϬй� ϵϬ͘ϴϵй�    ϴϱй   ' 

WĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ŝŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚƐ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚĂƚƵƚŽƌǇ�ĚĞĂĚůŝŶĞ�;�ĂƚĂ�WƌŽƚĞĐƟŽŶ��ĐƚͿ ϵϭ͘Ϭϲй ϵϮ͘ϯϴй ϵϵ͘Ϯϭй� ϵϱ͘Ϯϭй�    ϴϱй   ' 
EƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�^ŽĐŝĂů�DĞĚŝĂ�&ŽůůŽǁĞƌƐ�;&ĂĐĞďŽŽŬ�ĂŶĚ�dǁŝƩĞƌͿ ϲϮ͕ϭϮϳ ϴ͘ϳϱй  ϭϴ͘Ϭϯй Ϯϲ͘ϯϲй    ϭϬй� ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ   ' 

WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�Ϯ͘�^ƵƉƉŽƌƟŶŐ�sƵůŶĞƌĂďůĞ�WĞŽƉůĞ 
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ ^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ� 

Ϯ͘ϭ�WĞŽƉůĞ�Ăƚ�ƌŝƐŬ�ŝŶ��ĂƌĚŝī�ĂƌĞ� ƐĂĨĞŐƵĂƌĚĞĚ 
WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ͗��dƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŽīĞƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ŝŶ�ƌĞƐƉĞĐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�t:��-ĂĐĐƌĞĚŝƚĞĚ�tĞůƐŚ��ĂĐĐĂůĂƵƌĞĂƚĞ��ŚĂůůĞŶŐͲŝŶŐ��ǆƚƌĞŵŝƐŵ�ŵŽĚƵůĞ͘��&ŝǀĞ��ĂƌĚŝī�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�;ŽĨ�ϯϬ�tĂůĞƐ-ǁŝĚĞͿ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌƚĂŬĞŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƌĞ�ƌŽůůŝŶŐ�ŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽĚͲƵůĞ�ƚŽ�ƉƵƉŝůƐ�ŝŶ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�zĞĂƌ�ϭϬ�Žƌ�ϭϭ͖�ϴϵϰ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ĞŶƌŽůůĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ϮϬϭϲ-ϭϳ͘  /ƐƐƵĞƐ͗�dŚĞ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ�ƐƵĐĐĞƐƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽĚƵůĞ�ŝƐ�ĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ�ŽŶ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ƚĂŬŝŶŐ�ƵƉ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ͕�ƌĂŝƐŝŶŐ�ĂǁĂƌĞŶĞƐƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞŐŝƐůĂƟŽŶ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ͛�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ�ĂŶĚ�ůŽŶŐ-ƚĞƌŵ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ĨƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ƚĂŬŝŶŐ�ƵƉ�ƚŚĞ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ͘��/ƚ�ŝƐ�Ă�ĐŽŶĐĞƌŶ�ŝŶ�ƌĞƐƉĞĐƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ůŽŶŐ-ƚĞƌŵ�ƐƵƐƚĂŝŶĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽĚƵůĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĮǀĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ĞŶƌŽůůĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽĚƵůĞ�ĂƌĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƐĂŵĞ�ĮǀĞ�ƚŚĂƚ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ŝƚ͘�dŚĞ��ŽƵŶƚĞƌ�dĞƌƌŽƌŝƐŵ�Θ�^ĞĐƵƌŝƚǇ��Đƚ�ϮϬϭϱ͕�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�WƌĞǀĞŶƚ��ƵƚǇ͕�ƐƚĂƚĞƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�Η^ĐŚŽŽůƐ�ƐŚŽƵůĚ�ďĞ�ƐĂĨĞ�ƐƉĂĐĞƐ�ŝŶ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ĐŚŝůĚƌĞŶ�ĂŶĚ�ǇŽƵŶŐ�ƉĞŽƉůĞ�ĐĂŶ�ƵŶĚĞƌƐƚĂŶĚ�ĂŶĚ�ĚŝƐĐƵƐƐ�ƐĞŶƐŝƟǀĞ�ƚŽƉŝĐƐ͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚĞƌƌŽƌŝƐŵ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞǆƚƌĞŵŝƐƚ�ŝĚĞĂƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĂƌĞ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚĞƌƌŽƌŝƐƚ�ŝĚĞŽůŽŐǇ͕�ĂŶĚ�ůĞĂƌŶ�ŚŽǁ�ƚŽ�ĐŚĂůůĞŶŐĞ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŝĚĞĂƐ͘͟  DŝƟŐĂƟŶŐ�ĂĐƟŽŶƐ͗�tŽƌŬ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ�ŽŶ�ƌĂŝƐŝŶŐ�ĂǁĂƌĞŶĞƐƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽĚƵůĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ůĞŐŝƐůĂƟŽŶ�ƚŽ�^ĐŚŽŽůƐ͕�ĂůŽŶŐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ŽīĞƌͲŝŶŐ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƚĞĂĐŚĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ĞŶĂďůĞ�ƐĐŚŽŽůƐ�ƚŽ�ƌŽůů�ŽƵƚ�ƚŚĞ��ŚĂůůĞŶŐŝŶŐ��ǆƚƌĞŵŝƐŵ�ŵŽĚƵůĞ͘� 

WƌŝŽƌŝƚǇ�ϰ͘�tŽƌŬŝŶŐ�ƚŽŐĞƚŚĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƚƌĂŶƐĨŽƌŵ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ 
/ŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ� KďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ ^ƵŵŵĂƌǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ 

ϰ͘ϭ͘���ŽŵŵƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƉĂƌƚŶĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ� ĂĐƟǀĞůǇ�ŝŶǀŽůǀĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞƐŝŐŶ͕�ĚĞůŝǀĞƌǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ŚŝŐŚůǇ-ǀĂůƵĞĚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ 

/ŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ƵƐƚŽŵĞƌ�ZĞůĂƟŽŶƐŚŝƉ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ŵŽĚĞů WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ͗�tŽƌŬ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�^�W�'ůŽďĂů��ƐĐĂůĂƟŽŶ�dĞĂŵ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽĚƵĐƟŽŶ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŵĂĚĞ�ŝŶ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϰ͘  EĞǆƚ�ŬĞǇ�ƐƚĞƉƐ͗�KŶĐĞ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ŵĂĚĞ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ƐǇƐƚĞŵ�Ă�ƌĞǀŝĞǁ�ǁŝůů�ƚĂŬĞ�ƉůĂĐĞ�ƚŽ�ĞǀĂůƵĂƚĞ�ǁŚĂƚ�ŝŵƉĂĐƚ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŚĂǀĞ�ŚĂĚ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ͘� 
ϰ͘Ϯ�dŚĞ��ŝƚǇ�ŽĨ��ĂƌĚŝī��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶĂŶĐĞ� ĂƌƌĂŶŐĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ� ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞƐ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŝŶ�ŬĞǇ�ĂƌĞĂƐ 

WƌŽŐƌĞƐƐ͗ WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ ^ŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚ�ǁŽƌŬ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ƉƌŽŐƌĞƐƐĞĚ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ŚĂƐ�ĞīĞĐƟǀĞ�ŐŽǀĞƌŶĂŶĐĞ�ĂƌƌĂŶŐĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞƐ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ͘��tŽƌŬ�ŚĂƐ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�Θ�'ŽǀĞƌŶĂŶĐĞ� WƌŽŐƌĂŵŵĞ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�YƵĂƌƚĞƌ�ϯ�ŽƵƚƉƵƚƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƉŝůŽƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ-ůĞǀĞů�ƐĐŽƌĞĐĂƌĚ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ĮǀĞ�ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͖�ŝƚ�ŝƐ�ĂŶƟĐŝƉĂƚĞĚ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ĨƵůů�ĐŽǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ŽĨ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ďǇ�DĂǇ�ϮϬϭϳ͘�tĞůů-ďĞŝŶŐ�ŽďũĞĐƟǀĞƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ŝŶ�ůŝŶĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�WůĂŶ͘��ůŽŶŐƐŝĚĞ�ƚŚŝƐ�Ă�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ-ƐĞƫŶŐ� ĨƌĂŵĞǁŽƌŬ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶĂďůĞ�Ă�ƌŽďƵƐƚ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚ�ĂƉƉƌŽĂĐŚ�ƚŽ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�ƐĞƫŶŐ͘  ̂ ƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚĞŵƉŽƌĂƌǇ͕�ĐĂƐƵĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ǁŽƌŬĨŽƌĐĞ �ƵĞ�ƚŽ�Ă�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů͕�ƚŚĞ�ƉƵďůŝĐĂƟŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĞŵƉŽƌĂƌǇ͕�ĐĂƐƵĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ǁŽƌŬĨŽƌĐĞ�ŝƐ�ŽŶ�ŚŽůĚ͖�ƚŚŝƐ�ŝƐ�ĚƵĞ�ƚŽ�Ă�ĨŽĐƵƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽǀĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĂŐĞŶĐǇ-ŵĂŶĂŐĞĚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ǁŽƌŬĞƌƐ�ĨƌŽŵ��ŽŵĞŶƐƵƌĂ�ƚŽ�DĂƚƌŝǆ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƵƉƚĂŬĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ��ƉƉƌĞŶƟĐĞƐŚŝƉ�^ĐŚĞŵĞ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�tĞůƐŚ�'ŽǀĞƌŶŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞŐĂƌĚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ�ĞǆƉĞƌŝĞŶĐĞ�ƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚƐ͘��,ŽǁĞǀĞƌ͕�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ƌĞŵĂŝŶƐ�ĐŽŵŵŝƩĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞƌĞ�ĂƌĞ�ŽƉƉŽƌƚƵŶŝƟĞƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ŝŶĐůƵƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ǇŽƵƚŚ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ͘�� ��ƉĂƉĞƌ�ŚĂƐ�ďĞĞŶ�ƉƌĞƉĂƌĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�^Dd�ŽƵƚůŝŶŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�ƚŽ�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĂƉƉƌĞŶƟĐĞƐŚŝƉƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂŝŶĞĞ�ƉůĂĐĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ϮϬϭϳ-ϭϴ�ƚŽ�ϭϬϬ͖�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ƉƌŽƉŽƐĂůƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚŽƌĂƚĞ-ůĞĚ�ƚƌĂŝŶĞĞƐ�ĂƐ�ǁĞůů�ĂƐ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�Ă�ĐŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�ƐĐŚĞŵĞ͘  WW�Z �ŚĂŶŐĞƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�WW�Z�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ƉƌĞƐĞŶƚĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞĐĞŶƚ�ƌŽƵŶĚ�ŽĨ��ŵƉůŽǇĞĞ�ZŽĂĚƐŚŽǁƐ͕�ŚŝŐŚůŝŐŚƟŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽͲƉŽƐĂůƐ�ƚŽ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐŝŵƉůŝĨǇ�ƚŚĞ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐ͕�ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�Ă�ƌĞǀŝĞǁĞĚ�ƌĂƟŶŐ�ƐĐĂůĞ�ǁŚŝĐŚ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�ŝŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚĞĚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ƐƚĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ϮϬϭϳ-ϭϴ�WW�Z�ĐǇĐůĞ͘  /ƐƐƵĞƐ͗ ^ŝĐŬŶĞƐƐ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶƐ�ƐŝŐŶŝĮĐĂŶƚůǇ�ĂďŽǀĞ�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ͕�ĨŽƌĞĐĂƐƟŶŐ�Ăƚ�ϭϬ͘ϲϯ�&d��ĚĂǇƐ�ůŽƐƚ�ĂŐĂŝŶƐƚ�Ă�ƚĂƌŐĞƚ�ŽĨ�ϴ͘ϱ�;ƚŚĞ�Yϯ�ĮŐƵƌĞ�ŝƐ�ϳ͘ϱϵ�&d��ĚĂǇƐ�ůŽƐƚͿ͘��&ƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ŵĞĞƟŶŐƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ďĞĞŶ�ƐĐŚĞĚƵůĞĚ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ��ŚŝĞĨ��ǆĞĐƵƟǀĞ�ĂŶĚ��ůůƌ�,ŝŶĐŚĞǇ�ĨŽĐƵƐŝŶŐ�ŽŶ�ĮǀĞ�ŬĞǇ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�ƉĂƌƟĐƵůĂƌůǇ�ŚŝŐŚ�ƐŝĐŬŶĞƐƐ�ĂďƐĞŶĐĞ�ƚŽ�ŚŝŐŚůŝŐŚƚ�ǀŝƐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ĂŶǇ�ƵŶĚĞƌůǇŝŶŐ�ŝƐƐƵĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŚŽǁ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�ŵŝŐŚƚ�ďĞ�ŵŝƟŐĂƚĞĚ͘� 

�ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ��ŽŵŵŝƚŵĞŶƚ Yϭ YϮ Yϯ Yϰ 
/ŵƉůĞŵĞŶƚ�ƉŚĂƐĞƐ�Ϯ�ĂŶĚ�ϯ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ��ƵƐƚŽŵĞƌ�ZĞůĂƟŽŶƐŚŝƉ�DĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�;�ZDͿ� ŵŽĚĞů�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϴ͕�ĞŶĂďůŝŶŐ�ĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ĂĐĐĞƐƐ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞƐ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƉƌĞͲĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ǁĂǇ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ƚŽ�ŐĂŝŶ�Ă�ƐŝŶŐůĞ�ǀŝĞǁ�ŽĨ�Ă�ĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŽƌŐĂŶŝƐĂͲƟŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�Ă�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚ�ǁĂǇ�ŽĨ�ƉƌŽĐĞƐƐŝŶŐ�ĐƵƐƚŽŵĞƌƐ� 

 Zͬ� Zͬ� Zͬ�  

&ƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ĞŵďĞĚ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ƚŽŽůƐ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶƚůǇ�ĂĐƌŽƐƐ�ƚŚĞ��ŽƵŶĐŝů�ƚŽ�ĞŶƐƵƌĞ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵŝŶŐ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞŵĞŶƚ�ŝŶ�ŬĞǇ�ĂƌĞĂƐ�ďǇ�ϮϬϭϳ  Zͬ� �ͬ' �ͬ'  
&ƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ƌĞĚƵĐĞ�ƐŝĐŬŶĞƐƐ�ĂďƐĞŶĐĞ�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ�ŵŽŶŝƚŽƌŝŶŐ͕�ĐŽŵƉůŝĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĨŽƌ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ�΀�ŽƵŶĐŝů�ǁŝĚĞ΁   Zͬ� Zͬ� Z  
&ƵƌƚŚĞƌ�ŝŵƉƌŽǀĞ�ĐŽŵƉůĞƟŽŶ�ƌĂƚĞƐ͕�ƋƵĂůŝƚǇ�ĂŶĚ�ĐŽŶƐŝƐƚĞŶĐǇ�ŽĨ�WĞƌƐŽŶĂů� WĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ĂŶĚ��ĞǀĞůŽƉŵĞŶƚ�ZĞǀŝĞǁƐ�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ĐŽŶƟŶƵĞĚ� ƉƌŽǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƐƵƉƉŽƌƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂŶĂŐĞƌƐ��΀�ŽƵŶĐŝů�tŝĚĞ΁  ' ' '  
�ĞǀĞůŽƉ�Ă�ƐƚƌĂƚĞŐǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ƚĞŵƉŽƌĂƌǇ͕�ĐĂƐƵĂů�ĂŶĚ�ĂŐĞŶĐǇ�ǁŽƌŬĨŽƌĐĞ�ƚĂŬŝŶŐ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƐŽĐŝĂů�ŝŶĐůƵƐŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ǇŽƵƚŚ�ĞŶŐĂŐĞŵĞŶƚ�ďǇ�DĂƌĐŚ�ϮϬϭϳ ' �ͬ' �ͬ'  

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF             
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

POLICY REVIEW & PERFORMANCE 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                                            14 March 2017

PROCUREMENT STRATEGY 2017-2020 (DELIVERING COMMERCIAL AND 
SOCIAL VALUE)

Reason for this Report

1. To enable the Committee to provide comments and advice to the Cabinet on the 

Council’s draft Procurement Strategy (Set out at Appendix A of this report), 

before Cabinet meets to consider approving adoption of the Strategy at its 

meeting on 16 March 2017. 

Background

2. The Council’s existing Commissioning and Procurement has helped the Council 

deliver a range of benefits, including the implementation of category management 

arrangements, £18 million of procurement-related savings, increased efficiency in 

procurement systems and recognition in a number of Welsh and UK procurement 

awards.

3. The Council is now developing a new Procurement Strategy to ensure that the 

£380 million it spends each year in procuring a diverse range of goods, services 

and works from over 9,000 suppliers and contractors, delivers value for money 

and supports delivery of the Council’s wider objectives.  The draft Strategy 

attached at Appendix A sets out the Council’s key procurement priorities through 

to 2020 and the key changes that it will make to improve the management of its 

external spend.

Page 51

Agenda Item 6



Issues

4. Informed by the Corporate Plan, the What Matters Strategy and wider legislation 

and policy affecting procurement, the new Strategy seeks to deliver four broad 

over-arching Organisational Outcomes:

 Maximising Economic, Social, Environmental and Cultural Wellbeing

 Achieving Value for Money and Efficiency

 Driving Innovation

 Maintaining Effective Governance and Risk Management.

5. In seeking to deliver the first of the four objectives listed above, the Strategy will 

look to deliver through its external spend the same kind of improvements to 

employment, training and apprenticeship opportunities it has recently generated 

through its own workforce. The recently established Community Benefits Board 

will seek to maximise the delivery of these benefits across the Council, including a 

Child’s Rights Partner programme.

6. The Board will oversee the development of a wider Social Responsibility Policy 

and Charter, promoting fair work practices across our suppliers and contractors.  

This will be informed by Welsh Government’s Code of Practice on Ethical 

Employment in Supply Chains (due to be launched on 9 March 2017), which will 

cover a range of employment issues such as Modern Slavery and human rights 

abuses, blacklisting, false self-employment, the unfair use of umbrella schemes 

and zero hours contracts, and payment of the Living Wage.

7. The draft Strategy sets out how it will use five key enablers – Culture, People, 

Technology, Process and Information – that will be critical to its delivery.  

8. A Delivery Plan will be developed and progress reported on an annual basis, 

using a balanced scorecard reflecting the key organisational priorities.  The 

Delivery Plan will include detailed actions and KPIs.

Page 52



Previous scrutiny

9. Members of this Committee received a draft of the Strategy for comments on 31 

January 2017, and Members raised some clarification points, which officers will 

use to facilitate questioning at this meeting. 

Way Forward

10.  Councillor Graham Hinchey (Cabinet Member for Performance & Resources) has 

been invited to attend for this item.  

11.Christine Salter (Corporate Director, Resources) and Steve Robinson 

(Operational Manager for Commissioning and Procurement) will be in attendance, 

and will be available to answer Members’ questions on the draft Strategy.

Legal Implications

15.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters, there are no direct legal implications. 

However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations 

for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising 

from those recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council 

must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural 

requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person 

exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with 

the procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure 

Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken 

Page 53



having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be 

reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

Financial Implications

16.The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters, there are no direct financial 

implications at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However, 

financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations 

for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications 

arising from those recommendations.

RECOMMENDATION

17. The Committee is recommended to note the draft Strategy and the information 

provided at the meeting, and consider whether it wishes to refer any comments or 

concerns to the Cabinet.

DAVINA FIORE
Director of Governance and Legal Services 

8 March 2017

Page 54



1

Appendix A

City of Cardiff Council

Procurement Strategy 2017-2020
Delivering Commercial and Social Value

Version 1.0
14th February 2017

Page 55



2

Foreword
With an annual spend on bought-in goods, services and works of over £380 million, it is imperative that 
the Council manages this spend responsibly to ensure we obtain value for money, support the Council’s 
wider  objectives and meet our legislative requirements.  This Strategy builds on the successes 
delivered over the last 4 years including the implementation of Category Management, which has 
resulted in a step change in the way in which procurement is managed across the Council and delivered 
significant cost reductions. 

The Council is continuing to face a number of challenges including continued budgetary constraints 
and an increasing demand for services, resulting in the ongoing need to deliver efficiency savings and 
to be more commercially focused.  However, the Council also recognises the opportunity to maximise 
social, economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing through its procurement activity.  To this end 
it is committed to the delivery of community benefits, including employment and apprenticeships, and 
the promotion of “Fair Working Practices” including payment of the Living Wage.

This Strategy acknowledges the key role that procurement will continue to play in enabling the Council 
to meet these challenges and outlines our vision and priorities for the next four years.  It sets out how 
the Council will continue its procurement journey and build on what it has achieved to date by:

1. Acting Smarter 
• Ensuring staff have the procurement skills, knowledge and tools to work effectively and 

independently. 
• Continuing to innovate, utilise technology and challenge traditional delivery models to 

deliver improved value.
• Ensuring that the Council’s social responsibility principles are promoted through our 

procurement processes and contracts. 
2. Buying Responsibly

• Ensuring that we only buy what we need and that we deliver value for money on all 
spend.

• Ensuring that we have the appropriate levels of controls and that staff understand and 
comply with them.

• Maximising the economic and social value we deliver whilst minimising any 
environmental impact.

3. Collaborating and Engaging
• Ensuring that there is positive engagement with staff across the Council to support and 

encourage the delivery of innovative solutions within the agreed Council rules and wider 
legislation.

• Supporting effective collaboration across the public sector where it delivers value for 
the Council.

• Engaging with suppliers, contractors and service providers, and the users of services to 
drive continuous improvement, innovation and deliver greater value. 

 
 

Page 56



3

Procurement Matters
The City of Cardiff Council is the largest unitary authority in 
Wales and is responsible for the delivery of a wide and diverse 
range of statutory and discretionary public services.  

The Council delivers its services directly through its own 
workforce, and through private and third sector organisations.   
The Council spends over £380 million a year procuring a 
diverse range of goods, services and works from over 9,000 
suppliers and contractors. 

The Council has a responsibility to manage public money with probity, to ensure that value for money 
is achieved and to manage it in such a way that we can support wider Council objectives.  

This Strategy sets out the Council’s key procurement priorities through to 2020 and the key changes 
that it will make to improve the management of its external spend on goods, services and works.

Procurement Journey So Far
The Commissioning & Procurement Strategy 2011-15 established an ambitious programme to 
transform procurement in the Council through the adoption of category management to deliver 
cashable savings and improve procurement performance across the Council.  Key successes include:

 The successful implementation of category management across all of the Council’s third-party 
spend including traditionally hard to reach areas such as social care.

 The delivery of £18million of procurement related savings through a combination of demand 
and supply side strategies with more than £12million directly linked to general fund budget 
savings.  

 An increase in spend under management to more than 90% through our Buying Responsibly 
initiative.

 Improved efficiency of the ordering and payments process by removing around 200,000 paper 
invoices.

 Being classified in the KPMG Procurement Fitness Check as “Developing to Advanced” overall 
and “Advanced” for Procurement Leadership and Governance, Procurement Strategy and 
Objectives, and Performance Management.

 Winners of Procurement awards at a both UK and Welsh level.

However, despite our achievements the Council is continuing to work in a challenging financial 
environment and having to manage ongoing significant budget cuts.  In addition, the Council and 
Procurement in particular are facing increasing expectations to deliver wider policy initiatives. This 
context and our response is set out within this strategy.

Page 57



4

Procurement Context
There are a number of priorities, policy aspirations and legislative requirements which need to be 
considered. These include:

EU and UK Legislative Context
The Council’s procurement of goods, services and works must be grounded in the European Union 
Treaty Principles of free movement of goods, freedom of establishment, freedom to provide services.  
These principles are under pinned by values of equal treatment, non-discrimination, mutual 
recognition, proportionality and transparency.  The EU Public Sector Procurement Directive 2014 was 
transposed into UK Law by the Public Contract Regulations 2015.  As the UK and Welsh Governments 
were at the heart of the development of the EU Directive it is not currently envisaged that the Brexit 
vote in June 2016 will see any significant changes in the regulations during the life of this Strategy but 
the situation will be monitored.

In addition to the Public Contract Regulations the Council needs to ensure that its procurement policies 
and practices adhere to a range of additional legislative requirements including the Equality Act 2010.

Welsh Context
Wales Procurement Policy Statement is a set of 10 principles by which the Welsh Government expects 
public sector procurement to be delivered in Wales.

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act is focused on improving the social, economic, 
environmental and cultural well-being of Wales.  The guidance states, “the role of procurement will 
be an important part of how a public body allocates resources under the Act.”

Cardiff and Regional Context
The Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) City Deal was signed in March 2016 
and is an agreement between the UK government, the Welsh 
government and the ten leaders of the local CCR.  It includes £1.2 
billion investment in the Cardiff Capital Region’s infrastructure 
through a 20-year Investment Fund.  

What Matters Strategy (2010-2020) is the integrated partnership 
strategy for Cardiff that focuses on the delivery of seven key strategic 
outcomes which will improve the economic, environmental and social 
wellbeing of Cardiff.

Council Context
The Council’s Corporate Plan is the Council’s Business Plan, setting out the Council’s Co-operative 
Values and Priorities.  It sets out the Council’s vision “to be Europe's most liveable Capital City” and 
contribution to delivering the What Matters Strategy. 

The Council is continuing to face a significant budget challenge. Despite delivering savings of 
£200million over the past 10 years the Council is facing a budget gap of £25m during 2017/18 and a 
potential shortfall of £81million over the next three years. 

Page 58

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/equality-act
http://gov.wales/docs/prp/toolkit/june15walesprocurementpolicystatement2015v1.pdf
http://gov.wales/topics/people-and-communities/people/future-generations-act/?lang=en
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/508268/Cardiff_Capital_Region_City_Deal.pdf
http://www.cardiffpartnership.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/What-Matters-June-2011.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Corporate-Plan/Documents/Corporate%20Plan%202016-18%20-%20FINAL.pdf


5

Organisational Outcomes
In response, the Council has identified the following key organisation 
outcomes, which will be supported and / or delivered by this 
strategy: 

Maximising Economic, Social, Environmental and Cultural 
Wellbeing 
We will actively work to obtain added value from Council contracts 
and spend.  To achieve this, we will:
 Support the delivery of the Wellbeing of Future Generations Wales Act, by incorporating 

Community Benefits into all suitable contracts.
 Implement the Welsh Government’s Code of Practice – Ethical Employment in Supply Chains. 
 Work with partners to support local businesses and SMEs to access public sector opportunities.
 Work to encourage suppliers, contractors and providers to pay their staff the Living Wage.
 Develop a Social Responsibility Policy and Charter and encourage contractors, suppliers, providers 

and partners to adopt the Charter.
 Develop and publish a “Fair Work Practices” Statement.

Achieving Value for Money and Efficiency
We will ensure that we are achieving value for money in terms of both whole life cost and quality and 
that we operate efficiently.  To achieve this, we will:
 Continue to manage and organise all of our procurement activities using category management to 

ensure effective prioritisation and co-ordination of resources across the Council.
 Continue to review procurement activity across the Council to ensure we are achieving value for 

money and effectively managing demand
 Make use of and support collaborative sourcing including the National Procurement Service where 

it represents value to the Council.
 Ensure our procurement activities are managed efficiently and make effective use of technology

Driving Innovation
We will actively work with staff across the Council to drive and encourage innovation where it can 
reduce the cost and / or improve the effectiveness of Council services.  To achieve this we will:
 Use strategic and transformational sourcing as appropriate to stimulate creative and innovative 

solutions based on a clear understanding of business requirements, related markets and good 
practice from the public and private sector  

 Work with Directorates to challenge existing procurement arrangements, to identify savings and 
service improvement opportunities and plan forward work programmes. 

 Recognise the value and importance of supplier relationship management and collaboration 
across the public, private and third sector to drive innovation and greater value.

 Support new ways of working to bring about step change across the Council.
 Support the consideration, evaluation and implementation of alternative service delivery models.
 Utilise Atebion Solutions Ltd, the Council’s Local Authority Trading Company, to deliver 

commercial and procurement services so that the expertise and knowledge of the team can be 
utilised to provide services to other organisations whilst generating an income stream for the 
Council.

Page 59



6

Maintaining Effective Governance and Risk Management
We will continue to ensure that Council complies with relevant legislation and that the governance and 
risk management arrangements of the Council are proportionate and followed.  To achieve this, we 
will:
 Maintain a procurement forward plan of procurement projects to improve how we manage and 

deliver these projects.
 Ensure that the procurement policies and procedures are regularly reviewed and kept up to date.
 Improve contract management across the Council by supporting Directorates in actively managing 

contracts.
 Continue to report on procurement performance and compliance to Senior Management Team at 

least every 6 months.
 Ensuring staff across the Council are trained in the Council’s Policies and Procedures.

Key Enablers
The Council recognises five key enablers that will be critical to the 
delivery of this strategy – Culture, People, Technology, Process and 
Information.  

Culture
We will:
 Develop a culture that is innovative and challenges traditional 

delivery to improve what we do and drive savings.
 Ensure that staff understand and appreciate the rules and policies of the Council
 Ensure that there is positive engagement with staff across the Council to support and encourage 

the delivery of innovative solutions within the agreed Council rules and wider legislation.

People
We will:
 Continue to invest in our People to ensure that the Procurement Team has the right mix of skills, 

knowledge and expertise. 
 Ensure staff across the Council have the procurement skills, knowledge and tools to work effectively 

and independently. 

Process
We will:
 Simplify and standardise our core processes and ensure our controls ensure compliance.
 Ensure that standard templates are in place for key procurement and contracting documentation 

and that these are regularly reviewed.

Technology
We will:
 Invest in the use of technology and e-procurement to underpin and simplify our core processes for 

both staff and suppliers.
 Improve our Purchase to Pay (P2P) processes to drive efficiency savings

Information
We will:

Page 60



7

 Provide staff with accurate timely spend data to inform procurement decisions and identify 
savings opportunities.

 Produce an annual procurement performance report.
 Support Directorates to optimise their spend in the achievement of their strategic objectives.

Monitoring Delivery and Performance
The delivery of this Strategy will be managed through a Delivery Plan with progress reported on an 
annual basis using a Balanced Scorecard based on the key organisational priorities.  

Maximise Economic, Social and 
Environmental Wellbeing Achieve Value for Money and Efficiency

Drive Innovation Maintain Effective Governance and Risk 
Management

Key Organisational 
Outcomes

The Delivery Plan will include detailed actions and KPIs.  All actions will be cross-referenced to Welsh 
Government Procurement Policy including the Procurement Fitness Check, Wales Procurement Policy 
Statement, Wellbeing of Future Generations Wales Act and Code of Practice – Ethical Employment in 
Supply Chains. 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



CITY AND COUNTY OF CARDIFF             AGENDA ITEM 7
DINAS A SIR CAERDYDD

POLICY REVIEW & PERFORMANCE 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                                            14 March 2017

POLICY REVIEW & PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: DRAFT ANNUAL 
REPORT 2016-17

Reason for this Report

1. To seek Committee’s approval for the draft Annual Report 2016-17 prior to its 

consideration by Full Council.

Background

2. The Cardiff Council Constitution requires all Scrutiny Committees to ‘report 

annually to the Council on their workings and make recommendations for future 

work programmes and amended working methods if appropriate.‘

3. A copy of the Policy Review & Performance Scrutiny Committee’s draft Annual 

Report for 2016 -17 is attached at Appendix A. This report lists all items 

considered from June 2016 to March 2017, and highlights those topics where the 

Committee has had greatest impact. 

Legal Implications

4. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications. 

However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations 

for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising 

from those recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council 

must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural 

requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person 

exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with 

the procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure 

Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken 

having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be 

reasonable and proper in all the circumstances.

Financial Implications

5. There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.

RECOMMENDATION

The Committee is recommended to consider, if necessary amend, and approve the 

attached Policy Review & Performance Scrutiny Committee draft Annual Report 

2016-17 for presentation to Council.

DAVINA FIORE
Director of Governance and Legal Services 
8 March 2017

Page 64



 

Policy Review and Performance 
Scrutiny Committee

Annual Report  2016–2017
March 2017

City and County of Cardiff

Page 65



2

CONTENTS

Committee Membership        3

Chair’s Foreword   4

Overview   5

New Developments 5

Web-casting 5

Remote Attendance 6

Terms of Reference – responsibilities 6

Work Programme 2016/17 – Summary 8

Highlights of 2016/17 9

Partnership Scrutiny 9

Joint Scrutiny 13

Policy Review 16

Policy Development 18

Pre-Decision 22

Monitoring Improvement 27

Monitoring Performance & Delivery 31

Future Work Programming Opportunities 2017/18 36

Overview of Scrutiny in the 2012-2017 Administration 37

Committee Terms of Reference 34

Page 66



3

POLICY REVIEW & PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
MEMBERSHIP

                 

Councillor Nigel Howells
CHAIR

Councillor Susan Goddard                                        Councillor Gary Hunt

     Councillor David Walker                   Councillor Jim Murphy

                     

Councillor Huw Thomas                              Councillor Eleanor Sanders

Page 67



4

 Chair’s Foreword

Councillor Nigel Howells  
Chair, Policy Review and Performance Scrutiny Committee 

TBA

Page 68

http://www.cardiff.gov.uk/content.asp?nav=2872,4274,4280&parent_directory_id=2865&id=6940&Language=


5

 Overview

As the City’s inaugural five year administration draws to a close, this Annual 

Report reflects on another year of varied topics under the scrutiny spotlight.  

For many years Cardiff has had a well-developed scrutiny culture and 

function. This allows non-executive Members to bring their own independent 

expertise to bear on strategy and policy issues, working with the Cabinet to 

improve services for the citizens of Cardiff. 

Governments at all levels are aiming for greater transparency, inclusivity and 

accountability.  Scrutiny committees in Cardiff effectively assist the Council in 

delivering such transparency, providing a foundation block for good 

governance. The Committee has been responsive to the organisation’s 

priorities in a changing legislative landscape. This Annual Report covers the 

work of the Committee between May 2016 and March 2017, explaining the 

many different types of scrutiny undertaken, analysing all topics the 

Committee has considered within each category over the year. Highlights of 

its work and the outcomes in 2016/17 can be found from page 8 onwards.

New Developments

Webcasting

The Council, in its Statement of Action response to the WAO Corporate 

Assessment Follow-on Report, committed to increasing the number of 

Committees that are webcast. Such a commitment includes the webcasting of 

Scrutiny Committees. The Committee played its part in delivering the 

commitment by preparing for live broadcast with a pilot webcast of 

proceedings in November 2016, followed by its inaugural live webcast on 15 

Page 69



6

February 2017, for consideration of the Corporate Plan 2017/19 and Draft 

budget proposals 2017/18.

Remote Attendance

Another first for Scrutiny, and for this Committee, was the successful remote 

attendance of a Committee Member at the December meeting, which took 

place at the Council’s C2C Wilcox House customer services call centre.  

Technology was put in place to enable a Cardiff Councillor to participate in 

scrutiny challenge whilst unavoidably located in Aberystwyth on the day of 

Committee. 

 Terms of Reference - Responsibilities

For clarity, the Policy Review and Performance Scrutiny Committee’s Terms 

of Reference confer upon it two distinct scrutiny roles. Firstly, an overarching 

responsibility to scrutinise, monitor and review the overall corporate 

performance and improvement of the Council. Secondly, to scrutinise, monitor 

and review the effectiveness of specific functions, such as Organisational 

Development, Finance, ICT, Human Resources, Governance, Legal Services, 

Property, Procurement, Customer Services and the Public Services Board. 

The Committee’s terms of reference1 determine that its responsibilities fall 

within four of the Council’s seven delivery Directorates; as follows 

The Corporate Resources Directorate  falls within the Committee’s remit in 

its entirety and comprises; Commissioning and Procurement; Enterprise 

Architecture; Finance; Human Resources People Services; ICT; 

Organisational Development; Performance & Partnerships;

1 Terms of Reference for this Committee can be found on page 34.

Page 70



7

The Economic Development Directorate includes Strategic Estates 

including both the operational and commercial investment portfolios, Facilities 

Management and International Policy. 

The Communities, Housing and Customer Services Directorate includes 

Community Hubs; Customer Services (including Corporate Complaints and 

the Member Enquiry Service); and Connect to Cardiff (C2C).

The Governance and Legal Services Directorate falls within the 

Committee’s remit in its entirety and comprises Bilingual Cardiff; Committee & 

Members’ Services; Electoral Services; Equalities, Glamorgan Archives; Legal 

Services; and Scrutiny Services.

This year, the Committee has contributed to joint scrutiny of the Alternative 

(commercial) Delivery Mechanisms, along with colleagues from the 

Environmental scrutiny committee on two occasions.  

Page 71



8

 Work Programme 2016/17 - Summary

During the municipal year May 2016 – March 2017 the Committee held 11 

programmed public meetings. This culminated in 23 letters to the Cabinet and 

Senior Management Team, sharing the Committee’s comments, concerns and 

recommendations, following the scrutiny. In response the Committee received 

14 letters from the Cabinet.

In addition, Members of the Committee participated in two public joint scrutiny 

meetings alongside the Environmental Scrutiny Committee, focussing on the 

Council’s developing commercial approach; and two Members, with a 

particular interest in Council Performance, offered their expertise on behalf of 

the Committee, both to engage with officers on the emerging performance 

management refresh from a Member’s perspective, and to be interviewed for 

a Wales Audit Office  fieldwork project on Performance Management and 

Governance.  

The Committee received a warm welcome when it held its December meeting 

at Wilcox House, where it took the opportunity of experiencing first-hand the 

excellent work of the C2C call centre, in preparation for its scrutiny of 

Customer Services.

As referenced above, the Committee has scrutinised a wide variety of topics 

over the year, using varied approaches.  All topics scrutinised have been 

listed below, under the relevant type of scrutiny, and a selection have been 

highlighted for their impact.

Page 72



9

 

 Highlights of 2016/17

 Partnership Scrutiny

Where the Committee has performed the statutory role introduced by the 

Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 and conferred upon it by 

Council. In 2016/17 this included:

 Public Services Board – Progress briefing

 Public Services Board - Well-being Assessment.

Public Services Board Scrutiny 
______________________________________________

The Council and its partners are subject to duties under the Well-being of 

Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 (WFG). The Act seeks to ensure that 

the governance arrangements in public bodies for improving the well-being of 

Wales take into account the needs of future generations.  The aim is for public 

bodies to improve the economic, social and environmental well-being of 

Wales in accordance with detailed sustainable development principles and 

well-being goals prescribed by the Act. 

The WFG act prescribes the establishment of a statutory Public Services 

Board (PSB) for each local authority area in Wales, the core members of 

which should include the Local Authority; the Local Health Board; the Welsh 

Fire and Rescue Authority; and Natural Resources Wales. It also prescribes a 

statutory remit for Scrutiny: to review decisions made or actions taken by the 

PSB; to review the Board’s governance arrangements; make reports to the 

Board regarding its function or governance arrangements; and require PSB 

members to attend Committee.

The WFG Act presents a major shift in statutory possibilities for the 

Committee. The Council’s Constitution confers the statutory responsibility 

Page 73



10

upon the Policy Review and Performance Scrutiny Committee for scrutiny of 

the Council’s partnership work, specifically scrutiny of Cardiff’s Public 

Services Board (PSB). Therefore the Committee will perform a strategic 

overview role of the PSB’s performance going forward.

There are two key documents the PSB is required to prepare and publish by 

April 2018: a local Well-being of Needs Assessment prior to the development 

and publication of a Well-being Plan.  The local Well-being Plan must set out 

the local well-being objectives and the steps the PSB proposes to take to 

meet them. The publication of the local Well-being Plan must tie in with the 

local government election cycle, no later than one year after the date of the 

next ordinary election. Following its publication, the PSB must produce Annual 

Reports of how it is addressing its statutory duties.  

This year the Committee considered progress in the establishment of the 

Public Services Board in November 2016; and the draft Well- being of Needs 

Assessment as it was launched for consultation in January 2017.

Following the PSB progress briefing the Committee wrote to the Leader as 

Chair of the PSB indicating:  

 It was keen to ensure that appropriate governance arrangements were 

in place for the Board and that the work of the previous Cardiff 

Partnership Board, particularly around needs assessment, would be 

preserved, and the PSB would capitalise on the achievements of the 

CPB and a long history of non-statutory partnership achievement;

 It considered, to date, some partners had been much more visible than 

others in their offer to support partnership working; 

 It considered the appointment of an Independent Challenge Advisor to 

the Board a useful approach; 

 Clarification that it is the Council who has appointed the Independent 

Challenge Advisor, requesting sight of the Terms of Reference for the 

Independent Challenge Advisor; and  an opportunity to consider the 

Page 74



11

view of the Independent Challenge Advisor at an appropriate point in 

the future to enrich future scrutiny of the PSB.

In response the PSB reassured the Committee that the good work and 

strong relationships with partners which characterised the work of the 

Cardiff Partnership Board had been preserved; indicated the PSB is looking 

forward to engaging with a variety of stakeholders and experts as it 

develops the well-being objectives; advised that governance arrangements 

have been reviewed by the Executive Public Services Board,  and 

procedures agreed to continue to monitor the former Cardiff Partnership 

Board work streams as the Public Services Board develops its well-being 

plan and objectives; and there was to be a review of locality working in the 

city.

The terms of reference for the PSB’s Liveable City Challenge Advisor were 

supplied, anticipated to be a valuable source of advice and challenge to the 

Board.  The Committee was offered an opportunity to consider her views 

and advice in future. Additionally all Scrutiny Chairs were invited to the 

'Liveable City Forum' on 5 January 2017 to consider the draft Local Well-

being Assessment and to start to identify priorities for the Board's work 

programme. 

Following scrutiny of the Well-being of Needs Assessment in January 2017 

the Committee advised the Leader that Members:

 Commended the PSB for the volume of work involved in compiling the 

Needs Assessment;

 Considered there was a lack of clarity about exactly what documents 

comprise the Well-being of Needs Assessment consultation, and, given 

that the solutions lie with the people of Cardiff, the document could 

make it clearer to citizens how they participated in the consultation; 

 Considered that this Assessment would be the bedrock of future 

planning for Cardiff’s services, and stressed the importance of the 

Page 75



12

consultation engaging with hard to reach groups and the most 

deprived; 

 Requested more detail of how hard to reach groups would be targeted, 

and sight of the full list of consultation activities; 

 Stated it considered deprivation and life expectancy a priority, both for 

the Board and the Council, and it would like to see the outcomes from 

the PSB reflect that.

In response the PSB provided additional information on young people not in 

education, employment or training, indicating a confidence that the long 

term downward trend would continue. The Board indicated it would consult 

for six weeks on the Well-being of Needs Assessment, despite there being 

no requirement to do so under the Well-being of Future Generations Act. 

The Committee was provided with detailed information on its plans for direct 

engagement with hard to reach groups; and advised that the 12 week 

consultation on the Well-being Plan would take place in autumn 2017. 

Page 76



13

 Joint Scrutiny

 Where the Committee has joined together with one or more scrutiny 

committees to examine a topic of a cross-cutting nature to enable collective 

consideration of the issues. In 2016/17 this included:

Alternative Delivery Mechanism – Full Business Case Proposals

In June 2016 the Committee joined with the Environmental Scrutiny 

Committee to undertake pre-decision scrutiny of the ‘Infrastructure Services – 

Full Business Case’. Following the discussion the two Committees made the 

following observations: 

 That future emphasis should focus on performance monitoring and 

delivery of the successful Modified In House model.  To support this 

Members:

o Requested early scrutiny of the new performance measures for the 

new service.  They felt that the new performance monitoring 

package should focus on key areas including the reduction in 

operating cost; net profit from income generated; customer 

baseline information and monitored performance against the 

established action plan;  

o Suggested that new performance measures, business plans and 

action plans should clearly link back to the strategic objectives set 

out in the project; 

o Agreed to monitor progress of the Modified In House approach on a 

quarterly basis to ensure that savings and improvements were 

delivered;

o Recommended that the clusters and individual services within the 

‘Commercial & Collaboration’ Programme needed to be individually 

reported against and not simply monitored as a part of a wider 

directorate context; 

Page 77



14

o Felt that business plans should have been made available 

alongside the Infrastructure Services Full Business Case to clearly 

identify a way forward for the new Modified In House approach.  

 Expressed concern at the speed of implementation of the new fleet 

management software for Fleet Services.

 Acknowledged the importance of ICT projects such as mobile 

scheduling, mobile working devices and rostering software, and 

requested regular updates over the next 10 months to ensure that 

these important ICT projects remain on track to give the Modified In 

House approach the best chance of success. 

When considering the financial model for the Infrastructure Services Full 

Business Case Members were concerned that the £307,000 projected for 

additional trading within the Wholly Owned Company was very low.  A 

Member provided an informed explanation on the income generation 

opportunities available through Fleet Services due to the high gross margin 

associated with carrying out MOT work for the public and private companies 

(65% gross margin for labour; 25% gross margin for parts).  They accepted 

that the Modified In House approach could provide an additional £1.510m 

over the five year period, however, based on a c£70m per annum service this 

seemed to be a very low figure.  

Commercial & Collaboration Services – Progress Update 
______________________________________________________________

The two Committees received a progress update on Commercial & 

Collaboration Services in January 2017, following which Members 

congratulated Commercial & Collaborative Services on progress made in a 

relatively short time.  Members were pleased that the service had agreed with, 

and followed through on, a number of key recommendations from earlier 

scrutiny of the Infrastructure Services Project, for example: delivering swift 

Page 78



15

improvement; implementing specialist 3rd party service delivery software; 

introducing new training opportunities; focusing on income generation; and 

improving financial control through zero based budgeting. The Committee 

commented on the commercial approach for Fleet Services, Total Facilities 

Management Recycling & Waste Services. However, more generally 

Members: 

 Welcomed the creation of new apprenticeships within the service;

 Acknowledged that sickness rates had improved; 

 Were encouraged by the commercial awareness of Commercial & 

Collaborative Services to adopt established third party systems to 

improve efficiency;

 Were pleased that agency costs had reduced by 13% since the 

creation of the Commercial & Collaboration Service, however, felt the 

overall agency costs were still high;  

 Members felt that improvements had been made in the area of staff 

training opportunities, particularly in Recycling & Waste Services.  They 

felt that this was a positive step that would support both staff 

development, morale and the Council’s ability to deliver the best 

standards of service. 

Page 79



16

 Policy Review

Where the Committee has considered the implementation of, and impact of 

policies providing the Cabinet with Scrutiny Members’ views about whether 

any changes are required. In 2016/17 this included;

 Customer Services Strategy

 Digital Strategy

 CRM/SAP – Progress update.

Customer Services Strategy
______________________________________________________________

Members were delighted to see frontline service delivery in action at 

C2C.Following the scrutiny they commented on: 

 Culture and Leadership, considering the investment in staff culture at 

C2C was clearly in evidence, and winning the ‘Staff Engagement’ 

category at the Welsh Contact Centre Awards in March 2016 well 

deserved; 

 Urged such customer focussed leadership be shared widely across the 

Council, particularly as a positive staff culture was achieved with no 

dedicated resource to staff motivation;

 Service levels – the importance of channel choice. Committee 

considered it particularly important to maintain services for those less 

digitally focussed.  

 Call volumes – the Committee considered the high level of calls for 

Council house repairs (over 7,000 from an 18,000 housing stock) could 

be a result of repeat calls, often necessary due to poor workmanship. It 

noted in comparison that the proportion of waste calls to service users 

is far less and expected to fall going forward;

 Technology – the Committee expressed its frustration that the Council 

is not further ahead in resolving the technological integration of SAP 

Page 80



17

with the customer facing system, CRM.  The Council cannot deliver a 

customer portal until the digitalisation issues currently experienced by 

C2C operators are resolved, and the Committee intends to keep a 

close eye on developments;  

 Social media – The Committee was concerned that the Council does 

not consider Twitter a formal channel for complaints; though it can be a 

channel for service requests. Members felt that although dealing with 

complaints via Twitter may be complex, due to the 140 characters 

being insufficient to log all complaints, and resistance amongst service 

areas, if we are to be customer focussed we need to acknowledge 

such complaints. We would therefore like a report back to Committee 

on progress the Council is making in managing its Social Media 

presence.

In response the Cabinet indicated that the Council Is committed to keeping all 

channels of communication open so that residents can access services in the 

way that is easiest for them. It acknowledged that the housing repair reporting 

line receives a significant amount of calls, however a lot of work has been 

undertaken to try and reduce the amount of calls including a text message 

service to tenants ahead of an operator visit. 

Cabinet agreed to ensure the Committee was updated when significant 

developments have been made addressing the delay in integrating SAP with 

CRM; and confirmed that the team responsible for the Council’s Twitter 

account is working closely with the Corporate Complaints section, this was a 

developing area of work and the Committee would be kept informed.

Page 81



18

Policy Development

Where the Committee has contributed to the Council’s policy development 

processes by considering draft policy documents, In 2016/17 this included;

 Performance Management Refresh

 Bilingual Cardiff Welsh Language Strategy 2017-22

 Review of Scrutiny

 Corporate Plan 2017-19.

Performance Management Refresh
______________________________________________

In May 2016 the Committee had an opportunity to shape policy development 

of the Council’s approach to managing performance. Members engaged with 

a refresh of the Council’s performance management approach, to address a 

Wales Audit Office Proposal for Improvement issued to the Council in its 

Corporate Assessment.

Members considered proposals to develop the Council’s current Performance 

Management arrangements, building on progress made in previous years, to 

further improve and embed an effective and consistent approach.   The 

proposals were to develop robust, outcomes-focused Balanced Scorecards 

for consideration by Cabinet and the Policy Review and Performance Scrutiny 

Committee; reduce the scope and size of Directorate Delivery Plans; 

introduce service planning across the Council; establish a Performance 

Support Board; improve the timeliness of reporting; publish performance 

information on the internet; and to refresh the Council’s Performance 

Management Strategy.

In a letter to the Cabinet Member Corporate Services and Performance 

Members welcomed the direction of travel presented; outcome-focused, 

proactive performance management using data and trend information, with a 

Page 82



19

clear golden thread through all levels, within a culture of accountability. The 

Committee stressed that it:

 Wished to ensure that, at the end of Quarter 1 2016/17 Scrutiny was 

able to establish if there were areas the Council was under performing; 

 Would be pleased to participate in the co-design of a balanced 

scorecard; 

 Welcomed representation on a members working group; 

 Encouraged the Head of Performance  to liaise with all scrutiny  Chairs 

to explore the performance needs of the other Scrutiny Committees;

 Was keen to ensure that where Performance Indicators are published 

by multiple partners/authorities the structure of PI’s the Council settles 

on allows a read across;

 Wished to highlight the need for the City Dashboard to assist us in our 

statutory role of holding the new Public Services Board to account.

Review of Scrutiny
______________________________________________________________

In response to the Wales Audit Office (WAO) Corporate Follow-on report of February 

2016, the Cabinet agreed a Statement of Action that included a Review of Scrutiny. 

The project was to put forward recommendations for the Scrutiny function, that 

delivers the best possible Scrutiny function for Cardiff, optimising the 

involvement and engagement of non-Executive Councillors, meeting all 

existing and expected statutory requirements, the needs of the new 

Administration and Council after May 2017. 

The Committee was tasked by the Scrutiny Chairs’ Liaison Forum with 

participating formally in the Review of Scrutiny project, by evaluating the pros 

and cons of three different scrutiny models proposed as a result of evidence 

gathered, undertaking a short scrutiny to consider the best way forward.

In December 2016, following consideration of three models, the Committee 

offered its comments and observations for inclusion in the development of the 

optimal model for consideration by the Constitution Committee.

Page 83



20

The Committee was firmly of the view that there is merit in retaining the 

principal of 4 - 5 Scrutiny Committees. Several Members felt the existing 

model should be the preferred option, due to its overarching success over 

many years. However, all Members accept that in retaining the existing model 

there are grounds for tweaking the Terms of Reference of all Committees.

Whilst endorsing the status quo, Members had some specific views. All 

Members:

 Felt the existence of a Constitution Committee and a Democratic 

Services Committee was significant duplication and unnecessary 

overlap;

 Considered the implications of Partnership scrutiny are still an 

unknown;

 Considered four Committees could work (and reduce costs), where the 

Economy and Culture Scrutiny Committee relieves pressure on a 

combined Social Services committee by effectively taking responsibility 

for housing and skills development.

Some Members:

 Were keen to retain two Social Services Scrutiny Committees; 

 Considered Housing should remain alongside Adult Services;

 Considered that the PRAP type Committee should undertake cross 

cutting scrutiny, whilst not duplicating the work of other committees.

   

The Committee felt strongly that basic Scrutiny training should be mandatory,

and Members nominated for Scrutiny Committee positions should be required 

to complete the training prior to attendance at their first meeting. Members 

took on board the expectation that the 2017/18 budget would realise a £50k 

reduction agreed in the 2016/17 Scrutiny budget, but given the essential work 

that Scrutiny undertakes felt there was a need to enhance rather than reduce 

arrangements.

Page 84



21

The Committee felt it was important to balance formal and informal scrutiny, 

by factoring Task and Finish (T&F) work into all proposed models. However, it 

felt that T&F meetings were not public forums and therefore an over 

dependency would not deliver our ‘Open’ Council commitment. Furthermore, 

Members considered an expansion of T&F work would not resolve the 

resource challenges currently experienced. The implication was that T&F work 

is more likely to be undertaken during the afternoon, to ensure witness 

access, which will conflict with the responsibilities of younger Councillors. 

Some Members felt there is an opportunity to access support for T&F from 

non-scrutiny back bench Members.

Importantly, the Committee was concerned about the number of seats on 

Scrutiny Committees. Specifically, it felt the current issue of vacant seats had 

not been a problem in previous administrations. The current difficulty filling 

seats was therefore considered a unique situation and the Committee 

suggested erring on the side of caution before making significant changes to 

the size of Committees. Members feel the position could change dramatically 

in May 2017, depending on the circumstances of newly elected Members.

Members were not convinced all drivers for Scrutiny change were important 

enough to determine a new model. The Committee did however highlight the 

importance of improving the embeddedness of Scrutiny in the Council, in the 

following ways:

 By improving back bench and front bench links in policy formulation;

 By improving the monitoring of how Scrutiny recommendations are 

embedding;

 By linking Scrutiny recommendations to the PPDR’s of Senior 

Managers.

The Scrutiny Review report was reported to Constitution Committee on 2 

March 2017.

Page 85



22

Pre-decision Scrutiny

Where the Committee has evaluated and commented on policy proposals 

before they go to the Executive, giving the Cabinet the opportunity to know 

Scrutiny Member’s views prior to making their decision. In 2016/17 this 

included;

 Local Authority Trading Company – Commissioning and 

Procurement

 Employee Health & Well-being Strategy

 Corporate Asset Management Plan

 Investment Estate Strategy 2016-19

 The Corporate Plan 2017-19 

 The Proposed Budget 2017-18

 Corporate Procurement Strategy.

Corporate Asset Management Plan
______________________________________________________________

In July 2016 the Committee considered the Corporate Asset Management 

Plan (CAMP); the key property objectives of the Council over the 

forthcoming year, and the positive impact this would have both on the 

Council’s services and its financial position. 

Following the scrutiny the Committee advised the Leader it considered 

that, in respect of property matters generally, and the general direction of 

travel, the Council’s plans are now far more transparent. Specifically 

Committee:

 Noted that the property maintenance backlog is largely schools 

related, and  constantly under review to ensure the maintenance 

backlog does not grow further; 

 Noted the use of County Hall would be maximised in the medium 

term, however longer term this approach might change;

Page 86



23

 Was seeking reassurance that financial and operational 

considerations were used together in target setting; 

 Requested a better understanding of the criteria used to set the 

targets during those discussions;

 Noted targets for reducing Gross Total running costs were not 

achieved during 2015/16;  

 Was keen to establish that the targets set for 2015/16 were 

ambitious.

 Members wish to register some concern with the length of time 

often taken to realise Community Asset Transfer opportunities, and 

how realistic the Council’s ambitions are; 

 Welcomed the creation of a new post to support community groups 

in their bid to take on a Community Asset, recognising that such 

groups are often seeking advice and expertise to take their 

aspirations forward;

 Stressed that local Members possess invaluable ward knowledge 

that could prove beneficial in giving effect to Community Asset 

Transfers, and would in future like to see more weight given to 

Member engagement and involvement in such cases, and urge 

more accurate Member consultation.

In response the Cabinet reassured that annual CAMP targets align directly 

with those within the 2015-2020 Property Strategy. The targets are 

designed to provide evidence that the Council is moving towards a leaner, 

more efficient and modern estate, and are agreed in close collaboration 

with service areas. The Community Asset Transfer (CAT) project officer 

post to support community groups in their bid to take on a Community 

Asset, had been filled, providing a single point of contact for CAT 

management within the Council. The CAT officer would ensure that

members are consulted on CATs and best use is made of their local 

knowledge and community expertise, and would endeavour to include 

local Councillors in the Neighbourhood Planning exercise.

Page 87



24

Investment Estate Strategy 2016-19
______________________________________________

In line with its responsibility for scrutiny of the Council’s property estate, both 

‘operational’ property (from which the Council operates and delivers services), 

and ‘non-operational’ or ‘investment’ property (often let for commercial return 

or to promote local employment, small businesses and the economic 

regeneration of local areas), the Committee had an opportunity for pre-

decision scrutiny of the Council’s Investment Estate Strategy 2016 – 2021 in 

November 2016.

The Committee heard that the Council has 200 property assets with a value of 

£67million, generating an income of £3.47million p.a. This represents a yield 

value of 5.16%. The proposed Investment Estate Strategy was designed to 

improve the performance of the estate and increase the yield on Council 

assets. A high level assessment of all properties in the Council’s portfolio had 

been carried out, and properties had been RAG assessed to Red = release, 

Amber = remodel, or Green = retain.  The Investment Strategy proposed that 

to improve the property portfolio the Council would consider the acquisition of 

new investments, taking into consideration their location, covenant strength, 

lease length, investment yield and lease repairing terms.

Members heard that a performance target had been set to increase the

gross yield from the Council’s portfolio from 5.16% to 6.16%, which 

represented a 20% improvement over five years. As part of this strategy, a 

review of all operational assets would also be carried out, to identify any 

opportunities to generate rental income from properties that may be 

underutilised, surplus to requirements or sites where there is potential to let 

out the whole or split the site for commercial benefit.

The Committee in its letter to the Leader acknowledged that the Strategy 

represented a step change in the Council’s management approach of 

Page 88



25

maximising the benefits from its estate. Members were reassured that the new 

strategy was focussed on generating more income from the Council’s non-

operational property. However Members:

 Felt there should be a clearer indication of the performance targets the 

Investment Estate Board (IEB) would set along the way to measure 

progress, to enable Cabinet and Scrutiny to evaluate the success of the 

Strategy over the next 5 years;

 Recommended strengthening democratic oversight by appointing a 

Cabinet Member to the IEB;

 Recommended its successors consider an interim update of progress 

in July 2017, and suggested examining in depth the process and 

outcome of applying the Strategy to a red City Centre asset, to assess 

whether the process is working;  

 Would like more weight given to Member engagement and involvement 

in property deals that are planned within their wards. 

In response the Cabinet reflected this was the first time that the Council has 

published targets relating to the performance of the Investment Estate, 

which in itself represents a major step forward in terms of transparency and 

accountability. The Cabinet is committed to reporting progress against 

targets annually, reporting activity quarterly as part of the corporate 

performance report, and will monitor activity monthly through the 

Organisational Development Programme. Further it would continue to 

explore the opportunity to compare the performance of the investment 

estate to that of other cities, though Cardiff is leading the way in terms of 

transparently setting out its agenda.

However, Cabinet considered that appointing a Member to the IEB would 

dilute the commercial perspective on the estate, for the Board would only 

make recommendations for presentation to the Asset Management Board 

and Cabinet Member with responsibility for the Investment Estate.

Page 89



26

Cabinet agreed an interim progress report in July and would be happy to 

consider a case study for scrutiny, specifically a city centre asset that has 

been identified as requiring action.

Page 90



27

Monitoring Improvement

Where the Committee has undertaken monitoring of the Council’s 

improvement progress.  In 2016/17, this included:

 Organisational Development Programme – refresh

 Organisational Development Programme - progress report

 Statutory Annual Improvement Report 2015/16 

 Wales Audit Office Improvement Report 2015/16

 Wales Audit Office Corporate Assessment Follow-on Report, 

Statement of Action progress update.

Organisational Development Programme – Refresh & Progress Report
______________________________________________

On two occasions this year the Committee took the opportunity of monitoring 

the Council’s overarching improvement programme, the Organisational 

Development Plan (ODP). The Committee’s primary focus was to ensure that 

the success of the ODP translates into an improved citizen experience of 

Council services. Members acknowledged the Council has made good 

progress in several statutory service areas, but felt progress could perhaps be 

quicker and more consistent.  With the ODP firmly embedded Members 

consider the Council is well placed to accelerate the pace of improvement, to 

ensure performance improvement is evident at the frontline, and that the good 

work to date is translated into an improved frontline citizen experience. They 

felt it was beholden upon the Committee to assist the Council in strengthening 

its self-assessment in line with WAO recommendations, by robustly seeking 

out information and holding to account services that may not be improving. 

Therefore the Committee advised the Cabinet: 

 It would monitor explicit links between the ODP, Corporate Plan, What 

Matters Strategy, and Cardiff’s Wellbeing Plan;

Page 91



28

 It would be seeking detailed progress reports that would enable it to 

measure how projects are delivering improvement over time, to achieve 

an improvement in its own level of challenge and monitoring; 

 It would programme specific ODP projects for more in depth progress 

reports, containing greater detail, in its future work programme;

 A reporting format was required that enables the Committee to 

effectively monitor the ODP, and to assess which services would 

benefit from Scrutiny drilling down further;

 That it wishes, as a key stakeholder, to be involved in the three year 

review process proposed for 2017.

In response the Cabinet indicated that the ODP is the primary vehicle through 

which the Council will deliver change to ensure it can meet the financial 

challenges ahead, whilst continuing to deliver outcomes for residents and 

service users. As such, there are clear links between the aims of the 

Programme and the ambition of the Council as an organisation and as a 

partner working across the City region. Cabinet committed to make these links 

clearer, both for the Policy Review and Performance Scrutiny Committee and 

wider audiences. 

The Cabinet agreed to develop an approach to ensure there is clear visibility 

to the Committee of the progress that is being made in delivering each of the 

programmes within the ODP without developing a burdensome reporting 

framework. The Committee’s involvement in the three-year review process as 

a key stakeholder was welcomed.

The Committee followed up progress six months later, its overwhelming 

concern being that the CRM technological difficulties the Council has faced for 

some time remained unresolved. In November, following scrutiny of the WAO 

Statement of Action, the Committee highlighted to the Leader its frustration 

that the Council was not further ahead in resolving the technological 

integration of SAP with the customer facing system, CRM.  Members noted at 

that point that the Council could not deliver a customer portal until the 

digitalisation issues currently experienced by C2C operators were resolved, 

Page 92



29

and indicated the Committee’s intention to keep a close eye on developments.  

Subsequently, in December, following scrutiny of the Customer Services 

strategy Members re-iterated that the Council should have a date in mind as 

to when the problem will be resolved, requesting an update on SAP/CRM 

when there was something significant to report back. 

The Committee found itself, following January’s scrutiny of the ODP, re-

iterating those concerns of November and December, that progress has been 

slow in resolving the technological issues that will enable improvement in 

customer focussed online services. Members had heard over the past three 

meetings that the Council’s technology partner has put in place its global 

escalation team to resolve matters. The Committee therefore:

 Re-iterated its request for an update on CRM to its meeting 

programmed for March 14 2017;

 Considered there was an opportunity to streamline the OD Programme 

to focus more heavily on the reshaping of services rather than core 

business, particularly to enhance the focus on technology;

 Would recommend to its successors that when monitoring progress in 

future it tests the validity of RAG ratings.

WAO Corporate Assessment Follow-on Report, Statement of Action 
progress update 
______________________________________________
In November 2016 the Committee received a progress update on the 

Council’s Statement of Action in response to the WAO Corporate Assessment 

Follow-on Report. Members commended the Cabinet on the generally strong 

progress the Council had made in delivering the Corporate Follow-on 

Statement of Action However it had specific concerns as follows:

 As CRM is considered the key customer facing system, the Committee 

would keep a close eye on developments. It had some concerns that 

Page 93



30

there was no deadline in place or definite date as to when the problem 

would be resolved; 

 Members were still unclear as to whether the Council can expect a 

further WAO inspection. As Council would undertake a self-assessment 

within this financial year of how well performance is embedding, 

Committee would factor this into its work programming.

Page 94



31

Monitoring Performance & Delivery

Where the Committee has undertaken monitoring of the Council’s 

performance.  In 2016/17 this included:

 Corporate Performance Quarter 4 2015/16

 Corporate Performance Quarters 1, 2 & 3 2016/17

 Budget Outturn 2015/16

 Corporate Risk Register

 National Performance Indicator Results 2015/16.

Quarterly Corporate Performance 

Monitoring Corporate Performance, and the emerging new approaches to 

performance management, has been a significant part of the Committee’s 

work programme in 2016/17.

At Quarter 4 2015/16 the Committee:

 Was concerned at gaps in the Performance Indicator (PI) data provided 

for their consideration; 

 Considered the downward trend in sickness absence was very 

encouraging and commended the Cabinet for its achievements, 

particularly in Directorates such as City Operations, Members felt it 

would be useful to identify to what extent this improvement was a result 

of management action, and were concerned that the employee 

counselling service was oversubscribed;

 Was concerned that at the end of the 2015/16 monitoring year, there 

were performance indicators still RAG rated amber, and looked forward 

to a more consistent approach to RAG rating across the organisation 

as the new performance monitoring arrangements come to fruition;

Page 95



32

 Highlighted that the compliance level of PPDR completion meant 1,000 

staff were still not receiving a PPDR, and this needed to be addressed;

 Acknowledged the complexity of the Council’s quarterly performance 

report, in attempting to simultaneously present the high level 

overarching corporate performance picture alongside the performance 

of individual services;

 Flagged up that ward Councillors would find geographic performance 

analysis useful.

In response Cabinet recognised that there was more work to do to meet the 

challenging stretch targets set by the organisation. They recognised the value 

of analysing the causes of improved sickness absence rates; and indicated a 

consistent approach to RAG ratings was being developed as part of the 

refresh of the Council’s Performance Management Strategy. Cabinet also 

agreed work would continue to improve performance in the PPDR process; 

recognised the usefulness of geographically-based performance analysis for 

ward Councillors,; and indicated the Corporate Performance Team would 

work with service-based Performance Leads to explore the possibility of 

analysing and presenting relevant performance information on this basis.

At Quarter 1 2016/17 the Committee’s overarching comment to Cabinet was 

that the Quarter 1 refreshed quarterly report remained complex and heavy 

going, and looked forward to the Q2 report addressing the need for greater 

simplification. The corporate overview pages of the report had been 

summarised into a two page Balanced Scorecard presentation. Members felt 

this was commendable, however there was need for an ‘in-between’ report, 

more detailed than the Balanced Scorecard summary but less weighty than 

the current full report. The Committee therefore suggested a one page 

summary for each Directorate would usefully sit behind the Balanced 

Scorecard.

Page 96



33

The Committee added it felt:

 Robust work was required throughout the organisation on target 

setting, comparing quarterly results, and not just annual results.

 There was a need for consistency in finance and performance reporting 

in respect of target setting;

 The report needed to enable Members to perform their ward Councillor 

role, and enable them to hold the Cabinet to account.  Members 

suggested that an option of online ‘drilling down’ would be useful both 

for Members and for the public;

 Re-iterated that other scrutiny committees’ needs in executing their role 

of monitoring frontline services should be taken into account;

 The quarter 1 sickness figures were concerning, particularly that the 

Council was unable to influence schools in tackling sickness absence.

 The Council should remind governing bodies that they offer a service 

whereby governors can gain access to sickness information should 

they require it;

 Progress had been made in the level of PPDRs, but it remained 

concerned as to how the organisation would tackle the remaining 10% 

of staff still not receiving PPDRs.

In response the Cabinet indicated that the Performance Reporting Project 

team had been tasked with developing a reporting format specifically for the 

Committee, consistent with the Council’s overall reporting framework. They  

accepted that an option of ‘drilling down’ into performance would be useful for 

Members, and for the public, and that work was underway to develop ways in 

which the Council reports its performance to other audiences, focussing on 

accessible reporting formats such as infographics. The ambition of this work 

would be to create an online portal which had a ‘top layer’ of easily accessible 

narrative, and infographic-driven performance information, underpinned by a 

second layer of more detailed performance information. 

Page 97



34

At Quarter 2 2016/17 the Committee acknowledged that the Council was still 

in the process of refreshing its performance management reporting 

arrangements. Members were generally very happy with the extension of the 

balanced scorecard approach to each Directorate. However Members 

remained unclear which Performance Indicators were proving challenging and 

which were improving performance. The Committee therefore:  

 Requested that, as part of the quarterly performance report, a 

corporate summary of highs and lows during the quarter, highlighting 

clearly where current performance concerns are for the Council;

 Expressed concern about the Quarter 2 sickness absence projections 

given that in every Directorate projections outstrip targets;  

 Accepted the offer of greater detail in respect of the Education-non-

school service sickness absence rates;

 Considered the title ‘Council Overview Scorecard’ is misleading. 

Members noted that the KPI’s used in the performance report 

measured performance against the Council’s Improvement Objectives 

alone, and not improvement in Council services in general. Therefore 

whilst the Scorecard provides a strategic overview it is not an all-

encompassing view and this should be made clearer;

 Re-iterated it felt the public should have access to a level of 

performance data that facilitates an assessment of Council 

performance;

 Re-iterated that some Scrutiny committees focus on day to day 

performance and are keen to have a bespoke report that enables very 

focussed monitoring of frontline services.

In a very committed response the Cabinet indicated that the Corporate 

Performance Team would be developing a summary of the ‘Corporate Highs 

and Lows’ and  invited  Members of the Committee to engage with the 

Performance team in developing the summary;. They indicated Education 

would provide the Corporate Performance Team with a detailed account of 

non-schools sickness absence for consideration with the Quarter 3 

Page 98



35

performance report; and in conjunction with the Communications team, the 

Corporate Performance Team would be developing a public facing 

performance report, summarising the Council’s Annual Improvement report, 

National Strategic Indicators and Performance Assessment Measurements for 

2015/16. The Cabinet also committed to developing reports better suited to 

the specific requirements of individual scrutiny committees, in line with the 

ongoing review of scrutiny.

Page 99



36

 Future Work Programming Opportunities 2017/18

This scrutiny year has been shorter pending local government elections in 

May 2017. The Committee has found its time stretched to cover increasing 

statutory responsibilities for partnership scrutiny and the services that fall 

within four directorates. There are a number of items the Committee will carry 

forward, and commend to the Committee of 2017/18 for consideration in its 

work planning. These include:

 Employee Health & Well-being Strategy 2016-17 – Monitoring the 

effectiveness of managers at identifying stress, particularly mental health 

issues in their staff.

 Organisational Development Programme:

o Programming specific ODP projects for more in depth progress 

reports, containing greater detail; 

o As a key stakeholder, participating in the three year ODP review 

process proposed for 2017 and considering the comprehensive 

independent review of the when it becomes available.

 Business Continuity plans – The Committee wishes to consider full 

Business Continuity plans and red/amber risks.

 Bi-Lingual Welsh Language Strategy: 

o conduct more focussed case study type inquiry work, with a view to 

examining the challenge to a private sector employer of offering a 

bilingual service, and at how the Council is supporting bilingualism 

in an English speaking school;

o Monitor progress in delivering the Welsh Language Standards on 

an annual basis.

 Investment Estate Strategy 2016:

Page 100



37

o an interim update of progress in July 2017; 

o Examining in depth the process and outcome of applying the 

Strategy to a red City Centre asset, to assess whether the process 

is working.

 WAO Statement of Action – continue to request a progress update on 

CRM/SAP.  

 Customer Services Strategy – request a report back to Committee on 

progress the Council is making in managing its Social Media presence.

Overview of Scrutiny 2012-2017

During the last five years, this Committee has held 56 full Committee 

meetings, including five joint meetings with the Environmental Scrutiny 

Committee. As a result of the consideration of over 155 reports, covering 

policy development, pre-decision scrutiny, monitoring progress and service 

area performance, the Scrutiny Committee Chairperson sent over 120 letters 

to the Cabinet and officers, which included requests for additional information, 

comments, and observations. 

Page 101



38

Committee Terms of Reference

 To scrutinise, monitor and review the overall operation of the Cardiff 

Programme for Improvement and the effectiveness of the general 

implementation of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives.

 To scrutinise, monitor and review the effectiveness of the Council’s 

systems of financial control and administration and use of human 

resources.

 To assess the impact of partnerships with, and resources and services 

provided by, external organisations including the Welsh Government, joint 

local government services, Welsh Government Sponsored Public Bodies 

and quasi-departmental non-government bodies on the effectiveness of 

Council service delivery.

 To report to an appropriate Cabinet or Council meeting on its findings and 

to make recommendations on measures which may enhance Council 

performance in this area.

1

Scrutiny Services, City and County of Cardiff, 

Room 263d, County Hall, Atlantic Wharf, Cardiff CF10 4UW

Tel: 02920 873017  Email: scrutinyviewpoints@cardiff.gov.uk

 2017 City and County of Cardiff

Page 102

mailto:scrutinyviewpoints@cardiff.gov.uk

	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Customer Relationship Management and SAP Systems: Progress update
	5 Performance Quarter 3 2016-17
	Item 5, App 1a - Achievements and Challenges Q3 2016-17
	Item 5, App 1b Corporate Overview Quarter 3 16-17
	App 1c
	App 1d
	App 1e
	App 1f
	App 1g
	App 1h

	6 Procurement Strategy 2017-2020
	Item 6, App1 - Procurement Strategy 2017-20 Final Draft

	7 Committee's Annual Report 2016/17
	Item 7, App A - Annual Report 2016-2017 draft to committee




